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CLIMATE CHANGE

L..

IES AND COLLISIONS

Government mandates

Consumer preferences

The price of oil

The air we breathe

People and their governments desire

cars and trucks that are safer cleaner

smarter and more affordable Drivers

wish to be more connected and informed

yet safe and focused on the road ahead

Everybody wants to go farther on tank

of fuel or charge without sacrificing

comfort power or the joy of driving

Even when these problems seem

unsolvable to the global automakers we

serve and supply we know the answer

Well solve the problems Its what we do

RIVING MORE MILES

EMERGING MARKETS
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By our customers own metrics we execute

flawlessiy.. We meet their stringent demands
with innovative products and systems that

deflght their customers

Importantly our momentum continues into 2012

driven by our global footprint and the continued

introduction of innovative products and technologies

that address the accelerating industry trends of

safe green and connected

WHATTHE WORLD DEMANDS
INNOVATION ON GLOBAL SCALE

Innovation and technologies created by our deep

engineering capabilities continue to drive our growth

and revenue expansion We have focused our efforts

on factors impacting the automotive industry

including vehicle safety fuel efficiency reduced

emissions consumer connectivity and the unique

demands of the emerging markets We invest over

$1 billion annually in engineering and are focused

on delivering what consumers want.. what vehicle

manufacturers need. and what governments are

increasingly regulating

Customers and governments both want vehicles

that are safer and greener Consumers want to

remain connected to wealth of information while

governments address challenges such as driver

distraction and fuel efficiency Our mission is to help

solve these problems by providing technologies that

safely enable freedom and mobility while lessening

the vehicles impact on the environment

We help our customers seamlessly incorporate

leading technology into their vehicles creating

relevant and marketable advantages When building

vehicle with thousands of components automak

ers require perfect partsdelivered on time every

time And by our customers own metrics we

execute flawlessly We have been recognized by our

customers for our performance and capabilities

but more importantly for our execution and delivering

on our promises We meet their stringent demands

with innovative products and systems that delight

their customers

We solve problems This is our powerful equation

for success

DELIVERING SUPERIOR RESULTS

We have built robust business model to bring our

innovations designed for an ever-changing world to

market As result of our geographic and customer

diversity we are well-positioned with multiple

avenues for growth

We continue to diversify our product portfolio

our customer base and our geographic footprint

We are moving toward differentiated customer

base where no single customer accounts for more

than 15 percent of our business Geographically

our goal is to be strategically balanced with

North America Europe and Asia Pacific contributing

30 percent each to our total global sales with

South America contributing 10 percent We intend

to achieve these objectives through aggressive

growth initiatives and we are making significant

progress towards this goal

We have tremendous opportunities for organic

growth particularly in China and other emerging

markets where the current low vehicle per capita

penetration rates are rapidly trending upwards

As consumers begin to express their preferences

in these markets they are demanding the

technologies and products that Delphi offers

emphasizing safety environmentally-friendly

applications and connectivity
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We have targeted our growth to ign
with customers who are winning in

the goba marketpace

Our low-cost footprint is strategically balanced

across all regions of the world and is enhanced

by our strong commitment to lean manufacturing

processes enabling us to profitably operate in all

regions Strong financial discipline has resulted in

solid balance sheet that positions us to pursue

multiple avenues for growth

Our cost structure provides us with significant

operating leverage and margin expansion as unit

volume increases This cost position results in

industry-leading financial metrics and ensures we

are well positioned to invest in growth opportunities

throughout the industry cycle

WHATTHE FUTURE HOLDS

Weve achieved great deal to date however we

are not done We will accelerate the introduction

of new technology addressing safe green and

connected products and systems which will translate

into accelerated growth in revenues earnings and

cash flow Leveraging our competitive manufactur

ing capabilities and engineering aptitude we have

targeted our growth to align with customers who

are winning in the global marketplace We will

be balanced regionally to benefit from global

expansion in emerging markets as well as economic

recovery around the world

am very proud of our team over 104000 talented

Delphi professionals located in 30 countries around

the world managing our expansive manufacturing

engineering logistics and service network This

complex and highly efficient network launched

767 customer programs last year moved material

from more than 6400 supplier locations through

Delphis manufacturing operations and shipped over

49 million parts daily to 32000 customer locations

around the world at 99 percent on time level

We are all working toward common goals

making it possible for our customers to delight

their customers commend our global team

for their hard work and commitment to Delphi

extend special thanks to our shareholders for

their confidence in Delphi Ultimately all of us at

Delphi have one definitive goal to create value

for our stakeholders Thats the true measure of

executing successful strategy

Best regards

Rodney ONeal

Chief Executive Officer and President
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Everything we make and do

aligns with the mega-trends

of and

what consumerswant and

governments mandate These

are the trends driving growth

margins and innovation in our

industry and in our business
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SAFE Enhanced active safety systems ranging from collision avoidance to driver

assistance are being embraced by both consumers and governments around the

world We are working to free drivers from the handheld devices such as smart

phones and tablets they bring into their vehicles so the connectivity they crave

doesnt amplify distraction

We are helping improve driver safety worldwide Our goal is to make technological

advancements available to all drivers across all market segments not just luxury

vehicle owners For example our Electronically Scanning Radar ESR is now installed

in all new European Ford Focus and Ford Kuga vehicles extending the benefits of this

safety equipment to purchasers of compact cars
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UD-BASED PORTAL

Delphis newest MyFi Infotairiment system

feature cloud-based portal uses Microsoft

Windows Azure to bring vehicle manufacturers

and consumers unique global connectivity

solution that allows the vehicle to exchange data

with the web With this systems flexibility

vehicle owners can add new apps and

functionality throughout vehicle life Drivers can

personalize the display of the vehicles instrument

cluster from home and check diagnostics

such as tire pressure engine health and brake

life from portable tablet or smart phone

They can even create and store personalized

accounts for different drivers When companies

like Delphi and Microsoft collaborate on

technologies the possibilities are limitless

CONNECTED Consumers want to bring their connected lives into their cars and

trucks For many connectivity at home at work and on the go

is not just luxury its necessity But when it comes to motor

vehicles connectivity must be partnered with safety and ease of

use We are working to deliver that anytime anywhere connected

experience safely and robustly in ways that inform and entertain

without distracting the driver

We integrate connectivity innovations infotainment user

Making todays infOtOiflflflt
experience active safety workload management and body security

automotive grade for the technologiesin intuitive and coordinated ways to provide the

cockpit and cabin
safety and security drivers demand

GB

MyFu CONNECTED INFOTAINMENT SYSTEMS

Delphi MyFi systems offer multiple levels of connectivity

to help vehicle manufacturers meet the information and

entertainment desires of vehicle purchasers ranging from

entry level to premium We couple the value of connected

systems with technology designed to mitigate driver

distraction Technologies include voice recognition

text to speech large touch screens reconfigurable displays

and workload management systems MyFi broad range .-
of infotainment offerings include unique global connectivity

solution that links drivers to the cloud and communicates

with safety sensors to provide warnings and alerts when
the drivers attention needs to be redirected
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ATA-G LANCE

TOP 15 CUSTOMERS DELPH BYTHE NUMBERS

BMW Hyundai/Kia
104000 Employees obally

Caterpillar PSA Peugeot Citroºn 13000 Scientists and Engineers

Chrysler
Renault/Nissan Operating in 30 Countries with 15 Majorlechnical Centers

and 114 Manufacturing Facilities

Daimler Shanghai GM

Investing more than $1 Bilfon Year in Engineer

Fiat Toyota and Development

Ford Volvo Trucks
Shipping more than 49 Million Parts Day

Geely Volkswagen Group Products with or Market Positions Genera

70% of Revenue
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CORPORATE RESPONSWUTY

Delphi is dedicated to protecting human health natural RECOGNTON AND AWARDS

resources and the global environment We contribute to our

communities We also understand we have to do well to do
Ford World Excellence Award for Corporate

good so we focus on sustainable value creation We see Responsibihty Diversity and Community Service

ourselves as positive force in our industry and in the world
Honda Green Factory Achievement Award

and work hard to live up to that every day

Shanghai GM Green Supply Chain Award

Around the globe we hold ourselves to standards that

extend beyond those required by law and regulation in China Automotive Top 10 Most

ethics in employee health and safety and in our envirom Socially Responsible Auto Suppliers

mental performance
Environmental Leadership Award

We strive to be great place to work As company
Mexico Federal Environmental Agency

that is both truly global and truly local wherever our people
Greentech Safety AwardGurgaon India

work and live we are commiffed to diversity We embrace

our differences because its the right thing to do with the National Safety Council Occupational Excellence

added benefit that diversity of perspectives and thought Achievement AwardsGlobal Operations

feeds the innovation that is our lifeblood

National Safety Council Million Work Hour and

Our approach to our customers our stakeholders and Perfect Record AwardsGlobal Operations

the world is to make things beUer for those we serve
Sustainability AwardAutoData Magazine
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including the exhibits being filed as part of this report as well as other

statements made by Delphi Automotive PLC Delphi the Company we us and our contain forward-

looking statements that reflect when made the Companys current views with respect to current events and

financial performance Such forward-looking statements are subject to many risks uncertainties and factors

relating to the Companys operations and business environment which may cause the actual results of the

Company to be materially different from any future results express or implied by such forward-looking

statements All statements that address future operating financial or business performance or the Companys
strategies or expectations are forward-looking statements In some cases you can identify these statements by

forward-looking words such as may might will should expects plans intends anticipates

believes estimates predicts projects potential outlook or continue and other comparable

terminology Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these forward-looking statements

include but are not limited to the following global economic conditions including conditions affecting the

credit market the cyclical nature of automotive sales and production the potential disruptions in the supply of

and changes in the competitive environment for raw material integral to the Companys products the Companys
ability to maintain contracts that are critical to its operations the ability of the Company to attract motivate and
or retain key executives the ability of the Company to avoid or continue to operate during strike or partial

work stoppage or slow down by any of its unionized employees or those of its principal customers and the

ability of the Company to attract and retain customers Additional factors are discussed under the captions Risk
Factors and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the

Companys filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission New risks and uncertainties arise from time to

time and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect the Company It should be

remembered that the price of the ordinary shares and any income from them can go down as well as up Delphi

disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of

new information future events and/or otherwise except as may be required by law



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Delphi the Company the Successor we us and our refer to Delphi Automotive PLC public

limited company which was formed under the laws of Jersey on May 19 2011 together with its subsidiaries

including Delphi Automotive LLP limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and

Wales which was formed on August 19 2009 for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of the former Delphi

Corporation and became subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC in connection with the completion of the

Companys initial public offering on November 22 2011 The former Delphi Corporation and as the context

may require its subsidiaries and affiliates are referred to herein as the Predecessor or Old Delphi

We are leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provide electrical and electronic powertrain

safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial vehicle markets We are one of

the largest vehicle component manufacturers and our customers include 24 of the 25 largest automotive original

equipment manufacturers OEMs in the world We operate 114 major manufacturing facilities and 15 major

technical centers utilizing regional service model that enables us to efficiently and effectively serve our global

customers from low cost countries We have presence in 30 countries and have over 17000 scientists

engineers and technicians focused on developing market relevant product solutions for our customers In line

with the growth in emerging markets we have been increasing our focus on these markets particularly China

where we have major manufacturing base and strong customer relationships

Website Access to Companys Reports

Delphis internet website address is www.delphi.com Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports

on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably

practicable
after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission

Our History

In October 2005 the Predecessor and certain of its United States U.S subsidiaries collectively the

Debtors filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy

Code the Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York the

Bankruptcy Court Collectively the Debtors October 2005 filings are herein referred to as the Chapter 11

Filings On July 30 2009 the Bankruptcy Court approved modifications to the First Amended Joint Plan Of

Reorganization Of Delphi Corporation And Certain Affiliates Debtors And Debtors-In-Possession As

Modified the Modified Plan which incorporated the master disposition agreement among the Predecessor

GM Component Holdings LLC Motors Liquidation Company Old GM General Motors Company GM
and DIP Holdco LLC for the sale and purchase of substantially all of the Predecessors businesses On

October 2009 the Acquisition Date the Predecessor emerged from chapter 11 in accordance with the

Modified Plan Through the Acquisition Date the Debtors operated their businesses as debtors-in-possession

under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the

Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Bankruptcy Court The Predecessors non-U.S subsidiaries were not included

in the Chapter 11 Filings continued their business operations without supervision from the Bankruptcy Court and

were not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code

On August 19 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP limited liability partnership organized under the laws of

England and Wales was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the Predecessor as

discussed below

On the Acquisition Date the Predecessor consummated the transactions contemplated by the Modified

Plan and ii exited chapter 11 as DPH Holdings Corp and its subsidiaries and affiliates DPHH except that



two of the Predecessors debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi Automotive LLP As result of the

Acquisition Delphi Automotive LLP acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this

business constituted the entirety of the operations of the Successor as defined below

On March 31 2011 all of the outstanding Class and Class membership interests held by GM and the

Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation PBGC were redeemed respectively for approximately $4.4

billion The redemption transaction was funded by $3.0 billion credit facility entered into on March 31 2011

the Credit Facility and existing cash

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to its initial public offering On

November 22 2011 in conjunction with the completion of its initial public offering by the selling shareholders

all of the outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLV was exchanged for ordinary shares in Delphi Automotive

PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC

Our Company

We believe the automotive industry is being shaped by increasing government regulations for vehicle safety

fuel efficiency and emissions control as well as rapidly increasing consumer demand for connectivity These

industry mega trends which we refer to as Safe Green and Connected are driving higher growth in

products that address these trends than growth in the automotive industry overall We have organized our

business into four diversified segments which enable us to develop solutions and manufacture highly-engineered

products that enable our customers to respond to these mega trends

Electrical Electronic ArchitectureThis segment provides complete design of the vehicles

electrical architecture including connectors wiring assemblies and harnesses electrical centers and

hybrid high voltage and safety distribution systems Our products provide the critical electrical and

electronics backbone that supports increased vehicle content and electrification reduced emissions and

higher fuel economy through weight savings

Powertrain SystemsThis segment provides systems integration of full end-to-end gasoline and diesel

engine management systems including fuel handling fuel injection combustion electronic controls

test and validation capabilities diesel and automotive aftermarket and original equipment services We

design solutions to optimize powertrain power and performance while helping our customers meet new

emissions and fuel economy regulations

Electronics and SafetyThis segment provides critical components systems and advanced software

for passenger safety security comfort and infotainment as well as vehicle operation including body

controls reception systems infotainment and connectivity systems hybrid vehicle power electronics

passive and active safety electronics displays and mechatronics Our products integrate and optimize

electronic content which improves fuel economy reduces emissions increases safety and provides

occupant infotainment and connectivity

Thermal SystemsThis segment provides powertrain cooling and heating ventilating and air

conditioning HVAC systems such as compressors systeths and controls and heat exchangers for

the vehicle markets Our products improve the efficiency by which the powertrain and cabin

temperatures are managed which are critical factors in achieving increased fuel economy and reduced

emissions

Financial Information about Business Segments

We operate our core business along four operating segments which are grouped on the basis of similar

product market and operating factors



Net Sales by Segment

Successor Predecessor

Period from August 19 to Period from January
Year Ended December 31 2011 Year Ended December 31 2010 December 31 2009 to October 2009

Net sales of Total Net sales of Total Net sales of Total Net sales of Total

in millions excluding percentages in millions excluding

percentages

ElectricallElectronic

Architecture 6642 41% 5620 41% 1325 39% 2970 36%

Powertrain Systems 4970 31% 4086 29% 957 28% 2667 32%

ElectronicsandSafety 2931 18% 2721 20% 761 22% 1801 21%

Thermal Systems 1755 11% 1603 12% 365 11% 1008 12%

EliminationsandOther 257 1% 213 2% 13 0% 112 1%
Total 16041 13817 3421 8334

Refer to Results of Operations by Segment in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis and Note 23 Segment

Reporting of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data of this Annual Report for further financial information about business segments

Our business is diversified across end-markets regions customers vehicle platforms and products Our customer base

includes 24 of the 25 largest automotive OEMs in the world and in 2011 23% of our net sales came from emerging markets

Asia Pacific and South America Our six largest platforms in 2011 were with six different OEMs In addition in 2011 our

products were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United States in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle

models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in China We have further diversified our business by

increasing our sales in the commercial vehicle market which is typically on different business cycle than the light vehicle

market and has grown to 8% of our 2011 net sales In addition approximately 7% of our 2011 net sales were to the

aftermarket which meets the ongoing need for replacement parts required for vehicle servicing

We have established worldwide design and manufacturing footprint with regional service model that enables us to

efficiently and effectively serve our global customers from low cost countries This regional model is structured primarily to

service the North American market from Mexico the South American market from Brazil the European market from Eastern

Europe and North Africa and the Asia Pacific market from China Our global scale and regional service model enables us to

engineer globally and execute regionally to serve the largest OEMs which are seeking suppliers that can serve them on

worldwide basis Our footprint also enables us to adapt to the regional design variations the global OEMs require and serve

the emerging market OEMs

Our Industry

The automotive parts industry provides components systems subsystems and modules to OEMs for the manufacture of

new vehicles as well as to the aftermarket for use as replacement parts for current production and older vehicles Overall we

expect long-term growth of vehicle sales and production in the OEM market In 2010 and 2011 the industry has seen

increased customer sales and production schedules and an improved sales mix with greater per vehicle content However

current OEM production volumes in North America and Western Europe remain substantially lower than OEM production

volumes prior to the disruptions that the econoqic and credit markets experienced in 2008 and 2009 Demand for automotive

parts in the OEM market is generally function of the number of new vehicles produced which is primarily driven by

macro-economic factors such as credit availability interest rates fuel prices consumer confidence employment and other

trends Although OEM demand is tied to actual vehicle production participants in the automotive parts industry also have the

opportunity to grow through increasing product content per
vehicle by further penetrating business with existing customers

and in existing markets gaining new customers and increasing their presence in global markets We believe that as

company with global presence and advanced technology engineering manufacturing and customer support capabilities we

are well-positioned to benefit from these opportunities



We believe that
continuously increasing demands of society have created the emergence of three mega

trends that will serve as the basis for the next wave of market-driven
technology advancement Our challenge is

to continue developing leading edge technology focused on addressing these mega trends and apply that

technology toward products with sustainable margins that enable our customers both OEMs and others to

produce distinctive
market-leading products We have identified core portfolio of products that draw on our

technical strengths and align with these mega trends where we believe we can provide differentiation to our

automotive commercial vehicle and aftermarket customers

Safe The first mega-trend Safe represents technologies aimed not just at protecting vehicle

occupants when crash occurs but those that actually proactively reduce the risk of crash occurring
OEMs continue to focus on improving occupant and pedestrian safety in order to meet increasingly

stringent regulatory requirements in various markets such as the recent proposal by the U.S National

Highway Traffic Safety Administration to mandate rear view cameras in all vehicles by 2014 As
result suppliers are focused on developing technologies aimed at protecting vehicle occupants when
crash occurs as well as those that proactively mitigate the risk of crash occurring Examples of new
and alternative

technologies are lane departure warning systems and collision avoidance technologies
which incorporate sophisticated electronics and advanced software

Green The second mega-trend Green represents technologies designed to help reduce

emissions increase fuel economy and minimize the environmental impact of vehicles Green is key
mega-trend today because of the convergence of several issues climate change higher oil prices
increased concern about oil dependence and recent and pending legislation in the U.S and overseas

regarding fuel economy and carbon dioxide emissions OEMs continue to focus on improving fuel

efficiency and reducing emissions in order to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in

various markets On worldwide basis the relevant authorities in the European Union the United

States China India Japan Brazil South Korea and Argentina have already instituted regulations

requiring further reductions in emissions and/or increased fuel economy through 2016 In many cases
the same authorities have initiated legislation that would further tighten the standards through 2020 and

beyond Based on proposed European legislation we believe OEMs may be required to reduce fleet

average CO2 emissions for passenger cars by approximately 20% from 120 grams/kilometer or

approximately 194 grams/mile in 2012 to 95 grams/kilometer or approximately 153 grams/mile by
2020 Based on the current regulatory environment we believe that OEMs in other parts of the world

including the U.S and China will be subject to even greater reductions in CO2 emissions from their

current levels over the next ten years These standards will require meaningful innovation as OEMs and

suppliers are forced to find ways to improve thermal management engine management electrical

power consumption vehicle weight and integration of alternative powertrains e.g electric/hybrid

engines As result suppliers are developing innovations that result in significant improvements in

fuel economy emissions and performance from gasoline and diesel internal combustion engines At the

same time suppliers are also developing and marketing new and alternative technologies that support

hybrid vehicles electric vehicles and fuel cell products to improve fuel economy and emissions

Connected The third mega-trend Connected represents technologies designed to seamlessly

integrate the highly complex electronic world in which automotive consumers live into the cars they

drive so that time in vehicle is more productive and enjoyable The technology content of vehicles

continues to increase as consumers demand greater safety personalization infotainment productivity
and convenience while driving Advanced technologies offering mobile voice and data communication
while minimizing driver distraction such as those used in our mobile electronics products coupled with

global positioning systems and in-vehicle infotainment will continue to grow in importance and be key

products in the transportation industry

We expect these mega trends to create growth and opportunity for us We believe we are well-positioned to

provide solutions and products to OEMs to expand the electronic and technological content of their vehicles We



believe electronics integration which generally refers to products that combine integrated circuits software

algorithms sensor technologies and mechanical components within the vehicle will allow OEMs to achieve

substantial reductions in weight and mechanical complexity resulting in easier assembly enhanced fuel

economy improved emissions control and better vehicle performance

Standardization of Sourcing by OEMs

Many OEMs are adopting global vehicle platforms to increase standardization reduce per unit cost and

increase capital efficiency and profitability As result OEMs are selecting suppliers that have the capability to

manufacture products on worldwide basis as well as the flexibility to adapt to regional variations Suppliers

with global scale and strong design engineering and manufacturing capabilities are best positioned to benefit

from this trend OEMs are also increasingly looking to their suppliers to simplify vehicle design and assembly

processes to reduce costs As result suppliers that sell vehicle components directly to manufacturers Tier

suppliers have assumed many of the design engineering research and development and assembly functions

traditionally performed by vehicle manufacturers Suppliers that can provide fully-engineered solutions systems

and pre-assembled combinations of component parts are positioned to leverage the trend toward system sourcing

Shorter Product Development Cycles

As result of government regulations and customer preferences OEMs are requiring suppliers to respond

faster with new designs and product innovations While these trends are more prevalent in mature markets the

emerging markets are advancing rapidly towards the regulatory standards and consumer preferences of the more

mature markets Suppliers with strong technologies
robust global engineering and development capabilities will

be best positioned to meet the OEM demands for rapid innovation

Products

Our organizational structure and management reporting support the management of these core product lines

Electrical/Electronic Architecture This segment offers complete electrical and electronic architectures for

our customer-specific needs that help reduce production cost weight and mass and improve reliability and ease

of assembly

High quality connectors are engineered primarily
for use in the automotive and related markets but

also have applications in the aerospace military and telematics sectors

Electrical centers provide centralized electrical power and signal distribution and all of the associated

circuit protection and switching devices thereby optimizing the overall vehicle electrical system

Distribution systems including hybrid high voltage and safety systems are integrated into one

optimized vehicle electrical system that can utilize smaller cable and gauge sizes and ultra-thin wall

insulation which product
line makes up approximately 35% of our total revenue for the year ended

December 31 2011

Powertrain Systems This segment offers high quality products for complete engine management systems

EMS and other products to help optimize performance emissions and fuel economy

The gasoline EMS portfolio features fuel injection and air/fuel control valvetrain ignition sensors and

actuators transmission control products and powertrain
electronic control modules with software

algorithms and calibration



The diesel EMS product line offers high quality common rail fuel and air injection system
technologies

The Powertrain Systems segment also supplies integrated fuel
handling systems for gasoline diesel

flexfuel and biofuel configurations and innovative evaporative emissions systems that are recognized
as industry-leading technologies

We also include diesel and automotive aftermarket and original equipment service in the Powertrain

Systems segment

Electronics and Safety This segment offers wide
range

of electronic and safety equipment in the areas of

controls security infotainment communications safety systems and power electronics

Electronic controls products primarily consist of body computers and security systems

Infotainment and driver interface portfolio primarily consists of receivers advanced reception systems
digital receivers satellite audio receivers navigation systems displays and mechatronics

Passive and active safety electronics
primarily includes

occupant detection systems collision warning
systems advanced cruise control

technologies and collision sensing

Electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics comprises power modules inverters and
converters and battery packs

Thermal Systems This segment offers energy efficient thermal system and component solutions for the
automotive market and continues to develop applications for the non-automotive market Our Automotive
Thermal Products are designed to meet customers needs for powertrain thermal management and cabin thermal
comfort climate control

Main powertrain cooling products include condenser radiator fan module and charge air cooling heat

exchangers assemblies

Climate control portfolio includes HVAC modules with
evaporator and heater core components air

conditioning compressors and controls

Competition

Although the overall number of our top competitors has decreased due to ongoing industry consolidation
the automotive parts industry remains

extremely competitive OEMs rigorously evaluate suppliers on the basis of

product quality price reliability and timeliness of delivery product design capability technical expertise and

development capability new product innovation financial viability application of lean principles operational
flexibility customer service and overall management In addition our customers generally require that we
demonstrate improved efficiencies through cost reductions and/or price improvement on year-over-year basis



Our competitors in each of our operating segments are as follows

Segment
Competitors

ElectricailElectronic Architecture
FCI SA

Lear Corporation

Leoni AG

Molex Inc

TE Connectivity Ltd formerly Tyco

International Ltd

Sumitomo Corporation

Yazaki Corporation

Powertrain Systems
BorgWarner Inc

Bosch Group

Continental AG

Denso Corporation

Hitachi Ltd

Magneti Marelli S.p.A

Electronics and Safety
Aisin Seiki Co Ltd

Autoliv AB

Bosch Group

Continental AG

Denso Corporation

Harman International Industries

Panasonic Corporation

Thermal Systems
Denso Corporation

MAHLE Behr Industry

Sanden Corporation

Valeo Inc

Visteon Corporation

Customers

We sell our products and services to the major global OEMs in every region of the world We also sell our

products to the worldwide aftermarket for replacement parts including the aftermarket operations of our OEM

customers and to other distributors and retailers The following table provides
the percentage

of net sales to our

largest customers for the year ended December 31 2011

of our

Customer
revenue

General Motors Company
19%

Volkswagen Group VW
Ford Motor Company Ford
Daimler AG Daimler

7%

PSA Peugeot Citroºn PSA
Shanghai General Motors Company Limited

5%

Renault S.A

Fiat Group Automobiles S.p.A

3%

Toyota Motor Corporation

Geely Automobile Holdings Limited
2%
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Supply Relationships with Our Customers

We typically supply products to our OEM customers through purchase orders which are generally governed
by general terms and conditions established by each OEM Although the terms and conditions vary from

customer to customer they typically contemplate relationship under which our customers place orders for their

requirements of specific components supplied for particular vehicles These relationships typically extend over

the life of the related vehicle Prices are negotiated with
respect to each purchase order which may be subject to

adjustments under certain circumstances such as commodity or foreign exchange escalation/de-escalation

clauses or for cost reductions achieved by us In most instances our OEM customers agree to purchase their

requirements for specific products but are not required to purchase any minimum amount of products from us
The terms and conditions typically provide that we are subject to warranty on the products supplied in most

cases the duration of such warranty is coterminous with the warranty offered by the OEM to the end-user of the

vehicle We may also be obligated to share in all or part of recall costs if the OEM recalls its vehicles for

defects attributable to our products

Individual purchase orders are terminable for cause or non-performance and in most cases upon our

insolvency and certain change of control events In addition many of our OEM customers have the option to

terminate for convenience which permits our customers to impose pressure on pricing during the life of the

vehicle program and have the ability to issue purchase contracts for less than the duration of the vehicle

program which potentially reduces our profit margins and increases the risk of our losing future sales under

those purchase contracts Additionally our largest customer GM expressly reserves right to terminate for

competitiveness on certain of our long-term supply contracts We manufacture and ship based on customer

release schedules normally provided on weekly basis which can vary due to cyclical automobile production or

dealer inventory levels

Although customer programs typically extend to future periods and although there is an expectation that we
will supply certain levels of OEM production during such future periods customer agreements including

applicable terms and conditions do not necessarily constitute firm orders Firm orders are generally limited to

specific and authorized customer purchase order releases placed with our manufacturing and distribution centers

for actual production and order fulfillment Firm orders are typically fulfilled as promptly as possible from the

conversion of available raw materials sub-components and work-in-process inventory for OEM orders and from

current on-hand finished goods inventory for aftermarket orders The dollar amount of such purchase order

releases on hand and not processed at any point in time is not believed to be significant based upon the timeframe

involved
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Our Global Operations

Successor

Year ended Year ended Period from August 19 to

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 December 31 2009

in millions

Net Net Net

Net Sales Property1 Net Sales Property1 Net Sales Property1
____________

United States 4993 506 4529 417 1083 430

OtherNorthAmerica 118 129 76 134 16 109

Europe Middle East

Africa2 7264 1107 5892 1045 1448 1047

Asia Pacific 2464 422 2177 325 590 272

South America 1202 151 1143 146 284 102
_______

Total 16041 2315 13817 2067 3421 1960 ________

Net property data represents property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation

Includes our country of domicile Jersey and the country of our principal executive offices the United Kingdom We had

no sales in Jersey in any period We had net sales of $866 million $690 million $159 million and $394 million in the

United Kingdom for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the period from August 19 to December 31 2009 the

period from January ito October 2009 respectively We had net property in the United Kingdom of $138 million

$137 million and $141 million as of December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Research Development and Intellectual Property

We maintain technical engineering centers in major regions of the world to develop and provide advanced

products processes and manufacturing support for all of our manufacturing sites and to provide our customers

with local engineering capabilities
and design development on global basis As of December 31 2011 we

employed over 17000 scientists engineers and technicians around the world Total expenditures for research and

development activities which include engineering were approximately $1.2 billion $1.0 billion $0.3 billion

and $1.0 billion for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the period from August 19 to December 31

2009 and the period from January to October 2009 respectively Each year we share some engineering

expenses with OEMs and government agencies While this amount varies from year-to-year
it is generally in the

range of 20% to 25% of engineering expenses

We believe that our engineering and technical expertise together with our emphasis on continuing research

and development allow us to use the latest technologies materials and processes to solve problems for our

customers and to bring new innovative products to market We believe that continued engineering activities are

critical to maintaining our pipeline of technologically advanced products Given our strong financial discipline

we seek to effectively manage fixed costs and efficiently rationalize capital spending by critically evaluating the

profit potential of new and existing customer programs including investment in innovation and technology We

maintain our engineering
activities around our focused product portfolio and allocate our capital and resources to

those products with distinctive technologies We expect expenditures for engineering activities to be

approximately $1.2 billion for the year
ended December 31 2012

We maintain large portfolio of patents
in the operation of our business While no individual patent or

group of patents taken alone is considered material to our business taken in the aggregate these patents provide

Information concerning principal geographic areas for our continuing operations is set forth below Net

sales data reflects the manufacturing location for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the periods from

August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to October 2009 Net property data is as of December 31

2011 2010 and 2009

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

Net Sales

3107

24

3330

1223

650

8334
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meaningful protection for our products and technical innovations Similarly while our trademarks particularly

those protecting the Delphi brand are important to identify our position in the industry we do not believe that

any of these are individually material to our business We are actively pursuing marketing opportunities to

commercialize and license our technology to both automotive and non-automotive industries and we have

selectively taken licenses from others to support our business interests These activities foster optimization of

intellectual property rights

Materials

We procure our raw materials from variety of suppliers around the world Generally we seek to obtain

materials in the region in which our products are manufactured in order to minimize transportation and other

costs The most significant raw materials we use to manufacture our products include aluminum copper and

resins As of December 31 2011 we have not experienced any significant shortages of raw materials and

normally do not carry inventories of such raw materials in excess of those reasonably required to meet our

production and shipping schedules

Commodity cost volatility most notably related to copper aluminum petroleum-based resin products and

fuel is challenge for us and our industry We are continually seeking to manage these and other material-related

cost pressures using combination of strategies including working with our suppliers to mitigate costs seeking

alternative product designs and material specifications combining our purchase requirements with our customers

and/or suppliers changing suppliers hedging of certain commodities and other means In the case of copper

which primarily affects our Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment and aluminum which primarily affects

our Thermal segment contract escalation clauses have enabled us to pass on some of the price increases to our

customers and thereby partially offset the impact of increased commodity costs on operating income for the

related products However other than in the case of copper and aluminum our overall success in passing

commodity cost increases on to our customers has been limited We will continue our efforts to pass market-

driven commodity cost increases to our customers in an effort to mitigate all or some of the adverse earnings

impacts including by seeking to renegotiate terms as contracts with our customers expire

Seasonality

Our business is moderately seasonal as our primary North American customers historically halt operations

for approximately two weeks in July and approximately one week in December Our European customers

generally reduce production during the months of July and August and for one week in December Shut-down

periods in the rest of the world generally vary by country In addition automotive production is traditionally

reduced in the months of July August and September due to the launch of parts production for new vehicle

models Accordingly our results reflect this seasonality

Employees

As of December 31 2011 we employed approximately 104000 people 5000 in the U.S and 99000

outside of the U.S 24000 salaried employees and 80000 hourly employees In addition we maintain an

alternative workforce of 39000 contract and temporary workers Our employees are represented worldwide by

numerous unions and works councils including the IUE-CWA the United Steel Paper and Forestry Rubber

Manufacturing Energy Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union and its Local Union 87L

together the USW and Confederacion De Trabajadores Mexicanos In the U.S our employees are

represented by only the TUE-CWA and the USW with which we have competitive wage and benefit packages

Environmental Compliance

We are subject to the requirements of U.S federal state and local and non-U.S environmental and safety

and health laws and regulations These include laws regulating air emissions water discharge hazardous

materials and waste management We have an environmental management structure designed to facilitate and
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support our compliance with these requirements globally Although it is our intent to comply with all such

requirements and regulations we cannot provide assurance that we are at all times in compliance Environmental

requirements are complex change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time Accordingly

we cannot assure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our

eventual environmental costs and liabilities will not be material

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for

the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous substances In addition to clean-up actions brought by U.S

federal state local and non-U.S agencies plaintiffs could raise personal injury or other private claims due to the

presence of hazardous substances on or from property We are currently in the process of investigating and

cleaning up some of our current or former sites In addition there may be soil or groundwater contamination at

several of our properties resulting from historical ongoing or nearby activities

At December 31 2011 December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the reserve for environmental

investigation and remediation was approximately $22 million $23 million and $21 million respectively of

which $7 million $8 million and $5 million respectively related to sites within the U.S We cannot ensure that

our eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of our current reserves

In the event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded our results of operations

could be materially affected

SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The name age as of February 2012 current positions and description of business experience of each of

our executive officers are listed below Our executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors and

hold office until their successors are elected and qualified or until the officers resignation or removal Positions

noted below reflect service to both Delphi Automotive PLC and Delphi Automotive LLP Each officer listed

below as senior vice president was vice president until February 2012

Mr Rodney Neal 58 is president and chief executive officer CEO of Delphi and is member of the

companys board of directors He was named president and CEO in October 2009 and became member of the

board in May 2011 Mr ONeal was president and CEO of Old Delphi from January 2007 He was president and

chief operating officer COO of Old Delphi from January 2005 Prior to the president and COO position Mr
ONeal served as president of Old Delphis former Dynamics Propulsion and Thermal sector from January 2003

and as executive vice president and president of Old Delphis former Safety Thermal and Electrical Architecture

sector from January 2000 Previously he served as vice president and president of Delphi Interior Systems since

November 1998 and general manager of the former Delphi Interior Lighting Systems since May 1997 Mr
ONeal serves on the board of directors for the Goodyear Tire Rubber Company and the Sprint/Nextel

Corporation

Mr Kevin Clark 49 is senior vice president and chief financial officer of Delphi He was named to his

current position in July 2010 Previously Mr Clark was founding partner of Liberty Lane Partners LLC

private-equity investment firm focused on building and improving middle-market companies Prior to Liberty

Lane Partners Mr Clark served as the chief financial officer of Fisher-Scientific International Inc

manufacturer distributor and service provider to the global healthcare market Mr Clark served as Fisher-

Scientifics chief financial officer from the companys initial public offering in 2001 through the completion of

its merger with Thermo Electron Corporation in 2006 Prior to becoming chief financial officer Mr Clark served

as Fisher-Scientifics corporate controller and treasurer

Mr Majdi Abulaban 48 is senior vice president of Delphi and president of Delphi Electrical/Electronic

Architecture E/EA effective February 2012 He also continues to serve as president of Delphi Asia-Pacific

Mr Abulaban was most recently president of the Connection Systems product business unit for Delphi EIEA

Mr Abulaban was appointed managing director for the former Packard Electric Systems Asia Pacific operations
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and became chairman of the board for Delphi Packard Electric Systems Co Ltd China in July 2002 He

previously held variety of assignments including business line executive for cockpits at Old Delphis former

Safety Interior division since 2001 and director of Asia Pacific Operations for Delphi Harrison Thermal

Systems since January 2000

Mr James A.Bertrand 54 is senior vice president of Delphi and president of Delphi Thermal Systems He

was named to his current position in October 2009 and was previously vice president of Old Delphi and president

of Delphi Thermal Systems since May 2008 Earlier Mr Bertrand served dual role beginning in January 2003

as president of Delphi Automotive Holdings Group and president of Old Delphis former Safety Interior

Systems to which he was named president in January 2000

Mr Kevin Butler 56 is senior vice president of human resource management and global business

services for Delphi He was named to his current position in November 2009 and previously served as vice

president human resource management and an officer of Old Delphi from 2000 to 2009 From 1997 to 2009 Mr
Butler was general director of human resources at Delphi Delco Electronics Systems

Mr Steven Kiefer 48 is senior vice president of Delphi and president of Delphi Powertrain Systems He

was named to his current position in July 201 land previously served as general director of engineering and

executive director for the HVAC product line within Delphi Thermal Systems from 2009 until his current

assignment In 2005 Mr Kiefer was named managing director Delphi Thermal Systems-Europe Previously

Mr Kiefer served as chief engineer and business line executive in Delphis Powertrain division in Luxembourg

and in the Asia Pacific and North America regions

Ms Làcia Moretti 47 is senior vice president of Delphi and president of Delphi Product and Service

Solutions DPSS She was named to her current position in August 2011 and was most recently director of the

Global Independent Aftermarket product business unit at DPSS position she held since September 2010

Previously she held variety of assignments including director of Aftermarket for South America director of

global marketing for DPSS and managing director for DPSS Europe Ms Moretti began her career at Delphi at

Delphi Powertrain Systems in 1998

Mr Jeffrey Owens 57 is senior vice president and chief technology officer of Delphi He was most

recently vice president of Delphi Electronics and Safety since October 2009 and waspreviously vice president of

Old Delphi and president of Delphi Electronics and Safety from September 2001 to September 2009 He also

served as president of Delphi Asia Pacific from 2006 to 2009

Mr David She rbin 52 is senior vice president general counsel secretary and chief compliance officer

of Delphi He was named to his current position in October 2009 and previously was vice president general

counsel of Old Delphi from October 2005 to October 2009 He was appointed chief compliance officer in

January 2006 Prior to joining Delphi Mr Sherbin was vice president general counsel and secretary for Pulte

Homes Inc national homebuilder from January 2005 through September 2005 Mr Sherbin joined Federal-

Mogul Corporation in 1997 and was named senior vice president general counsel secretary and chief

compliance officer in 2003

Mr James Spencer 58 is senior vice president of Delphi and sector president of Electrical and

Electronics He was named to his current position in February 2012 and was most recently vice president and

president of Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture since October 2009 Mr Spencer was vice president of Old

Delphi and president of Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture formerly Packard Electric Systems since 1999

and previously was president of Delphi Asia Pacific from 1999 to 2000 He also has served as president of

Delphi Latin America since July 2006
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Mr Jugal Vijayvargiya 43 is senior vice president of Delphi and president of Delphi Electronics and

Safety ES He was named to his current position in February 2012 and was most recently vice president of the

Infotainment Driver Interface product business unit PBU for Delphi ES since August 2009 He was

previously general director of the Controls Security PBU since 2006 Earlier Mr Vijayvargiya was global

business line executive BLE for Body Security Mechatronics at Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture

Prior to his BLE assignment Mr Vijayvargiya was director of program management before being named product

line manager of Audio Systems in 2002
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are certain risks and uncertainties that could adversely affect our results of operations or

financial condition and cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking

statements made by the Company Also refer to the Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Infomiation in this annual report

Risks Related to Business Environment and Economic Conditions

The cyclical nature of automotive sales and production can adversely affect our business

Our business is directly related to automotive sales and automotive vehicle production by our customers

Automotive sales and production are highly cyclical and in addition to general economic conditions also depend
on other factors such as consumer confidence and consumer preferences Lower global automotive sales result in

substantially all of our automotive OEM customers significantly lowering vehicle production schedules which

has direct impact on our earnings and cash flows The most recent example of this was the 2009 downturn in

which North American and Western Europe automotive production declined approximately 43% and 26%
respectively below production levels in 2007 While the industry is recovering from the 2009 downturn

production volumes in North America and Western Europe remain below levels experienced prior to 2009 In

addition automotive sales and production can be affected by labor relations issues regulatory requirements

trade agreements the availability of consumer financing and other factors Economic declines that result in

significant reduction in automotive sales and production by our customers have in the past had and may in the

future have an adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Our sales are also affected by inventory levels and OEMs production levels We cannot predict when
OEMs will decide to increase or decrease inventory levels or whether new inventory levels will approximate

historical inventory levels Uncertainty and other unexpected fluctuations could have material adverse effect on

our business and financial condition

prolonged economic downturn or economic uncertainty could adversely affect our business and cause us

to require additional sources offinancing which may not be available

Our sensitivity to economic cycles and any related fluctuation in the businesses of our customers or

potential customers may have material adverse effect on our financial condition results of operations or cash

flows If global economic conditions deteriorate or economic uncertainty increases our customers and potential

customers may experience deterioration of their businesses which may result in the delay or cancellation of

plans to purchase our products If vehicle production were to remain at low levels for an extended period of time

or if cash losses for customer defaults rise our cash flow could be adversely impacted which could result in our

needing to seek additional financing to continue our operations There can be no assurance that we would be able

to secure such financing on terms acceptable to us or at all

Any changes in consumer credit availability or cost of borrowing could adversely affect our business

Declines in the availability of consumer credit and increases in consumer borrowing costs have negatively

impacted global automotive sales and resulted in lower production volumes in the past Substantial declines in

automotive sales and production by our customers could have material adverse effect on our business results of

operations and financial condition

drop in the market share and changes in product mix offered by our customers can impact our revenues

We are dependent on the continued growth viability and financial stability of our customers Our customers

generally are OEMs in the automotive industry This industry is subject to rapid technological change vigorous

competition short product life cycles and cyclical and reduced consumer demand patterns When our customers
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are adversely affected by these factors we may be similarly affected to the extent that our customers reduce the

volume of orders for our products As result of changes impacting our customers sales mix can shift which

may have either favorable or unfavorable impact on revenue and would include shifts in regional growth shifts

in OEM sales demand as well as shifts in consumer demand related to vehicle segment purchases and content

penetration For instance shift in sales demand favoring particular OEMs vehicle model for which we do not

have supply contract may negatively impact our revenue shift in regional sales demand toward certain

markets could favorably impact the sales of those of our customers that have large market share in those

regions which in turn would be expected to have favorable impact on our revenue

The mix of vehicle offerings by our OEM customers also impacts our sales decrease in consumer

demand for specific types of vehicles where we have traditionally provided significant content could have

significant effect on our business and financial condition Our sales of products in the regions in which our

customers operate also depend on the success of these customers in those regions

Declines in the market share or business of Daimler Ford GM PSA and VW may have disproportionate

adverse impact on our revenues and profitability

Daimler Ford GM PSA and VW accounted for approximately 47% of our total net sales in the year ended

December 31 2011 Accordingly our revenues may be disproportionately affected by decreases in any of their

businesses or market share Because our customers typically have no obligation to purchase specific quantity of

parts decline in the production levels of any of our major customers particularly with respect to models for

which we are significant supplier could disproportionately reduce our sales and thereby adversely affect our

financial condition operating results and cash flows See Item Supply Relationships with Our Customers

Continued pricing pressures OEM cost reduction initiatives and the ability of OEMs to re-source or cancel

vehicle programs may result in lower than anticipated margins or losses which may have significant

negative impact on our business

Cost-cutting initiatives adopted by our customers result in increased downward pressure on pricing Our

customer supply agreements generally require step-downs in component pricing over the period of production

typically one to two percent per year In addition our customers often reserve the right to terminate their supply

contracts for convenience which enhances their ability to obtain price reductions OEMs have also possessed

significant leverage over their suppliers including us because the automotive component supply industry is

highly competitive serves limited number of customers has high fixed cost base and historically has had

excess capacity Based on these factors and the fact that our customers product programs typically last

number of years
and are anticipated to encompass large volumes our customers are able to negotiate favorable

pricing Accordingly as Tier supplier we are subject to substantial continuing pressure from OEMs to reduce

the price of our products It is possible that pricing pressures beyond our expectations could intensify as OEMs

pursue restructuring and cost cutting initiatives If we are unable to generate sufficient production cost savings in

the future to offset price reductions our gross margin and profitability would be adversely affected See Item

Supply Relationships with Our Customers for detailed discussion of our supply agreements with our customers

Our supply agreements with our OEM customers are generally requirements contracts and decline in the

production requirements of any of our customers and inparticular our largest customers could adversely

impact our revenues and profitability

We receive OEM purchase orders for specific components supplied for particular vehicles In most

instances our OEM customers agree to purchase
their requirements for specific products but are not required to

purchase any minimum amount of products from us The contracts we have entered into with most of our

customers have terms ranging from one year to the life of the model usually three to seven years although

customers often reserve the right to terminate for convenience Therefore significant decrease in demand for

certain key models or group of related models sold by any of our major customers or the ability of

manufacturer to re-source and discontinue purchasing from us for particular model or group of models could
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have material adverse effect on us To the extent that we do not maintain our existing level of business with our

largest customers because of decline in their production requirements or because the contracts expire or are

terminated for convenience we will need to attract new customers or win new business with existing customers
or our results of operations and financial condition will be adversely affected See Item Supply Relationships
with Our Customers for detailed discussion of our supply agreements with our customers

We have invested substantial resources in markets where we expect growth and we may be unable to timely
alter our strategies should such expectations not be realized

Our future growth is dependent on our making the right investments at the right time to support product

development and manufacturing capacity in areas where we can support our customer base We have identified

the Asia Pacific and South American regions and China Brazil and India in particular as key markets likely to

experience substantial growth and accordingly have made and expect to continue to make substantial

investments both directly and through participation in various partnerships and joint ventures in numerous

manufacturing operations technical centers and other infrastructure to support anticipated growth in those

regions If we are unable to deepen existing and develop additional customer relationships in these regions we
may not only fail to realize expected rates of return on our existing investments but we may incur losses on such

investments and be unable to timely redeploy the invested capital to take advantage of other markets potentially

resulting in lost market share to our competitors Our results will also suffer if these regions do not grow as

quickly as we anticipate

Our business in China is subject to aggressive competition and is sensitive to economic and market
conditions

Maintaining strong position in the Chinese market is key component of our global growth strategy The
automotive supply market in China is highly competitive with competition from many of the largest global

manufacturers and numerous smaller domestic manufacturers As the size of the Chinese market continues to

increase we anticipate that additional competitors both international and domestic will seek to enter the Chinese

market and that existing market participants will act aggressively to increase their market share Increased

competition may result in price reductions reduced margins and our inability to gain or hold market share In

addition our business in China is sensitive to economic and market conditions that drive sales volume in China
If we are unable to maintain our position in the Chinese market or if vehicle sales in China decrease or do not

continue to increase our business and financial results could be materially adversely affected

Disruptions in the supply of raw materials and other supplies that we and our customers use in our products

may adversely affect our profitability

We and our customers use broad
range of materials and supplies including copper aluminum and other

metals petroleum-based resins chemicals electronic components and semiconductors significant disruption
in the supply of these materials for any reason could decrease our production and shipping levels which could

materially increase our operating costs and materially decrease our profit margins

We as with other component manufacturers in the automotive industry ship products to our customers
vehicle assembly plants throughout the world so they are delivered on just-in-time basis in order to maintain

low inventory levels Our suppliers also use similarmethod However this just-in-time method makes the

logistics supply chain in our industry very complex and very vulnerable to disruptions

Such disruptions could be caused by any one of myriad of potential problems such as closures of one of

our or our suppliers plants or critical manufacturing lines due to strikes mechanical breakdowns electrical

outages fires explosions or political upheaval as well as logistical complications due to weather volcanic

eruptions or other natural or nuclear disasters mechanical failures delayed customs processing and more
Additionally as we grow in low cost countries the risk for such disruptions is heightened The lack of even
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small single subcomponent necessary to manufacture one of our products for whatever reason could force us to

cease production even for prolonged period Similarly potential quality issue could force us to halt deliveries

while we validate the products Even where products are ready to be shipped or have been shipped delays may

arise before they reach our customer Our customers may halt or delay their production for the same reason if one

of their other suppliers fails to deliver necessary components This may cause our customers in turn to suspend

their orders or instruct us to suspend delivery of our products which may adversely affect our financial

performance

When we fail to make timely deliveries in accordance with our contractual obligations we generally have to

absorb our own costs for identifying and solving the root cause problem as well as expeditiously producing

replacement components or products Generally we must also carry
the costs associated with catching up such

as overtime and premium freight

Additionally if we are the cause for customer being forced to halt production the customer may seek to

recoup
all of its losses and expenses from us These losses and expenses could be significant and may include

consequential losses such as lost profits Any supply-chain disruption however small could potentially cause the

complete shutdown of an assembly line of one of our customers and any such shutdown that is due to causes that

are within our control could expose us to material claims of compensation Where customer halts production

because of another supplier failing to deliver on time it is unlikely we will be fully compensated if at all

Adverse developments affecting one or more of our suppliers
could harm our profitability

Any significant disruption in our supplier relationships particularly relationships with sole-source suppliers

could harm our profitability Furthermore some of our suppliers may not be able to handle the commodity cost

volatility and/or sharply changing volumes while still performing as we expect To the extent our suppliers

experience supply disruptions there is risk for delivery delays production delays production issues or delivery

of non-conforming products by our suppliers Even where these risks do not materialize we may incur costs as

we try to make contingency plans for such risks

The loss of business with respect to or the lack of commercial success of vehicle modelfor which we are

significant supplier could adversely affect our financial performance

Although we receive purchase orders from our customers these purchase orders generally provide for the

supply of customers requirements for particular
vehicle model and assembly plant rather than for the

purchase of specific quantity of products The loss of business with respect to or the lack of commercial

success of vehicle model for which we are significant supplier could reduce our sales and thereby adversely

affect our financial condition operating results and cash flows

We operate in the highly competitive automotive supply industiy

The global automotive component supply industry is highly competitive Competition is based primarily on

price technology quality delivery and overall customer service There can be no assurance that our products

will be able to compete successfully with the products of our competitors Furthermore the rapidly evolving

nature of the markets in which we compete may attract new entrants particularly in low-cost countries such as

China Brazil India and Russia Additionally consolidation in the automotive industry may lead to decreased

product purchases
from us As result our sales levels and margins could be adversely affected by pricing

pressures
from OEMs and pricing actions of competitors These factors led to selective resourcing of business to

competitors in the past
and may also do so in the future In addition any of our competitors may foresee the

course of market development more accurately than us develop products that are superior to our products have

the ability to produce similarproducts at lower cost than us or adapt more quickly than us to new technologies

or evolving customer requirements As result our products may not be able to compete successfully with their

products These trends may adversely affect our sales as well as the profit margins on our products
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Increases in costs of the materials and other supplies that we use in our products may have negative
impact on our business

Significant changes in the markets where we purchase materials components and supplies for the

production of our products may adversely affect our profitability particularly in the event of significant increases
in demand where there is not corresponding increase in supply inflation or other pricing increases In recent
periods there have been significant fluctuations in the global prices of copper aluminum and petroleum-based
resin products and fuel charges which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable impact on our
business results of operations or financial condition Continuing volatility may have adverse effects on our
business results of operations or financial condition We will continue efforts to pass some supply and material
cost increases onto our customers although competitive and market pressures have limited our ability to do that
particularly with domestic OEMs and may prevent us from doing so in the future because our customers are
generally not obligated to accept price increases that we may desire to pass along to them Even where we are
able to pass price increases through to the customer in some cases there is lapse of time before we are able to

do so The inability to pass on price increases to our customers when raw material prices increase rapidly or to

significantly higher than historic levels could adversely affect our operating margins and cash flow possibly
resulting in lower

operating income and profitability We expect to be
continually challenged as demand for our

principal raw materials and other supplies including electronic components is significantly impacted by demand
in emerging markets particularly in China Brazil India and Russia and by the anticipated global economic

recovery We cannot provide assurance that fluctuations in commodity prices will not otherwise have material
adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations or cause significant fluctuations in quarterly and
annual results of operations

Our hedging activities to address commodity price fluctuations may not be successful in offsetting future
increases in those costs or may reduce or eliminate the benefits of any decreases in those costs

In order to mitigate short-term volatility in
operating results due to the aforementioned commodity price

fluctuations we hedge portion of near-term exposure to certain raw materials used in production The results of
our hedging practice could be positive neutral or negative in any period depending on price changes in the

hedged exposures Our hedging activities are not designed to mitigate long-term commodity price fluctuations
and therefore will not protect from long-term commodity price increases Our future hedging positions may not
correlate to actual raw material costs which could cause acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gains and
losses on hedging positions in

operating results

We face manufacturing challenges

The volume and timing of sales to our customers may vary due to variation in demand for our customers
products our customers attempts to manage their inventory design changes changes in our customers

manufacturing strategy and acquisitions of or consolidations among customers Due in part to these factors

many of our customers do not commit to long-term production schedules Our inability to forecast the level of
customer orders with certainty makes it difficult to schedule production and maximize utilization of

manufacturing capacity

We rely on third-party suppliers for the components used in our products and we rely on third-party
manufacturers to manufacture certain of our assemblies and finished products Our results of operations financial
condition and cash flows could be adversely affected if our third party suppliers lack sufficient quality control or
if there are significant changes in their financial or business condition If our third-party manufacturers fail to

deliver products parts and components of sufficient quality on time and at reasonable prices we could have
difficulties fulfilling our orders sales and profits could decline and our commercial reputation could be
damaged

From time to time we have underutilized our manufacturing lines This excess capacity means we incur
increased fixed costs in our products relative to the net revenue we generate which could have an adverse effect
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on our results of operations particularly during economic downturns If we are unable to improve utilization

levels for these manufacturing lines and conectly manage capacity the increased expense
levels will have an

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations In addition some of our

manufacturing lines are located in China or other foreign countries that are subject to number of additional risks

and uncertainties including increasing labor costs and political social and economic instability

We may not be able to respond quickly enough to changes in regulations technology and technological

risks and to develop our intellectual property
into commercially viable products

Changes in legislative regulatory or industry requirements or in competitive technologies may render

certain of our products obsolete or less attractive Our ability to anticipate changes in technology and regulatory

standards and to successfully develop and introduce new and enhanced products on timely basis are significant

factors in our ability to remain competitive
and to maintain or increase our revenues We cannot provide

assurance that certain of our products will not become obsolete or that we will be able to achieve the

technological advances that may be necessary
for us to remain competitive and maintain or increase our revenues

in the future We are also subject to the risks generally associated with new product introductions and

applications including lack of market acceptance delays in product development or production
and failure of

products to operate properly The pace
of our development and introduction of new and improved products

depends on our ability to implement successfully improved technological innovations in design engineering and

manufacturing which requires extensive capital investment Any capital expenditure cuts in these areas that we

may determine to implement in the future to reduce costs and conserve cash could reduce our ability to develop

and implement improved technological innovations which may materially reduce demand for our products

To compete effectively in the automotive supply industry we must be able to launch new products to meet

changing consumer preferences
and our customers demand in timely and cost-effective manner Our ability to

respond to competitive pressures
and react quickly to other major changes in the marketplace including in the

case of automotive sales increased gasoline prices or consumer desire for and availability of vehicles using

alternative fuels is also risk to our future financial performance

We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to install and certify the equipment needed to produce

products
for new product programs in time for the start of production or that the transitioning of our

manufacturing facilities and resources to full production
under new product programs will not impact production

rates or other operational efficiency measures at our facilities Development and manufacturing schedules are

difficult to predict and we cannot provide assurance that our customers will execute on schedule the launch of

their new product programs for which we might supply products Our failure to successfully launch new

products or failure by our customers to successfully launch new programs could adversely affect our results

Changes in factors that impact the determination of our non-U.S pension liabilities may adversely affect

us

Certain of our non-U.S subsidiaries sponsor
defined benefit pension plans which generally provide benefits

based on negotiated amounts for each year of service Our primary non-U.S plans are located in Mexico and the

United Kingdom and were underfunded by $319 million as of December 31 2011 The funding requirements of

these benefit plans and the related expense
reflected in our financial statements are affected by several factors

that are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty and volatility including governmental regulation In addition

to the defined benefit pension plans we have retirement obligations driven by requirements
in many of the

countries in which we operate
These legally required plans require payments at the time benefits are due

Obligations net of plan assets related to the defined benefit pension plans and statutorily required retirement

obligations totaled $609 million at December 31 2011 of which $16 million is included in accrued liabilities and

$593 million is included in long-term liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet Key assumptions used to value

these benefit obligations and the cost of providing
such benefits funding requirements and expense recognition
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include the discount rate and the expected long-term rate of return on pension assets If the actual trends in these

factors are less favorable than our assumptions this could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and

financial condition

We may suffer future asset impairment and other restructuring charges

We have taken restructuring actions in recent years to realign and resize our production capacity and cost

structure to meet current and projected operational and market requirements If we are required to take further

restructuring actions the charges related to these actions may have material adverse effect on our results of

operations and financial condition We cannot assure that any future restructurings will be completed as planned

or achieve the desired results Additionally from time to time in the past we have recorded asset impairment

losses relating to specific plants and operations Generally we record asset impairment losses when we

determine that our estimates of the future undiscounted cash flows from an operation will not be sufficient to

recover the carrying value of that facilitys building fixed assets and production tooling We cannot assure that

we will not incur such charges in the future

Employee strikes and labor-related disruptions involving us or one or more of our customers or suppliers

may adversely affect our operations

Our business is labor-intensive and utilizes number of work councils and other represented employees

strike or other form of significant work disruption by our employees would likely have an adverse effect on our

ability tooperate our business labor dispute involving us or one or more of our customers or suppliers or that

could otherwise affect our operations could reduce our sales and harm our profitability labor dispute involving

another supplier to our customers that results in slowdown or closure of our customers assembly plants

where our products are included in the assembled parts or vehicles could also adversely affect our business and

harm our profitability In addition our inability or the inability of any of our customers our suppliers or our

customers suppliers to negotiate an extension of collective bargaining agreement upon its expiration could

reduce our sales and harm our profitability Significant increases in labor costs as result of the renegotiation of

collective bargaining agreements could also adversely affect our business and harm our profitability

We may lose or fail to attract and retain key salaried employees and management personneL

An important aspect of our competitiveness is our ability to attract and retain key salaried employees and

management personnel Our ability to do so is influenced by variety of factors including the compensation we

award and the competitive market position of our overall compensation package We may not be as successful as

competitors at recruiting assimilating and retaining highly skilled personnel The loss of the services of any

member of senior management or key salaried employee could have an adverse effect on our business

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as result of our substantial global operations which may

affect our financial results

We have currency exposures related to buying selling and financing in currencies other than the local

currencies of the countries in which we operate Approximately 69% of our net revenue for the year ended

December 31 2011 was invoiced in currencies other than the U.S dollar and we expect net revenue from

non-U.S markets to continue to represent significant portion of our net revenue Price increases caused by

currency exchange rate fluctuations may make our products less competitive or have an adverse effect on our

margins Currency exchange rate fluctuations may also disrupt the business of our suppliers by making their

purchases of raw materials more expensive and more difficult to finance

Historically we have reduced our exposure by aligning our costs in the same currency as our revenues or if

that is impracticable through financial instruments that provide offsets or limits to our exposures which are

opposite to the underlying transactions However any measures that we may implement to reduce the effect of

volatile currencies and other risks of our global operations may not be effective
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In addition we have significant business in Europe and transact much of this business in the Euro currency

including sales and purchase contracts There have been recent concerns over the stability of the Euro as

currency and the economic outlook for both Euro functional countries as well as non-Euro countries Given the

broad
range

of possible outcomes it is difficult to fully assess the implications on our business Some of the

potential outcomes could significantly impact our operations In the event of country redenominating its

currency away from the Euro the potential impact could be material to operations We cannot provide assurance

that fluctuations in
currency exposures

will not have material adverse effect on our financial condition or

results of operations or cause significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual results of operations

We face risks associated with doing business in non-U.S jurisdictions

The majority of our manufacturing and distribution facilities are in countries outside of the U.S including

Mexico and countries in Asia Pacific Eastern and Western Europe South America and Northern Africa We also

purchase raw materials and other supplies from many different countries around the world For the year ended

December 31 2011 approximately 69% of our net revenue came from sales outside the United States

International operations are subject to certain risks inherent in doing business abroad including

exposure to local economic political and labor conditions

unexpected changes in laws regulations trade or monetary or fiscal policy including interest rates

foreign currency exchange rates and changes in the rate of inflation in the U.S and other foreign

countries

tariffs quotas customs and other import or export restrictions and other trade barriers

expropriation and nationalization

difficulty of enforcing agreements collecting receivables and protecting assets through non-U.S legal

systems

reduced intellectual property protection

limitations on repatriation of earnings

withholding and other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries

investment restrictions or requirements

export and import restrictions

violence and civil unrest in local countries and

compliance with the requirements of applicable anti-bribery laws including the U.S Foreign Corrupt

Practices Act

Additionally our global operations may also be adversely affected by political events domestic or

international terrorist events and hostilities or complications due to natural or nuclear disasters These

uncertainties could have material adverse effect on the continuity of our business and our results of operations

and financial condition

Increasing our manufacturing footprint in Asian markets including China and our business relationships

with Asian automotive manufacturers are important elements of our strategy In addition our strategy includes

24



increasing revenue and expanding our manufacturing footprint in lower-cost regions As result our exposure to

the risks described above may be greater in the future The likelihood of such occurrences and their potential

impact on us vary
from country to country and are unpredictable

If we fail to manage our growth effectively or to integrate successfully any future acquisition or strategic

alliance into our business our business could be harmed

We expect to pursue acquisitions and strategic alliances that leverage our technology capabilities enhance

our customer base geographic penetration and scale to complement our current businesses While we believe

that such transactions are an integral part of our long-term strategy there are risks and uncertainties related to

these activities Such risks and uncertainties include difficulty in integrating acquired operations technology and

products and potential unknown liabilities associated with the acquired company

We depend on information technology to conduct our business Any significant disruption could impact our

business

Our ability to keep our business operating effectively depends on the functional and efficient operation of

information technology and telecommunications systems We rely on these systems to make variety of

day-to-day business decisions as well as to track transactions billings payments and inventory Our systems as

well as those of our customers suppliers partners and service providers are susceptible to interruptions

including those caused by systems failures malicious computer software malware and other natural or

man-made incidents or disasters which may be prolonged We are also susceptible to security breaches that may

go undetected Although we have taken precautions to mitigate such events including geographically diverse

data centers and redundant infrastructure significant or large-scale interruption of our information technology

could adversely affect our ability to manage and keep our operations running efficiently and effectively An

incident that results in wider or sustained disruption to our business could have material adverse effect on our

business financial condition and results of operations

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares

The price of our ordinary shares is subject to volatility

Various factors could cause the market price of our ordinary shares to fluctuate substantially including

general financial market changes regional economic environments changes in governmental regulation

significant automotive industry announcements or developments the introduction of new products or

technologies by us or our competitors and changes in other conditions or trends in the automotive industry

Other factors that could cause the price of our ordinary shares to fluctuate could be actual or anticipated

variations in our or our competitors quarterly and annual financial results financial results failing to meet

expectations of analysts or investors changes in securities analysts estimates of the our future performance or of

that of our competitors and the general health of the automotive industry Also the increase or decrease to the

number of freely tradable shares in the public market could cause the market price of our ordinary shares to

fluctuate

Future sales of ordinary shares by existing shareholders could depress the market price of our ordinary

shares

We have 328244510 ordinary shares outstanding of which 114549400 ordinary shares are freely tradable

in the public market unless purchased by any of our affiliates including the 90470573 shares that were released

from lock-up restrictions on February 14 2012 and registered for resale under the Securities Act We expect the

remaining 213695110 ordinary shares representing approximately 65% of our total outstanding ordinary shares

will become available for resale in the public market in May 2012 The holders of all the remaining 213695110

ordinary shares including our directors remain subject to lock-up restrictions until May 15 2012 The lock-up
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agreements are subject to extension in the case of an earnings release or material news or material event

relating to us Goldman Sachs Co and J.P Morgan Securities LLC may in their sole discretion and without

notice release all or any portion of the ordinary shares subject to lock-up agreements As restrictions on resale

end the market price of our ordinary shares could drop significantly if the holders of these shares sell them or are

perceived by the market as intending to sell them We are required to file shelf registration statement prior to

expiration of the lock-up period on May 15 2012 to permit the resale of such remaining shares Any such shares

not registered for resale will be freely tradable subject to volume and manner of sale requirements on May 22
2012 The increase or decrease to the number of freely tradable shares in the public market could cause the

market price of our ordinary shares to fluctuate and could also make it more difficult for us to raise additional

funds through future offerings of our ordinary shares or other securities

Risks Related to Legal Regulatory Tax and Accounting Matters

We may incur material losses and costs as result of warranty claims and product liability and intellectual

property infringement actions that may be brought against us

We face an inherent business risk of exposure to warranty claims and product liability in the event that our

products fail to perform as expected and in the case of product liability such failure of our products results in

bodily injury and/or property damage The fabrication of the products we manufacture is complex and precise

process Our customers specify quality performance and reliability standards If flaws in either the design or

manufacture of our products were to occur we could experience rate of failure in our products that could result

in significant delays in shipment and product re-work or replacement costs Although we engage in extensive

product quality programs and
processes

these may not be sufficient to avoid product failures which could cause

usto

lose net revenue

incur increased costs such as warranty expense and costs associated with customer support

experience delays cancellations or rescheduling of orders for our products

experience increased product returns or discounts or

damage our reputation

all of which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations

If any of our products are or are alleged to be defective we may be required to participate in recall

involving such products Each vehicle manufacturer has its own practices regarding product recalls and other

product liability actions relating to its suppliers However as suppliers become more integrally involved in the

vehicle design process
and assume more of the vehicle assembly functions OEMs continue to look to their

suppliers for contribution when faced with recalls and product liability claims recall claim brought against us
or product liability claim brought against us in excess of our available insurance may have material adverse

effect on our business OEMs also require their suppliers to guarantee or warrant their products and bear the costs

of repair and replacement of such products under new vehicle warranties Depending on the terms under which

we supply products to vehicle manufacturer vehicle manufacturer may attempt to hold us responsible for

some or all of the repair or replacement costs of defective products under new vehicle warranties when the OEM
asserts that the product supplied did not perform as warranted Although we cannot assure that the future costs of

warranty claims by our customers will not be material we believe our established reserves are adequate to cover

potential warranty settlements Our warranty reserves are based on our best estimates of amounts necessary to

settle future and existing claims We regularly evaluate the level of these reserves and adjust them when

appropriate However the final amounts determined to be due related to these matters could differ materially

from our recorded estimates
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In addition as we adopt new technology we face an inherent risk of exposure to the claims of others that we

have allegedly violated their intellectual property rights We cannot assure that we will not experience any

material warranty product liability or intellectual property claim losses in the future or that we will not incur

significant costs to defend such claims

We may be adversely affected by environmental regulation litigation or other liabilities

We are subject to various U.S federal state and local and non-U.S environmental health and safety laws

and regulations governing among other things

the generation storage handling use transportation presence of or exposure to hazardous materials

the emission anddischarge of hazardous materials into the ground air or water

the incorporation of certain chemical substances into our products including electronic equipment and

the health and safety of our employees

We are also required to obtain permits from governmental authorities for certain operations We cannot

assure you that we have been or will be at all times in complete compliance with such laws regulations and

permits If we violate or fail to comply with these laws regulations or permits we could be fined or otherwise

sanctioned by regulators We could also be held liable for any and all consequences arising out of human

exposure to hazardous substances or other environmental damage

Certain environmental laws impose liability sometimes regardless of fault for investigating or cleaning up

contamination on or emanating from our currently or formerly owned leased or operated property as well as for

damages to property or natural resources and for personal injury arising out of such contamination These

environmental laws also assess liability on persons who arrange
for hazardous substances to be sent to third party

disposal or treatment facilities when such facilities are found to be contaminated At this time we are involved in

various stages of investigation and cleanup related to environmental remediation matters at number of present

and former facilities in the U.S and abroad The ultimate cost to us of site cleanups is difficult to predict given

the uncertainties regarding the extent of the required cleanup the potential for ongoing environmental monitoring

and maintenance that could be required for many years the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations

alternative cleanup methods and potential agreements that could be reached with governmental and third parties

While we have environmental reserves of approximately $22 million at December 31 2011 for the cleanup of

presently-known environmental contamination conditions it cannot be guaranteed that actual costs will not

significantly exceed these reserves We also could be named potentially responsible party at additional sites in

the future and the costs associated with such future sites may be material

In addition environmental laws are complex change frequently and have tended to become more stringent

over time While we have budgeted for future capital and operating expenditures to maintain compliance with

environmental laws we cannot assure that environmental laws will not change or become more stringent in the

future Therefore we cannot assure that our costs of complying with current and future environmental and health

and safety laws and our liabilities arising from past or future releases of or exposure to hazardous substances

will not adversely affect our business results of operations or financial condition For example adoption of

greenhouse gas
rules in jurisdictions in which we operate facilities could require installation of emission controls

acquisition of emission credits emission reductions or other measures that could be costly and could also

impact utility rates and increase the amount we spend annually for energy

We may identify the need for additional environmental remediation or demolition obligations relating to

facility divestiture closure and decommissioning activities

As we sell close and/or demolish facilities around the world environmental investigations and assessments

will continue to be performed We may identify previously unknown environmental conditions or further
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delineate known conditions that may require remediation or additional costs related to demolition or

decommissioning such as abatement of asbestos containing materials or removal of polychiorinated biphenyls or

storage tanks Such costs could exceed our reserves

We are involved from time to time in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes which

could have an adverse impact on our profitability and consolidated financial position

We are involved in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes that from time to time are

significant These are typically claims that arise in the normal course of business including without limitation

commercial or contractual disputes including warranty claims and other disputes with customers and suppliers

intellectual property matters personal injury claims environmental issues tax matters and employment matters

There is also pending antitrust investigation in the European Union

In addition we conduct significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal

labor social security environmental tax and customs laws as well as variety of state and local laws While we

believe we comply with such laws they are complex subject to varying interpretations and we are often

engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular

circumstances As of December 31 2011 related claims totaling approximately $225 million using

December 31 2011 foreign currency rates had been asserted against us As of December 31 2011 we

maintained reserves for these asserted claims of approximately $40 million using December 31 2011 foreign

currency rates

We are also subject to class action complaints filed in various U.S federal district courts alleging violations

of U.S antitrust laws and are subject to pending antitrust investigation in the European Union related to the

supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers for which no accruals have been recorded as of December 31

2011

While we believe our reserves are adequate the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ

materially from our recorded estimates and our results of operations could be materially affected

For further information regarding our legal matters see Item Legal Proceedings No assurance can be

given that such proceedings and claims will not have material adverse effect on our profitability and

consolidated financial position

Developments or assertions by us or against us relating to intellectual property rights could materially

impact our business

We own significant intellectual property including large number of patents and tradenames and are

involved in numerous licensing arrangements Our intellectual property plays an important role in maintaining

our competitive position in number of the markets we serve Developments or assertions by or against us

relating to intellectual property rights could negatively impact our business Significant technological

developments by others also could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations and

financial condition

There is significant risk that the IRS will assert that Delphi Automotive LLP and as result Delphi

Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes If we

were unsuccessful in defending against this assertion this could result in material impact on our future

tax liability

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to its initial public offering On

November 22 2011 in conjunction with the completion of its initial public offering by the selling shareholders
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all of the outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLP was exchanged for ordinary shares in Delphi Automotive
PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC
Delphi Automotive PLC is United Kingdom U.K resident taxpayer and as such is not generally subject to

U.K tax on remitted foreign earnings

Delphi Automotive LLP which acquired the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor on
October 2009 the Acquisition Date was established on August 19 2009 as limited liability partnership

incorporated under the laws of England and Wales At the time of its formation Delphi Automotive LLP elected

to be treated as partnership for U.S federal income tax purposes Prior to the Acquisition Date the Internal

Revenue Service the IRS issued Notice 2009-78 the Notice announcing its intent to issue regulations
under Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code with an effective date prior
to the Acquisition Date If regulations as described in the Notice are issued with the effective date indicated in

the Notice and with no exceptions for transactions that were subject to binding commitments on that date we
believe there is significant risk that the IRS may assert that Delphi Automotive LLP and as result Delphi
Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes retroactive to

the Acquisition Date If Delphi Automotive LLP were treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income

tax purposes we expect that although we are incorporated under the laws of Jersey and tax resident in the

U.K we would also be treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes

Delphi Automotive LLP has filed informational U.S federal partnership tax returns for 2009 and 2010 In

light of the Notice the IRS is currently reviewing whether Section 7874 applies to Delphi Automotive LLPs
acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor We believe after consultation with

counsel that neither Delphi Automotive LLP nor Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic

corporations for U.S federal income tax purposes and intends to vigorously defend any assertion by the IRS to

the contrary including through litigation if we were unable to reach satisfactory resolution with the IRS
However no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend or that court will not conclude that neither

Delphi Automotive LLP and therefore Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic corporation for

U.S federal income tax purposes No accrual for this matter has been recorded as of December 31 2011

If we were treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes we would be subject to

U.S federal income tax on our worldwide taxable income including some or all of the distributions from our

subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled

foreign corporations This could have material adverse impact on our future tax liability related to these

distributions and earnings Future cash distributions made by us to non-U.S shareholders could be subject to U.S
income tax withholding at rate of 30% unless reduced or eliminated by tax treaty In addition we could be
liable for additional U.S federal income taxes on such distributions and earnings and for the failure by Delphi
Automotive LLP to withhold U.S income taxes on distributions to its non-U.S members for periods beginning
on or after the Acquisition Date which liability could have material adverse impact on our results of

operations and financial condition

Taxing authorities could challenge our historical and future tax positions

The amount of tax we pay is subject to our interpretation of applicable tax laws in the jurisdictions in which

we file We have taken and will continue to take tax positions based on our interpretation of such tax laws In

particular we will seek to run ourselves in such way that we are and remain tax resident in the

United Kingdom While we believe that we have complied with all applicable tax laws there can be no assurance
that taxing authority will not have different interpretation of the law and assess us with additional taxes

Should additional taxes be assessed this may result in material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition
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Our application of acquisition accounting could result in additional asset impairments and may make

comparisons of our financial position and results of operations to prior periods more difficult

As required by U.S GAAP we recognized and measured the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor This resulted in the recognition of significant identifiable

intangible assets which could be impaired in future periods Additionally the consolidated financial statements of

Delphi Automotive PLC are not comparable to the consolidated statements of the Predecessor due to the effects

of the consummation of the First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization
of Delphi Corporation and Certain

Affiliates Debtors and Debtors-In Possession As Modified and the change in the basis of presentation This

lack of comparability could limit interest and investment in our securities including the ordinary shares

Our operating
results are exposed to variability as result of the currently designed Long Term Incentive

Program for our key employees

The recognition of compensation costs on U.S GAAP basis resulting from the execution of our Value

Creation Plan our Long Term Incentive Program for key employees is based on variable formula that is likely

to result in fluctuations impacting operating results No assurance can be given that such impacts will not have

material impact on our profitability and consolidated financial position

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have no unresolved SEC staff comments to report

ITEM PROPERTIES

As of December 31 2011 we owned or leased 114 major manufacturing sites and 15 major technical

centers in 30 countries manufacturing site may include multiple plants and may be wholly or partially owned

or leased We also have many smaller manufacturing sites sales offices warehouses engineering centers joint

ventures and other investments strategically located throughout the world The following table shows the

regional
distribution of our major manufacturing sites by the operating segment that uses such facilities

Europe

North Middle East Asia South

America Africa Pacific America Total

Electrical/Electronic Architecture 26 17 13 62

Powertrain Systems
10 21

Electronics and Safety
10 17

Thermal Systems
14

Total
38 41 25 10 114

In addition to these manufacturing sites we had 15 major technical centers five in North America five in

Europe Middle East and Africa four in Asia Pacific and one in South America

Of our 114 major manufacturing sites and 15 major technical centers which include facilities owned or

leased by our consolidated subsidiaries 71 are primarily owned and 58 are primarily leased

Delphi operates administrative offices in Troy Michigan We also maintain regional offices in Sao Paulo

Brazil Shanghai China and Bascharage Luxembourg

We frequently review our real estate portfolio and develop footprint strategies to support our customers

global plans while at the same time supporting our technical needs and controlling operating expenses We

believe our evolving portfolio will meet current and anticipated future needs
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to our business including
those arising out of alleged defects breach of contracts product warranties intellectual property matters and

employment-related matters It is our opinion that the outcome of such matters will not have material adverse

impact on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows With respect to warranty
matters although we cannot ensure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not be material we
believe our established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements However the final amounts

required to resolve these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates

European Union Antitrust Investigation

We have received
requests for information from antitrust authorities at the European Conmiission seeking

information about alleged conduct by us in connection with an investigation of automotive parts suppliers

concerning possible violations of antitrust laws related to the supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers

We are cooperating fully with the European authorities Investigations of this nature often continue for several

years and may result in fines imposed by the European authorities Any fine could result in material adverse

impact on our operating results and cash flows However at this time we are unable to estimate any reasonably

possible range of loss that may ultimately result from this investigation No accrual for this matter has been
recorded as of December 31 2011

Class Action Antitrust Litigation

number of class action complaints have been filed in various U.S federal district courts alleging that

several wire harness manufacturers including us have violated U.S antitrust laws These complaints allege that

consumers overpaid for their vehicles as result of the alleged conduct of the wire harness manufacturers At this

time we believe that the allegations contained in the complaints are without merit with regard to us and we
intend to vigorously defend against the allegations set forth in the complaints No accruals for these matters have
been recorded as of December 31 2011

Unsecured Creditors Litigation

In December 2011 complaint was filed in the Bankruptcy Court alleging that the redemption by Delphi
Automotive LLP of the membership interests of GM and the PBGC our initial public offering and distribution

by Delphi Automotive LLP in the amount of $95 million principally in respect of taxes constituted in the

aggregate distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP in excess of $7.2 billion The complaint
further alleges that such aggregate distributions obligate Delphi Automotive LLP to pay to the holders of allowed

general unsecured claims against the Predecessor $32.50 for
every $67.50 in excess of $7.2 billion in

distributions up to maximum of $300 million At this time we believe that the allegations contained in the

complaint are without merit and we intend to vigorously contest the allegations set forth in the complaint No
accrual for this matter has been recorded as of December 31 2011

Warranty Matters

In 2009 we received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components

supplied by our Powertrain segment In March 2011 we reached settlement with our customer related to this

matter During the three months ended March 31 2011 we recognized an unusual warranty expense in cost of

sales of
approximately $76 million as result of the settlement agreement In April 2011 Delphi made payment

of 90 million approximately $133 million at April 30 2011 foreign currency rates related to this matter

We have recognized our best estimate for our total aggregate warranty reserves across all of our operating

segments as of December 31 2011 The estimated reasonably possible amounts to ultimately resolve all matters

is not materially different from the recorded reserves
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Brazil Matters

We conduct significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor social

security environmental tax and customs laws as well as variety of state and local laws While we believe that

we comply with such laws they are complex subject to varying interpretations
and we are often engaged in

litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular circumstances In

addition we are also party to commercial and labor litigation with private parties
As of December 31 2011

related claims totaling approximately $225 million using December 31 2011 foreign currency rates have been

asserted against us As of December 31 2011 we maintain accruals for these asserted claims of approximately

$40 million using December 31 2011 foreign currency rates The amounts accrued represent claims that are

deemed probable of loss and are reasonably estimable based on our analyses and assessment of the asserted

claims and prior experience with similarmatters While we believe our accruals are adequate the final amounts

required to resolve these matters could differ materially from our recorded estimates and our results of operations

could be materially affected

Romania Value Added Tax VAT Assessment

During the first quarter
of 2010 as result of tax audit for years 20062008 we received tax assessment

from the Romanian tax authorities in the amount of approximately $42 million based on the taxing authoritys

assessment that we underpaid its VAT mostly on export sales by approximately $24 million and owe accrued

interest and penalties of $18 million We filed an appeal contesting the assessment and in October 2010 the

Romanian tax authorities substantially reduced the amount of the assessment and decided to re-audit us In

December 2011 the Company received $13 million from the tax authorities related to the outstanding VAT

credit As of December 31 2011 we maintain reserve for this contingency that is substantially less than the

amount of the remaining balance under assessment While we believe our reserve is adequate the final amounts

required to resolve this initial assessment could differ materially from our recorded estimate

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our ordinary shares have only been publicly traded since November 17 2011 when our ordinary shares

were listed and began trading on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under the symbol DLPH

The following table sets forth the high and low sales price per share of our ordinary shares as reported by

NYSE for the period from commencement of trading on November 17 2011 through December 31 2011 As of

February 13 2012 there were approximately 230 shareholders of record of our ordinary shares

Period from November 17 Price Range of Ordinary Shares

through December 31 2011

High Low

Period from November 17 through

December31 2011 22.13 19.63

The following graph reflects the comparative changes in the value from November 17 2011 the first day of

our ordinary shares trading on the NYSE through December 31 2011 assuming an initial investment of $100

and the reinvestment of dividends if any in our ordinary shares the SP 500 index and the

Automotive Supplier Peer Group Historical performance may not be indicative of future shareholder returns

Stock Performance Graph

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Delphi Automotive PLC the SP 500 Index and Automotive Supplier Group

$102

$100

$98

$96

$94

$92

11/17/11 12/31/11

Delphi Automotive PLC SP 500 ---6--- Automotive Supplier Peer Group

100 invested on 11/17/11 in stock or 10/31/11 in index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December31

Delphi Automotive PLC

SP 500 Standard Poors 500 Total Return Index

Automotive Supplier Peer Group Russell 3000 Auto Parts Index including American Axle

Manufacturing Amerigon Inc Autoliv Inc BorgWarner Inc Dana Holding Corp Dorman Products Inc
Exide Technologies Federal-Mogul Corp Fuel Systems Solutions Inc Gentex Corp Genuine Parts Co
Johnson Controls Inc LKQ Corp Lear Corp Meritor Inc Motorcar Parts of America Inc Standard Motor

Products Inc Stoneridge Inc Superior Industries International TRW Automotive Holdings Corp Tenneco Inc
Tower International Inc US Auto Parts Network Inc Visteon Corp and WABCO Holdings Inc
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November 17 2011 December 31 2011Company Index

Delphi Automotive PLC

SP 500

Automotive Supplier Peer Group

Number of Securities to be

Issued Upon Exercise of

Outstanding Options

Restricted Coimnon Stock

Warrants and Rights

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Future Issuance Under Equity

Compensation Plans

excluding securities reflected

in column

Includes 51003 restricted stock units granted to our Board of Directors under the Companys long term incentive program and

an estimate of the total shares 7056358 shares that would have been granted under the Management Value Creation Plan or

Value Creation Plan the VCP had the shares been issued as of 1/30/2012 While we have estimated the reserve based on all VCP

awards being settled in shares we currently expect to settle significant portion of such awards in cash instead of shares In addition

the actual number of shares that could be issued could vary materially based on changes in the value of Delphis ordinary shares

between the date of this filing
and December 31 2012 the last day of the performance period See Note 21 Share-Based

Compensation to the audited financial statements included herein

The restricted stock units and the estimated VCP award shares have no exercise price

Remaining shares available under the Long Term Incentive Plan

Repurchase of Equity Securities

None of our issued ordinary shares have been reacquired by the Company since their initial issuance on

November 17 2011

In January 2012 the Board of Directors authorized share repurchase of up to $300 million of ordinary

shares The program will terminate on the earlier of December 31 2012 or when the Company attains $300

million in ordinary share repurchases

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.98

100.80

92.37

Dividends

Delphi Automotive PLC currently does not pay any cash dividends on its share capital We currently

anticipate that we will retain all available funds for use in the operation and expansion of our business and are

not currently contemplating dividend payment

In October 2011 the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved distribution of

approximately $95 million which was paid on December 2011 principally in respect of taxes to members of

Delphi Automotive LLP who held membership interests as of the close of business on October 31 2011

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The table below contains information about securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation

plans The features of these plans are discussed further in Note 21 Share-Based Compensation to our

consolidated financial statements

Plan Category

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options

Restricted Common Stock

Warrants and Rights

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders

Equity compensation

plans not approved

by security

holders

Total

7107361 22926113

7107361 22926113
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The registrant Jersey public limited company was formed on May 19 2011 Since its formation the

registrant has sold the following securities without registration under the Securities Act of 1933

On May 19 2011 the Registrant issued ordinary shares for aggregate consideration of $0.02 pursuant

to Section 42 under the Securities Act of 1933

On November 22 2011 the Registrant issued 328244510 ordinary shares in exchange for all

outstanding membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP pursuant to Section 42 under the

Securities Act of 1933

Initial Public Offering Proceeds

We completed our initial public offering on November 22 2011 pursuant to registration statement on

Form S-i No 333-174493 All of the proceeds of the offering were received by the selling shareholders in the

offering
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data of the Successor and the Predecessor have been derived from the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Successor and the Predecessor and should be read in conjunction with and are qualified

by reference to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the

consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report The financial information

presented may not be indicative of our future performance

Successor Predecessor

Period

from

August 19

to
Year ended December 31

December 31
2011 2010 2009

dollars and shares in millions except per share

data

Period from

January to
Year ended December 31

October

2009 2008 2007

dollars and shares in millions except per share

data

13817

421

940

30

703

703

72

631

3421

139

10

15

18

16808

822

1425
434

5147

3163

3066

19526

871

1.557

764
163

1855
2997

Statements of operations data

Net sales

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income loss

Interest expense

Reorganization items net

Income loss from continuing operations

Net income loss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interests

Net income loss attributable to Successor

Predecessor

Net income loss per share data

Income loss from continuing operations

attributable to Successor/Predecessor

Loss from discontinued operations

attributable to Successor/Predecessor

Basic and diluted income loss per share

attributable to Successor/Predecessor

Weighted average shares outstaiding

Other financial data

Capital expenditures

EBITDA2
Adjusted EBITDA2
EBITDA margin3

Adjusted EBITDA margin3

Net cash provided by used in operating

activities

Net cash used in provided by investing

activities

Net cash used in provided by financing

activities

16041
475

1644

123

1223

1223

78

1145

2.72

2.72

421

630

2119

2150
13.2%

13.4%

1377

10

3194

0.92 0.03

0.92 0.03
686 685

29 68

3037 3065

5.55 3.41

0.17 2.04

8334
540

1118

10210

9391

9347

29

9318

16.58

0.08

16.50

565

321

514
229
6.2%
2.7%

257

1052

315

500

1361

1633

9.9%

11.8%

1142

911

126

Successor

88

129

313

3.8%

9.1%

159

885

2062

5.38

565

771

211
269

1.3%
1.6%

455

958

465

Predecessor1

5.45
562

577

384
731

2.0%
3.7%

98

530

58

Asof Asof Asof

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

in millions

Balance sheet and employment data

Cash and cash equivalents 1363 3219 3107

Total assets 9128 11082 10307

Total debt 2103 289 396

Workingcapital4 1116 1059 1217

Liabilities subject to compromise

Shareholders deficit N/A N/A N/A

Shareholders equity 2171 6099 5366

Global employeess 104000 99700 104800

Asof Asof

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

in millions

959

10306

4229

1838

14583

14266
N/A

146600

1036

13667

3554

2772

16197

13284
N/A

169500

The Predecessor adopted the accounting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification

FASB ASC 852 Reorganizations effective October 2005 and has segregated in the financial statements for all reporting

periods subsequent to such date and through the consummation of the transactions pursuant to the Modified Plan as defined in

Note
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General to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein transactions and events that were directly associated

with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business Our consolidated financial statements are not comparable
to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan and the

change in the basis of presentation For more information please refer to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our management utilizes net income before depreciation and amortization including long-lived asset and goodwill
impairment interest expense other income expense net income tax expense and equity income net of tax EBITDA to

evaluate performance EBITDA was used as performance indicator for the year ended December 31 2011

Through December 31 2010 our management relied on Adjusted EBITDA as key performance measure Our management
believed that net income before depreciation and amortization including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment interest

expense other income expense net income tax expense equity income net of tax transformation and rationalization charges
related to plant consolidations plant wind-downs and discontinued operations Adjusted EBITDA was meaningful
measure of performance and it was used by management and the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP to analyze
Company and stand-alone

segment operating performance and for planning and forecasting purposes Effective January
2011 our management began utilizing EBITDA as key performance measure because ourrestructuring was substantially

completed in 2010 EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance
with U.S GAAP and should not be considered alternatives to net income loss attributable to Successor/Predecessor which is

the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA that is in accordance with U.S GAAP
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as determined and measured by us should also not be compared to similarly titled measures
reported by other companies

In the year ended December 31 2011 we reached final customer commercial settlement that resulted in an unusual warranty
expense of $76 million This amount adversely affected EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in such period

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to the

implementation of information technology systems to support finance manufacturing and product development initiatives

certain plant consolidations and closures costs and consolidation of many staff administrative functions into global business

service group The reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income loss attributable to Successor/Predecessor
follows

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill impairment charges

Discontinued operations

Operating income loss

Interest expense

Other expense income net

Reorganization items

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity income loss
Income tax expense benefit

Equity income loss net of tax

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net income loss
Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Working capital is calculated herein as accounts receivable plus inventories less accounts payable

Excludes temporary and contract workers As of December31 2011 we employed approximately 39000 temporary and

contract workers

Successor

Period from

Year ended December 31
to

2011 2010 2009

Adjusted EBITDA 2150 1633 313

Transformation and rationalization charges

Employee termination benefits and other exit

costs 31 224
Other transformation and rationalization

costs

Predecessor

Period from

January to
Year ended December 31

October

2009 2008 2007

229 269 731

2119

475

1644

123
15

1506

305
22

48
1361

421

940

30
34

944

258
17

126

58
129

139

10

17

35
27

15

18

235 326 301

50 154 814

514 211 384

540 822 871
325

64 67 302

1118 1425 1557

434 764
24 47

10210 5147 163

9116 3297 2437
311 163 547

36 29 35

44 97 1142

9347 3066 2997

29 29 68

9318 3037 3065

1223 703

78 72

Net income loss attributable to Successor

Predecessor 1145 631

EBITDA margin is defined as EBITDA as percentage of revenues Adjusted EBITDA margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA
as percentage of revenues
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following managements discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations

MDA is intended to help you understand the business operations and financial condition of the Company

for the three-year period ended December 31 2011 This discussion should be read in conjunction with Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Our MDA is presented in seven sections

Executive Overview

Consolidated Results of Operations

Results of Operations by Segment

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Other Matters

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Estimates

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Within the MDA Delphi the Company the Successor we us and our refer to Delphi

Automotive PLC public limited company which was formed under the laws of Jersey on May 19 2011

together with its subsidiaries including Delphi Automotive LLP limited liability partnership incorporated

under the laws of England and Wales which was formed on August 19 2009 for the purpose
of acquiring certain

assets of the former Delphi Corporation and became subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC in connection with

the completion
of the Companys initial public offering on November 22 2011 The former Delphi Corporation

and as the context may require its subsidiaries and affiliates are referred to herein as the Predecessor or Old

Delphi

Executive Overview

Our Business

We are leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provide electrical and electronic powertrain

safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial vehicle markets We are one of

the largest vehicle component manufacturers and our customers include 24 of the 25 largest automotive OEMs in

the world

Business Strategy

We believe the Company is well-positioned for growth from increasing global vehicle production volumes

increased demand for our Safe Green and Connected products which are being added to vehicle content and

new business wins with existing and new customers As result of the actions taken by the Predecessor and

Delphis continuing efforts following its acquisition of the majority of the Predecessors businesses in October

2009 we have substantially reduced our costs aligned our product offerings with the faster-growing industry

mega trends and re-aligned our manufacturing footprint into an efficient regional service model allowing us to

increase our profit margins

Our achievements in 2011 included the following

Optimizing our portfolio of 10 business units and 33 product lines around the mega trends of Safe

Green and Connected
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Focusing on the diversification of our geographic product and customer mix resulting in 32% of our

2011 net sales being generated in the North American market 23% of our 2011 net sales being

generated in emerging markets and 19% from our largest customer

Continuing to reduce our cost structure and re-aligning our manufacturing footprint to increase our

operational flexibility and maintain profitability at all points in the normal automotive business cycle

with approximately 90% of our hourly workforce in low cost countries and approximately 32% of our

hourly workforce composed of temporary employees

Achieving based on our estimation the or position in product categories representing over 72%

of our 2011 net sales including electricallelectronic distribution systems automotive connection

systems diesel engine management systems and infotainment driver interface

Providing products in 2011 that were found in 17 of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in the United

States in all of the 20 top-selling vehicle models in Europe and in 13 of the 20 top-selling vehicle

models in China

Generating gross
business bookings of $23.5 billion based upon expected volumes and pricing

Completing our initial public offering in November 2011 and the listing of our ordinary shares on the

New York Stock Exchange

Going forward our strategy will be to build on these accomplishments and continue to develop and

manufacture innovative market-relevant products for diverse base of customers around the globe and leverage

our lean and flexible cost structure to achieve strong earnings growth and returns on invested capital Through

our culture of innovation and world class engineering capabilities we intend to employ our rigorous forward-

looking product development process to deliver new technologies that provide solutions to OEMs Key strategic

priorities include

Targeting the Right Business with the Right Customers We intend to be strategic in our pursuit of new

business and customers We conduct in-depth analysis of market share and product trends by region in order to

prioritize research development and engineering spend for the customers that we believe will be successful

Collaboration with customers in our 15 major technical centers around the world helps us develop innovative

product solutions designed to meet their needs As more OEMs design vehicles for global platforms where the

same vehicle architecture is shared among different regions we are well suited to provide global design and

engineering support while manufacturing these products for specific regional market

Leveraging Our Engineering and Technological Prowess We seek to leverage our strong product portfolio

tied to the industrys key mega trends with our global footprint to increase our revenues as well as committing to

substantial annual investment in research and development to maintain and enhance our leadership in each of our

product lines

Capitalizing on Our Scale Global Footprint and Established Position in Emerging Markets We intend to

generate sustained growth by capitalizing on the breadth and scale of our operating capabilities Our global

footprint provides us important proximity to our customers manufacturing facilities and allows us to serve them

in every region in which they operate We anticipate that we will continue to build upon our extensive geographic

reach to capitalize on the fast-growing automotive markets particularly in China Brazil India and Russia In

addition our presence in low cost countries positions us to realize incremental margin improvements as the

global balance of automotive production shifts towards emerging markets

Leveraging Our Lean and Flexible Cost Structure to Deliver Profitability and Cash Flow We recognize the

importance of maintaining lean and flexible cost structure in order to deliver stable earnings and cash flow in

cyclical industry Our focus is on maximizing manufacturing output to meet increasing production requirements
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with minimal additions to our fixed-cost base Additionally we are continuing to use meaningful amount of

temporary workers to ensure we have the appropriate operational flexibility to scale our operations so that we can

maintain our profitability as industry production levels increase or contract

Pursuing Selected Acquisitions and Strategic Alliances We intend to pursue selected transactions that

leverage our technology capabilities and enhance our customer base geographic penetration and scale to

complement our current businesses

Trends Uncertainties and Opportunities

Rate of economic
recovery

Our business is directly related to automotive sales and automotive vehicle

production by our customers Automotive sales depend on number of factors including economic conditions

The economy is recovering slowly from recession that began in late 2007 and became increasingly severe with

the global credit crisis in 2008 and 2009 The weaker economic conditions led to substantial industry-wide

decline in vehicle sales in 2008 and 2009 However global automotive vehicle production increased over 3%

from 2010 to 2011 and is expected to increase by an additional 5% to 6% in 2012 Any future economic declines

that result in significant reduction in automotive sales and production by our customers would have an adverse

effect on our business results of operations and financial condition Additionally volatility in oil and gasoline

prices negatively impacts consumer confidence and automotive sales as well as the mix of future sales from
trucks and sport utility vehicles toward smaller fuel-efficient

passenger cars While our diversified customer

and geographic revenue base have well positioned us to withstand the impact of industry downturns and benefit

from industry upturns shifts to vehicles with less content would adversely impact our profitability

Emerging markets growth Rising income levels in the emerging markets of China Brazil India and Russia

are resulting in stronger growth rates in these markets Our strong global presence and presence in these markets

have positioned us to experience above-market growth rates We continue to expand our established presence in

emerging markets positioning us to benefit from the expected growth opportunities in these regions We will

accomplish this by capitalizing on our long-standing relationships with the global OEMs and further enhancing

our positions with the emerging market OEMs to continue expanding our worldwide leadership We will

continue to build upon our extensive geographic reach to capitalize on the fast-growing automotive markets

particularly China Brazil India and Russia We believe that our presence
in low cost countries positions us to

realize incremental margin improvements as the global balance of automotive production shifts towards the

emerging markets

We have strong presence in China where we have operated for nearly 20 years All of our business

segments have operations and sales in China As result we have well-established relationships with all of the

major OEMs in China We generated approximately $2 billion in revenue from China in 2011 With only 21 of

our 33 offered products currently locally manufactured we believe we have the opportunity to expand additional

product lines into China and as result we see further growth potential

Market driven products Our product offerings satisfy the OEMs need to meet increasingly stringent

government regulations and fulfill consumer preferences for products that address the mega trends of Safe Green

and Connected leading to increased content per vehicle greater profitability and higher margins With these

offerings we believe we are well-positioned to capitalize on demand for increased safety fuel efficiency

emissions control and connectivity to the global information network There has been substantial increase in

vehicle content and electrification requiring complex and reliable electrical architecture and systems to operate

such as hybrid power electronics electrical vehicle monitoring lane departure warning systems integrated

electronic displays navigation systems and consumer electronics Our ability to design reliable electrical

architecture that optimizes power distribution and/or consumption is key to satisfying the OEMs need to reduce

emissions while continuing to meet the demands of consumers Additionally our Powertrain Systems and

Thermal Systems segments are also focused on addressing the demand for increased fuel efficiency and emission

control by controlling fuel consumption and heat dissipation which are principal factors influencing fuel

efficiency and emissions
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Global capabilities Many OEMs are adopting global vehicle platforms to increase standardization reduce

per unit cost and increase capital efficiency and profitability As result OEMs are selecting suppliers that have
the capability to manufacture products on worldwide basis as well as the flexibility to adapt to regional
variations Suppliers with global scale and strong design engineering and manufacturing capabilities are best

positioned to benefit from this trend Our global footprint enables us to serve the global OEMs on worldwide
basis as we gain market share with the emerging market OEMs This regional model has largely migrated to

service the North American market out of Mexico the South American market out of Brazil the European
market out of Eastern Europe and North Africa and the Asia Pacific market out of China

Product development The automotive component supply industry is highly competitive both domestically
and internationally Our ability to anticipate changes in technology and regulatory standards and to successfully

develop and introduce new and enhanced products on timely basis will be significant factor in our ability to

remain competitive To compete effectively in the automotive supply industry we must be able to launch new
products to meet our customers demands in timely manner Our innovative technologies and robust global

engineering and development capabilities have well positioned us to meet the
increasingly stringent vehicle

manufacturer demands

OEMs are increasingly looking to their suppliers to simplify vehicle design and assembly processes to

reduce costs As result suppliers that sell vehicle components directly to manufacturers Tier suppliers have
assumed many of the design engineering research and development and assembly functions traditionally

performed by vehicle manufacturers Suppliers that can provide fully-engineered solutions systems and

pre-assembled combinations of component parts are positioned to leverage the trend toward system sourcing

Engineering design development Our history and culture of innovation have enabled us to develop

significant intellectual property and design and development expertise to provide advanced technology solutions
that meet the demands of our customers We have team of more than 17000 scientists engineers and

technicians focused on developing leading product solutions for our key markets located at 15 major technical

centers in Brazil China France Germany India Luxembourg Mexico Poland South Korea the United

Kingdom and the United States We invest approximately $1 billion annually in research and development

including engineering to maintain our portfolio of innovative products and currently own approximately 5500
patents We also

encourage open innovation and collaborate extensively with
peers in the industry government

agencies and academic institutions Our technology competencies are recognized by both customers and

government agencies who have co-invested approximately $400 million of additional funds annually in new
product development increasing our total spend accordingly accelerating the pace of innovation and reducing
the risk associated with successful commercialization of technological breakthroughs

In the past suppliers often incurred the initial cost of engineering designing and developing automotive

component parts and recovered their investments over time by including cost recovery component in the price
of each

part based on expected volumes Recently we and many other suppliers have negotiated for cost

recovery payments independent of volumes This trend reduces our economic risk

Pricing Cost-cutting initiatives adopted by our customers result in increased downward
pressure on pricing

Our customer supply agreements generally require step-downs in component pricing over the periods of

production and OEMs have historically possessed significant leverage over their outside suppliers because the

automotive component supply industry is fragmented and serves limited number of automotive OEMs Our

profitability depends in part on our ability to generate sufficient production cost savings in the future to offset

price reductions

In 2010 we largely completed our restructuring activities resulting in lower fixed cost base improved

manufacturing footprint and reduced overhead We dramatically reduced our U.S and Western European
footprints realigned our selling general and administrative cost structure and increased the variable nature of our

employee base As result approximately 90% of our hourly workforce is located in low cost countries

Furthermore we have substantial operational flexibility by leveraging large workforce of temporary workers
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which represented approximately 32% of the hourly workforce as of December 31 2011 We are focused on

maintaining low fixed cost base to minimize our net income before depreciation and amortization including

long-lived asset and goodwill impairment interest expense other income expense net income tax expense

and equity income net of tax EBITDA breakeven which we estimate to be approximately 38% below the

current production volumes assuming constant product mix and based on 2011 results We believe that our lean

cost structure will allow us to remain profitable at all points
of the traditional vehicle industry production cycle

Efficient use of capital The global
vehicle components industry is generally capital intensive and portion

of suppliers capital equipment is frequently utilized for specific customer programs Lead times for

procurement of capital equipment are long and typically
exceed start of production by one to two years

Substantial advantages exist for suppliers that can leverage their prior investments in capital equipment or

amortize the investment over higher volume global customer programs

Industry consolidation Consolidation among worldwide suppliers is expected to continue as suppliers seek

to achieve operating synergies
and value stream efficiencies acquire complementary technologies and build

stronger customer relationships as OEMs continue to expand globally We believe companies with strong
balance

sheets and financial discipline are in the best position to take advantage of the industry consolidation trend We

have strong balance sheet with gross
debt of approximately $2.1 billion and substantial liquidity

of

approximately $2.7 billion of cash and cash equivalents and available financing under our Revolving Credit

Facility as defined below in Liquidity and Capital Resources as of December 31 2011 and no significant
U.S

defined benefit or workforce postretirement health care benefits and employer-paid postretirement basic life

insurance benefits OPEB liabilities We intend to maintain strong financial discipline targeting industry-

leading earnings growth cash flow generation and return on invested capital and to maintain sufficient liquidity

to sustain our financial flexibility throughout the industry cycle

Our Histoty and Structure

On August 19 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP limited liability partnership organized under the laws of

England and Wales was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the former Delphi

Corporation our Predecessor which along with certain of its U.S subsidiaries had filed voluntary petitions
for

bankruptcy in October 2005 On October 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP acquired the major portion of the

business of the Predecessor other than the global steering business the U.S manufacturing facilities in which the

hourly employees were represented by the UAW and certain non-productive U.S assets and Delphi Automotive

LLP issued membership interests to group of investors consisting of lenders to the Predecessor GM and the

Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation the PBGC For additional information see Note General to the

audited consolidated financial statements included herein

On March 31 2011 all of the outstanding Class and Class membership interests held by GM and the

PBGC were redeemed respectively for approximately $4.4 billion The redemption transaction was funded by

$3.0 billion credit facility entered into on March 31 2011 the Credit Facility and existing cash

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to its initial public offering On

November 22 2011 in conjunction
with the completion of its initial public offering by the selling shareholders

all of the outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLP was exchanged for ordinary shares in Delphi Automotive

PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC

Disposition of the Predecessor and Acquisition Accounting

On October 2009 the Acquisition Date the Predecessor consummated the transactions

contemplated by the Modified Plan as defined in Note General to the audited consolidated financial

statements included herein and ii exited chapter 11 as DPH Holdings Corp and its subsidiaries and affiliates
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DPHH except that two of the Predecessors debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi Automotive
LLP summary of significant tenns of the Modified Plan follows

We acquired the businesses other than the global steering business and the
manufacturing facilities in

the U.S at which the hourly employees are represented by the UAW of the Predecessor pursuant to the
master disposition agreement including all schedules and exhibits thereto the MDA and received
$1833 million from GM of which $1689 million was received on the Acquisition Date and $144
million was received during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31 2009 and $209
million net from certain of the debtor-in-possession DIP lenders to the Predecessor collectively
the Acquisition

GM acquired substantially all of the Predecessors global steering business and the manufacturing
facilities in the U.S at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW

The Predecessors debtor-in-possession financing was settled

The Predecessors liabilities subject to compromise were extinguished

If cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP under certain provisions of its

limited liability partnership agreement exceed $7.2 billion we as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH
are required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor $32.50
for

every $67.50 in excess of $7.2 billion distributed to the members up to maximum of $300
million

The Predecessors equity holders did not receive recoveries on their claims

As result of the Acquisition we acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this

business constituted the entirety of the operations of the Successor Accordingly as required under the
applicable

accounting guidance the financial information set forth herein reflects the consolidated results of operations of
the Successor for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the period from its incorporation on
August 19 2009 to December 31 2009 and of the Predecessor for the period from January 2009 to October
2009 Delphi Automotive LLP had no material or substantive transactions from its organization on August 19
2009 to the Acquisition Date

In 2009 the Predecessor recognized gain of approximately $10.2 billion for reorganization items as

result of the process of reorganizing the Debtors as defined and further discussed in Note General to the
audited consolidated financial statements included herein under chapter 11 of the United States BankruptcyCode This gain reflects the

extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise OPEB settlement and the sale

disposition of the Predecessor offset by the PBGC termination of the U.S pension plans and professional fees

directly related to the reorganization

We have recorded the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor at estimated fair

values in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures The fair
values were estimated based on valuations performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing three

generally accepted business valuation approaches For additional information see Note General to the audited
consolidated financial statements included herein

In connection with the Acquisition we did not acquire all of the assets or assume all of the liabilities of the
Predecessor As noted above the assets we acquired and the liabilities we assumed from the Predecessor were
generally recorded at fair value resulting in change from the Predecessors basis Accordingly our
consolidated financial statements are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor
due to the effects of the consunmiation of the Modified Plan For these reasons we do not generally present
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financial information on combined basis for the Predecessor period from January to October 2009 and the

Successor period from August 19 to December 31 2009 Full Year 2009 except as noted below We have

compared consolidated net sales and EBITDA of the Successor for the year
ended December 31 2010 to the total

net sales and Adjusted EBITDA for the Full Year 2009 We believe these comparisons are most meaningful and

useful in providing thorough understanding of the financial statements Where applicable Operations Not

Acquired is included in the tables below explaining
the variance attributable to the acquisition by GM on

October 2009 of the manufacturing facilities in the U.S at which the hourly employees were represented by

the UAW

Consolidated Results of Operations

Our improved total net sales during the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to 2010 reflect the

impacts
of increased OEM production volumes as well as the level of our content per unit and to lesser extent

the impacts of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations Although global OEM production volumes increased

over 3% for the year ended December 31 2011 versus 2010 excluding production
decreases from Japan and

Japanese OEM production
in North America of 9% resulting from the Japan earthquake and tsunami global

OEM production volumes increased 6% for the year
ended December 31 2011 as compared to 2010 We did not

experience any significant adverse impacts resulting from the Japan earthquake and tsunami particularly given

that the Japanese
OEMs are not among our principal customers To the extent that the Japanese

OEMs grow

faster than others as they make up for lost production
in 2011 we would expect

that our volume growth from our

OEM customers could be slower than the market

The improvements in OEM production volumes continue to indicate stabilization of the global economy

However current OEM production
volumes in North America and Western Europe continue to be substantially

less than OEM production volumes prior to the disruptions in the economic and credit markets experienced in

2008 and 2009 As result of the significant restructuring actions implemented by the Predecessor and continued

by us in 2010 our reduced cost structure is enabling us to translate the total net sales growth achieved in 2011

into strong gross margin and improved operating earnings

Significant issues affected the Predecessors financial performance in 2009 including depressed global

vehicle production
environment for OEMs pricing pressures

and increasingly volatile commodity prices In

addition the Predecessor was adversely impacted by legacy U.S labor liabilities which included noncompetitive

wage and benefit levels and restrictive collectively-bargained labor agreement provisions which historically

inhibited the Predecessors responsiveness
to market conditions including exiting non-strategic non-profitable

operations or flexing the size of the unionized workforce when volume decreases Also during 2009 the

Predeöessor operational challenges intensified as result of the continued downturn in general economic

conditions including reduced consumer spending and confidence high oil prices and the credit market crisis all

of which resulted in global
vehicle manufacturers reducing production

and taking other restructuring actions

We benefited from the restructuring initiatives implemented throughout the last several years and in

particular
in 2009 from the restructuring of the business that took place through the acquisition of the

Predecessors global steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities by GM together with its

subsidiaries and affiliates in the U.S as of the Acquisition Date as defined and further discussed below In

addition we benefited from the increase in OEM production volumes beginning
in the fourth quarter of 2009 and

continuing throughout 2010 and 2011 Our results of operations
include the effects of the improvement in the

cost structure and the operating leverage we can now employ with improvements in OEM production volumes

versus the Predecessor While production volume levels improved in 2011 and 2010 as compared to the

production volume levels experienced in 2009 we continued to face challenges
with production

volumes

globally still significantly lower than 2007 due to the lingering effects from the disruptions in the economy and

credit markets in 2008 and 2009 and volatile commodity prices As result of the Acquisition beginning in

2010 we incurred and expect to incur incremental annual non-cash amortization charges of approximately $80

million related to the recognition of acquired intangible assets Additionally in conjunction with the initial public

offering in November 2011 we incurred transaction-related fees and recognized expenses in the year ended

December 31 2011 of approximately $44 million
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We typically experience fluctuations in revenue due to changes in OEM production schedules vehicle sales
mix and the net of new and lost business which we refer to collectively as volume increased prices attributable
to escalation clauses in our supply contracts for

recovery of increased commodity costs which we refer to as
commodity pass-through fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates which we refer to as FX contractual
reductions of the sales price to the OEM which we refer to as contractual price reductions and engineering
changes Changes in sales mix can have either favorable or unfavorable impact on revenue Such changes can be
the result of shifts in regional growth shifts in OEM sales demand as well as shifts in consumer demand related
to vehicle segment purchases and content penetration For instance shift in sales demand favoring particularOEMs vehicle model for which we do not have supply contract may negatively impact our revenue shift in

regional sales demand toward certain markets could favorably impact the sales of those of our customers that
have large market share in those regions which in turn would be expected to have favorable impact on our
revenue

We
typically experience as described below fluctuations in

operating income due to

Volume net of contractual price reductionschanges in volume offset by contractual price reductions
which typically range from 1% to 3% of net sales

Operational performancechanges to costs for materials and commodities or manufacturing variances
and

Otherincluding restructuring costs and any remaining variances not included in Volume net of
contractual price reductions or Operational performance

The automotive component supply industry is subject to inflationary pressures with
respect to raw materials

and labor which have placed and will continue to place operational and
profitability burdens on the entire supply

chain We will continue to work with our customers and suppliers to mitigate the impact of these inflationary
pressures in the future In addition we expect commodity cost volatility particularly related to copper aluminum
and petroleum-based resin products to have continual impact on future

earnings and/or operating cash flows
As such we continually seek to mitigate both

inflationary pressures and our material-related cost exposures usingnumber of approaches including combining purchase requirements with customers and/or other suppliers
using alternate suppliers or product designs negotiating cost reductions and/or commodity cost contract
escalation clauses into our vehicle manufacturer supply contracts and hedging
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2011 versus 2010

The results of operations for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows
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Total Net Sales

Below is summary of our total net sales for the year
ended December 31 2011 versus December 31 2010

Volume net

of

contractual

price

reductions

Commodity

pass
FX through Other Total

in millions

1721 419 229 145 2224

Total net sales for the year
ended December 31 2011 increased 16% compared to year

ended December 31

2010 The increase in total net sales resulted primarily
from increased volume as result of improved OEM

production
schedules in 2011 as well as the level of our content per unit and to lesser extent the impacts

of

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations primarily related to the Euro Additionally included in Other above

are decreased sales of approximately $120 million related to divestitures that occurred during the year ended

December 31 2010

Operating
Results

The information below summarizes the operating
results for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared

to the year
ended December 31 2010

2011

Net sales
16041

Cost of sales
13386

Gross margin
2655

Selling general and administrative
901

Amortization
79

Restructuring _______

Operating income

Interest expense

Other expense income net ________

Income before income taxes and equity income

Income tax expense _______

2010

dollars in millions

13817

11768

16.6% 2049 14.8%

815

70

Income before equity income

Equity income net of tax

Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to Delphi

Year ended December 31

Favorable

2011 2010 unfavorable

in millions

Total net sales .. 16041 13817 2224

Variance due to
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is primarily comprised of material labor manufacturing overhead freight fluctuations in

foreign currency exchange rates product engineering design and development expenses depreciation and

amortization warranty costs and other operating expenses Gross margin is revenue less cost of sales and
gross

margin percentage is
gross margin as percent of net sales Cost of sales increased $1618 million for the

year
ended December 31 2011 compared to the

year ended -December 31 2010 as summarized below

Year ended December 31 Variance due to

Favorable/ Operational

2011 2010 unfavorable Volume1 performance Other Total

dollars in millions in millions

Cost of sales 13386 11768 1618 1285 177 510 1618
Gross margin 2655 2049 606 436 177 606

Percentage of net sales .. 16.6% 14.8%

Presented net of contractual price reductions for
gross margin variance

The increase in cost of sales was driven by increases in volume and the following items in other above

$229 million of increased pass-through commodity costs which were offset in sales through contract

escalation clauses with our customers

Increased depreciation of fixed assets including tooling of $45 million and

Approximately $360 million due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

These increases were partially offset by improved operational performance as well as $94 million related to

divested businesses primarily the occupant protection systems business on March 31 2010

Selling General and Administrative Expense

Year ended December 31

Favorable/

2011 2010 unfavorable

dollars in millions

Selling general and administrative expense 901 815 86
Percentage of net sales 5.6% 5.9%

Selling general and administrative expense SGA includes administrative expenses information

technology costs and incentive compensation related costs and declined as percent of sales during the year
ended December 31 2011 compared to 2010 due to maintaining administrative and information technology cost

increases at or lower than the increasing rate of net sales Increases in SGA were largely attributable to foreign

exchange effects and increased accruals for incentive compensation of $29 million including the accelerated

vesting of Board of Directors shares upon our initial public offering

Amortization

Year ended December 31

Favorable
2011 2010 unfavorable

in millions

Amortization 79 70
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Amortization expense reflects the non-cash charge related to definite-lived intangible assets primarily

recognized as part of the Acquisition

Restructuring

Year ended December 31

Favorable

2011 2010 unfavorable

dollars in millions

Restructuring
31 224 193

Percentage of net sales 0.2% 1.6%

The decrease in restructuring expense is due to decline in workiorce reductions and programs related to

the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes including plant closures in the year ended

December 31 2011 as compared to 2010 as we had largely completed our significant restructuring programs by

the end of 2010

Refer to Note 11 Restructuring to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for

additional infonnation

Interest Expense

Year ended December 31

Favorable

2011 2010 unfavorable

dollars in millions

Interest expense
123 30 93

Percentage of net sales 0.8% 0.2%

The increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to 2010 is due to

changes in debt balances primarily related to the borrowings under the credit agreement the Credit

Agreement and issuance of the $500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and $500 million of 6.125%

senior notes due 2021 collectively the Senior Notes in conjunction with the redemption of the Class and

Class membership interests

Refer to Note 12 Debt to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional

information

Other Expense Income Net

Year ended December 31

Favorable

2011 2010 unfavorable

in millions

Other expense income net 15 34 49

The increase in other expense for the year
ended December 31 2011 as compared to other income for the

year
ended December 31 2010 was primarily the result of incurring approximately $44 million in transaction

costs related to our initial public offering in November 2011 and an increase of $8 million loss on

extinguishment of debt

Refer to Note 18 Other income expense net to the audited consolidated financial statements included

herein for additional information
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Income Taxes

Year ended December 31

Favorablef

2911 2010 unfavorable

in millions

Income tax expense 305 258 47

The effective tax rate was 20% and 27% in 2011 and 2010 respectively The Companys tax rate is affected

by the tax rates in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates the relative amount of income earned by

jurisdiction and the relative amount of losses or income for which no tax benefit or expense was recognized due

to valuation allowance In 2011 tax incentives of $64 million were obtained in various non-U.S countries

primarily Hi-Tech Enterprise status in China and the Maquiladora regime in Mexico and $65 million tax

benefit for income earned in jurisdictions where valuation allowance has been recorded primarily in France

We recognized $52 million primarily Germany and $21 million tax benefit in 2011 and 2010

respectively related to changes in judgment of valuation allowances for the realization of deferred tax assets

During 2011 the Company recorded withholding tax of $10 million related to the funding of the redemption of

all the outstanding Class and Class membership interests and $27 million related to changes in our assertion

with respect to our intent to repatriate foreign earnings in certain countries

Our annual effective tax rate may be impacted by future events including changes in tax laws geographic

income mix cash requirements tax audits closure of tax years legal entity restructuring and changes in

valuation allowances on deferred tax assets Our effective tax rate can potentially have wide variances from

quarter to quarter resulting from interim reporting requirements and the recognition of discrete events

Equity Income

Year ended December 31

Favorablel

2011 2010 unfavorable

in millions

Equity income net of tax 22 17

Equity income reflects our interest in the results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-

method investments Equity income increased during the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to 2010

partially due to the recognition of $8 million of gain on the sale of our 49.5% interest in Daesung Electric Co
Ltd as well as improved performance at our Mexican and Korean joint ventures These increases were partially

offset by $7 million impairment charge related to European joint venture

Results of Operations by Segment

We operate our core business along the following operating segments which are grouped on the basis of

similarproduct market and operating factors

Electrical/Electronic Architecture which includes complete electrical architecture and component

products

Powertrain Systems which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline diesel and fuel

handling and full end-to-end systems including fuel injection combustion electronics controls exhaust

handling test and validation capabilities diesel and automotive aftermarket and original equipment

service
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Electronics and Safety which includes component and systems integration expertise in infotainment

and connectivity body controls and security systems displays mechatronics passive and active safety

electronics and electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics as well as advanced development

of software

Thermal Systems which includes heating ventilating and air conditioning systems components for

multiple transportation and other adjacent markets and powertrain cooling and related technologies

Eliminations and Other which includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions and ii certain

other expenses and income of non-operating or strategic nature

Through December 31 2010 we evaluated performance based on stand-alone segment Adjusted EBITDA

and accounted for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties at current

market prices Our management believed that Adjusted EBITDA was meaningful measure of performance and

it was used by management to analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance Management

also used Adjusted EBITDA for planning and forecasting purposes Effective January 2011 our management

began utilizing segment EBJTDA as key performance measure because our restructuring was substantially

completed by the end of 2010 Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be consjdered substitutes for

results prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and should not be considered alternatives to net income

attributable to Delphi which is the most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted

EBITDA that is in accordance with U.S GAAP Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as determined and

measured by us should also not be compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies

The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the year ended December 31 2011 is

as follows

Electrical/

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal Eliminations

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems and Other Total

in millions

For the year ended December 31
2011

EBITDA 868 710 369 172 2119

Depreciation and amortization 131 195 105 44 475

Operating income 737 515 264 128 1644

Interest expense 123
Other expense net 15

Income before income taxes and

equity income 1506

Income tax expense 305
Equity income 22

Net income 1223

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 78

Net income attributable to Delphi 1145

For the year ended December 31 2010 the reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other

restructuring costs related to the implementation of projects aimed at reducing the cost and improving the

functionality of information technology systems to support finance manufacturing and product development

initiatives certain plant consolidations and closures costs continued consolidation of many staff

administrative activities and employee benefit plan settlements in Mexico
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The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income attributable to Delphi for the year ended December 31 2010 is as

follows

Income before income taxes and equity

income 944

Income tax expense 258
Equity income

________

Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Net income attributable to Delphi ________

Net sales gross margin as percentage of net sales and EBITDA by segment for the years ended December 31

2011 and20l0areasfollows

Net Sales by Segment

Volume net

of contractual

price

reductions

Variance due to

Commodity
FX pass-through

in millions

Included in Other above are decreased sales of approximately $120 million related to divestitures that

occurred during the year ended December 31 2010

Electrical

Electronic

Architecture

Powertrain Electronics Thermal Eliminations

Systems and Safety Systems and Other

in millions

758 423 293

Total

165 1633

For the year ended December 31 2010

Adjusted EBITDA

Restructuring charges

Employee termination benefits and other

exit costs 94 49 29 52 224
Other restructuring costs 14 13 17 48

EBITDA 650 361 247 109 1361

Depreciation and amortization 108 170 100 42 421

Operating income loss 542 191 147 67 940

Interest expense 30
Other income net 34

17

703

72

631

Years ended December 31

Favorable

2011 2010 unfavorable

in millions

ElecthcalElectronic

Architecture 6642 5620 1022

Powertrain Systems 4970 4086 884

Electronics and Safety 2931 2721 210

Thermal Systems 1755 1603 152

Eliminations and Other 257 213 44

Total 16041 13817 2224

Other Total

632 169 220 1022

749 143 884

260 64 114 210

86 56 152

13 25 44

1721 419 229 145 2224
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Gross Margin Percentage by Segment

Year ended December 31

2011 2010

ElectricallElectronic Architecture 16.7% 16.8%

Powertrain Systems 17.6% 13.8%

Electronics and Safety 15.5% 12.8%

Thermal Systems 12.6% 12.4%

Eliminations and Other 0.0% 1.4%

Total 16.6% 14.8%

EBITDA by Segment

Year ended December 31 Variance due to

Volume net

of contractual

Favorable/ price Operational

2011 2010 unfavorable reductions performance Other Total

in millions in millions

ElectricallElectronic Architecture 868 650 218 145 19 54 218

Powertrain Systems 710 361 349 260 71 18 349

Electronics and Safety 369 247 122 37 70 15 122

Thermal Systems 172 109 63 17 52 63

Eliminations and Other

Total 2119 1361 758 436 177 145 758

As noted in the table above EBITDA for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to 2010 was impacted

by volume and contractual price reductions and operational performance improvements as well as the following items

included in Other in the table above

Reduced restructuring of $193 million in 2011 related to reduced employee termination benefits and other

exit costs as we had largely completed our significant restructuring programs by the end of 2010

$49 million due to fluctuations in foreign currency rates

Offset by $57 million principally due to increased accruals for incentive compensation in 2011 related to our

executive Long-Term Incentive Plan as well as vesting of Board of Directors shares including accelerated

vesting upon our initial public offering and

$23 million related to divestitures that occurred during the year ended December 31 2010

52



Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling general and administrative

Amortization

Restructuring

Operating income loss

Interest expense

Other income expense net

Reorganization items

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity income loss

Income tax expense benefit

Income loss from continuing operations before

equity income loss

Equity income loss net of tax

Income loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net income loss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Successor

Predecessor

Total Net Sales

Predecessor

Period from January to

October 62009

dollars in millions

8334

8480

146 1.8%
734

235

1118

24

10210

9116

311

9427

36

9391

44

9347

29

Total net sales for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to Full Year 2009 were as follows

Commodity

pass
FX through Other Total

in millions

91 145 78 2062

Total net sales in 2010 increased 18% compared to Full Year 2009 net sales Excluding the sales impacts of the

Operations Not Acquired sales increased 24% in 2010 The increase in total net sales resulted primarily from increased

volume as result of rebounding OEM production schedules throughout 2010

Consolidated Results of Operations

2010 versus 2009

The results of operations for the year ended December 31 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009

Successor Period of 2009 and January to October 2009 Predecessor Period of 2009 were as follows

Successor

Year ended Period from August 19 to

December 312010 December 312009

dollars in millions

10.9%

13817 3421

11768 3047

2049 14.8% 374

815 242

70 16

224 126

940 10
30
34 17

944 35
258 27

686

17

703

703

72 15

631 18

Successor

9318

Predecessor

Period

from

August19
Year ended to

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

in millions

Total net sales .. 13817 3421

Variance due to

Period from

January 2010 versus

to full year 2009

October favorablel

2009 unfavorable

in millions

8334 2062

Operations

not

acquired

639

Volume net

of

contractual

price

reductions

2725
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is primarily comprised of material labor manufacturing overhead freight fluctuations in

foreign currency exchange rates product engineering design and development expenses depreciation and

amortization warranty costs and other operating expenses

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

dollars in millions dollars in millions

Cost of sales 11768 3047 8480
Gross margin 2049 374 146
Percentage of net sales 14.8% 10.9% 1.8%

Successor

Cost of sales in the year ended December 31 2010 was impacted by higher volume offset by favorable

operational performance and our reduced cost structure due to previous restructuring actions Additionally cost

of sales was impacted by the following items

Warranty costs of $142 million

Depreciation of fixed assets including tooling of $323 million and

Pension and OPEB costs of $71 million

Cost of sales in the Successor Period of 2009 was impacted by higher volume offset by favorable

operational performance and our reduced cost structure due to previous restructuring actions Additionally cost

of sales was impacted by the following items

Warranty costs of $24 million

Non-recurring $34 million non-cash charge as result of the sale of inventory acquired from the

Predecessor which was required to be recorded at fair value as result of the Acquisition

Depreciation of fixed assets including tooling of $115 million and

Pension and OPEB costs of $23 million

Predecessor

Cost of sales in the Predecessor Period of 2009 was impacted by the relatively fixed cost nature of the

Predecessors operations that inhibited the Predecessors ability to adjust its cost structure appropriately to the

reduced volumes resulting from the economic and credit crises of 2008 and 2009 that adversely impacted OEM

production levels Additionally cost of sales was impacted by the following items

Warranty costs of $114 million

Depreciation of fixed assets including tooling and including impairments of $502 million and

Pension and OPEB costs of $134 million
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Selling General and Administrative Expense

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

dollars in millions dollars in millions

Selling general and administrative expense .. 815 242 734

Percentage of net sales 5.9% 7.1% 8.8%

Successor

SGA continued to decline as percent of sales in the year ended December 31 2010 and the Successor

Period of 2009 as compared to the Predecessor Period of 2009 as result of the positive effects of cost savings

initiatives

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009 the impact of cost saving and restructuring initiatives had not yet

been fully realized In addition reduced volumes during 2009 resulted in SGA being larger percentage of net

sales due to the fixed nature of certain SGA costs

Amortization

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 31 2009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Amortization 70 16

Successor

Amortization for the year ended December 31 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 is result of the

recognition at fair value of approximately $766 million of intangible assets that we acquired as part of the

Acquisition

Predecessor

During the Predecessor Period of 2009 amortization was insignificant

Refer to Note Intangible Assets and Goodwill to the audited consolidated financial statements included

herein for additional information

Restructuring

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

dollars in millions dollars in millions

Restructuring 224 126 235

Percentage of net sales 1.6% 3.7% 2.8%
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Successor

During the year ended December 31 2010 we continued our restructuring actions to align our

manufacturing operations with current OEM production levels as well as continuing to relocate our

manufacturing and engineering processes to lower cost locations As such we recognized employee termination

and other related exit costs in conjunction with workiorce reduction programs primarily in Europe of $174

million and $78 million during the
year

ended December 31 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009

respectively Similar actions to appropriately align North American manufacturing operations were also

undertaken resulting in $28 million and $34 million of charges during the year ended December 31 2010 and

the Successor Period of 2009 respectively

Predecessor

As part of the Predecessors continuing restructuring activities in 2009 and in response to the depressed

OEM production volumes of 2009 the Predecessor undertook significant restructuring actions As result

during the Predecessor Period of 2009 restructuring included approximately $69 million to realign

manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and reduce the workforce in line with the

realigned manufacturing operations Additionally approximately $99 million of employee termination benefits

and other exit costs were incurred in Europe South America and Asia The Predecessor also incurred $58 million

for employee termination benefits resulting from the separation of certain salaried employees in North America

Refer to Note 11 Restructuring to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for

additional information

Interest Expense

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Interest expense 30

Percentage of net sales 0.2% 0.2%

Successor

Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 reflects the

financing costs relating to our outstanding indebtedness subsequent to the Acquisition including the $41 million

in the Old Notes issued as part of the Acquisition as well as receivable factoring programs

Predecessor

Interest expense for the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes the amortization of financing costs related to

outstanding debtor-in-possession financing during the period and interest on debtor-in-possession financing

offset by the reversal of $415 million of accrued postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured

claims as more fully described in Note Significant Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial

statements included herein

Other Income Net

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Other income expense net 34 17 24
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Successor

Other income net during 2010 included $29 million of interest income partially offset by $9 million

impairment of an investment in available-for-sale securities and an $8 million loss on the early extinguishment of

debt that was revalued to fair value as part of acquisition accounting Additionally other income net includes

insurance and other recoveries and income from royalties

During the Successor Period of 2009 other expense net included $5 million of interest income offset by

$19 million of transactions costs related to the Acquisition

Predecessor

Other income net for the Predecessor Period of 2009 included $10 million of interest income

Reorganization Items Net

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October 2009

in millions

Reorganization items net 10210

Predecessor

The following table details the components of bankruptcy-related reorganization items refer to Note

General to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information

Predecessor

Income/expense

Period from

January to

October 62009

in millions

Sale disposition of the Predecessor 794

Extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise 11159

PBGC termination of U.S pension plans 2818

Salaried OPEB settlement 1168
Professional fees directly related to reorganization

68

Other 25

Total reorganization items 10210

Income Twces

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 31 2009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Income tax expense benefit 258 27 311

Our and the Predecessors tax rate in all periods is affected by the tax rates in the U.S and non-U.S

jurisdictions the relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for

which no tax benefit was recognized due to valuation allowance
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Successor

The annual effective tax rate in the
year

ended December 31 2010 was impacted by $2 million benefit

related to tax contingencies for favorable tax settlements in various jurisdictions $21 million benefit related to

valuation allowance changes in various countries outside the U.S $29 million benefit for U.S primarily

related to research and development credit and $15 million benefit due to changes in estimate related to tax law

changes in Mexico

During the Successor period of 2009 our tax rate was affected by the tax rates in non-U.S jurisdictions the

relative amount of income we earn in such jurisdictions and the relative amount of losses for which no tax benefit

would be recognized due to valuation allowance

Predecessor

The annual effective tax rate and the income tax benefit for the Predecessor Period of 2009 were favorably

impacted by the recognition of $306 million and $52 million of tax benefits in continuing operations due tO the

elimination of the disproportionate tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income related to the salaried

pension and OPEB obligations respectively which were settled during the same period Refer to Note 15

Income Taxes to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein

Equity Income Loss Net of Tax

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended August 19 to January to

December 312010 December 312009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Equity income loss net of tax 17 36

Successor

During both the year ended 2010 and the Successor Period of 2009 equity income reflects our interest in the

results of ongoing operations of entities accounted for as equity-method investments principally from our South

Korean and Mexican joint Ventures

Predecessor

Equity income loss net of tax in the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes $23 million impairment charge

related to an investment in non-consolidated affiliate as well as the overall negative economic impact resulting

from the industry downturn during 2009

Loss from Discontinued Operations Net of Tax

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October 62009

in millions

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax 44

Predecessor

The loss from discontinued operations for the Predecessor Period of 2009 includes the losses related to the

operations and assets held for sale of the halfshaft and steering system products the Steering Business and the

Automotive Holdings Group AHG which included various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not

fit our or the Predecessors strategic framework
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Results of Operations by Segment

The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs related to

the implementation of information technology systems to support finance manufacturing and product development

initiatives certain plant consolidations and closures costs and consolidation of many staff administrative functions into

global business service group The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income loss attributable to Successor/Predecessor

follows

Successor

Electrical

Electronic Powertrain

Architecture Systems
__________ _______ ___________ ________

2010

Adjusted EBITDA
Transformation and rationalization charges

Employee termination benefits and other exit costs

Other transformation and rationalization costs

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income loss

Interest expense

Other income net

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

and equity income 944

Income tax expense 258
Equity income net of tax 17

Net income 703

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 72

Net income attributable to Successor 631

Total

758

94
14
650

108

542

423

49
13

361

170

191

Electronics Thermal Eliminations

and Safety Systems and Other

in millions

293 165 1633

224
48

______ ______
1361

______ ______
421

______ ______
940

30
34

29
17

247

100

147

52

109

42
67

Electrical

Electronic

Architecture

Successor

Powertrain

Systems

Electronics Thermal Eliminations

and Safety Systems and Other

in millions

Total

August 19 December 31 2009

Adjusted EBITDA 155 79 56 21 313

Transformation and rationalization charges

Employee termination benefits and other exit costs 50 50 20 126
Other transformation and rationalization costs 11 20 19 58

EBITDA 94 17 $1 129

Depreciation and amortization 31 52 39 17 139

Operating loss income 63 43 22 $1 10

Interest expense

Other expense net 17
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and

equity income 35
Income tax benefit 27

Equity income net of tax

Net loss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 15

Net loss attributable to Successor 18
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Predecessor

January October 2009

Adjusted EBITDA
Transformation and rationalization charges

Employee termination benefits and other exit

costs

Other transformation and rationalization

costs

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortization

Discontinued operations

Operating loss

Other income net

Reorganization items

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity loss

Income tax benefit

Equity loss net of tax

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Net income attributable to Predecessor

Net sales and gross margin as percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31 2010 and periods from

August 19 to December 31 and January to October 2009 by segment are as follows

Net Sales by Segment

Successor Predecessor

Period Period

from from

August 19 January 2010 versus

Year ended to to full year 2009

December 31 December 31 October favorable

2010 2009 2009 unfavorable
_____________________________

in millions in millions

2970 1325

2667 462

1801 159

1008 230

112 114

8334 2062

Electrical

Electronic Powertrain

Architecture Systems

Electronics Thermal Eliminations

and Safety Systems and Other

in millions

Total

18 $214 17 229

91 1199

15

132

147

279

45

17

71

163

$234

11 235

14
$319

177

496

$4
53

49

$4

64

60

50

514

540
64

1118

24

10210

9116
311

36
44

9347

29

9318

Variance due to

Electrical/ Electronic

Architecture 5620 1325

Powertrain Systems 4086 957

Electronics and

Safety 2721 761

Thermal Systems 1603 365

Eliminations and

Other 213 13

Total 13817 3421

Volume net

of

Operations contractual Conunodity
not price pass-

acquired reductions through FX Other Total

in millions

1215 135 26 1325

384 879 36 462

96 294 38 159

172 384 10 230

13 47 181 114

639 2725 145 $91 $78 2062
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Eliminations and Other includes $75 million of keep site facilitation reimbursements recognized by the Predecessor

during the period from January to October 2009 as result of the Amended MRA which became effective in

September 2008 refer to Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan to the audited consolidated

financial statements included herein for more information

Foreign exchange fluctuations are primarily related to the Euro

Gross Margin Percentage by Segment

ElectricallElectronic Architecture

Powertrain Systems

Electronics and Safety

Thermal Systems

Eliminations and Other

Total

EBITDA by Segment

Successor Predecessor

Period from

Period from January 2010 versus

Year ended August 19 to to full year 2009

December 31 December 31 October favorable

2010 2009 2009 unfavorable
______________________________________________

in millions in millions

As noted in the tableabove 2010 EBITDA as compared to Full Year 2009 EBITDA was impacted by Operations Not

Acquired by the Successor volume and contractual price reductions and operational performance improvements which

include favorable manufacturing and engineering performance offset by unfavorable material and freight economics as well

as the following items included in Other in the table above

$137 million of decreased costs associated with restructuring activities resulting in employee termination benefit

cost reductions including $82 million $46 million and $55 million in the Electronics and Safety Powertrain

Systems and ElectricallElectronic Architecture respectively offset by increased costs of $36 million and $10

million in the Thermal Systems and Eliminations and Other segments respectively

Favorable foreign currency exchange impact of $29 million primarily due to the Euro Brazilian Real Polish Zloty

and British pound including $24 million $4 million and $10 million in the Electronics and Safety Powertrain

Systems and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments respectively which were partially offset by $9 million of

unfavorable foreign currency exchange in the Thermal Systems segment

$150 million of decreases in pension and OPEB offset by favorable EBITDA from discontinued operations of $64

million in the Eliminations and Other segment

Approximately $60 million of decreased SGA as result of the positive effects of cost savings initiatives

Successor Predecessor

Period from

January to

October 62009

1.4%

2.6%

12.9%
3.2%

49.1%

1.8%

Period from

Year ended August 19 to

December 312010 December 312009

16.8% 14.5%

13.8% 10.1%

12.8% 7.9%

12.4% 5.5%

1.4% 38.5%

14.8% 10.9%

Variance due to

Volume net

of

Electrical/ Electronic

Architecture 650 94

Powertrain Systems 361

Electronics and Safety 247 17

Thennal Systems 109

Eliminations and Other

Total 1361 129

132
71

319

514

688

423

549

97

11

1746

contractual

Operations price Operational

not acquired reductions performance Other Total

in millions

358 161 169 688

23 283 70 47 423

10 118 211 230 549

14 75 41 33 97

99 88 11

72 834 483 501 1746
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview of Capital Structure

As of December 31 2011 we had cash and cash equivalents of $1.4 billion and net debt defined as

outstanding debt less cash and cash equivalents of $740 million We also have access to additional liquidity

pursuant to the terms of the $1.3 billion Revolving Credit Facility as described below We expect existing cash

available liquidity and cash flows from operations to continue to be sufficient to fund our global operating

activities and capital expenditures We also continue to expect to be able to move funds between different

countries to manage our global liquidity needs without material adverse tax implications subject to current

monetary policies and to the terms of the Credit Agreement Based on this we believe we possess sufficient

liquidity to fund our operations and capital investments in 2012 and beyond

On March 31 2011 all outstanding Class and Class membership interests were redeemed for $3791

million and $594 million respectively In conjunction with the redemption transaction Delphi Automotive LLP

incurred transaction-related fees and expenses totaling approximately $180 million including amounts paid to

certain membership interest holders In addition Delphi Automotive LLP obtained necessary consents to the

redemption of the Class and Class membership interests and modified and eliminated specific rights

provided to these membership interest holders under the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability

Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP Subsequent to the redemption transaction on March 31 2011

Delphi Automotive LLP membership interest equity was comprised of single voting class of membership

interests the Class membership interests of Delphi Automotive LLP In addition to this class of voting

membership interests non-voting Class E-1 membership interests were held by the Board of Managers of Delphi

Automotive LLP

On July 12 2011 the Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi

Automotive LLP was amended and restated by the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership

Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP the Fourth LLP Agreement The Fourth LLP Agreement was

undertaken to further position us for our initial public offering Refer to Note 16 Capital Stock and Net Income

Loss Per Share to the audited consolidated financial statements for additional information

In August 2011 the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved repurchase program of Class

membership interests In 2011 prior to the initial public offering 10005 Class membership interests were

repurchased for cumulative cost of approximately $180 million at an average price per membership interests

unit of $17904 This was recorded as reduction to the carrying value of the Class membership interests

In October 2011 the Board of Managers of Delphi Automotive LLP approved distribution of

approximately $95 million which was paid on December 2011 principally in respect of taxes to members

who held membership interests as of the close of business on October 31 2011 pursuant to the terms of the

Fourth LLP Agreement

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to the completion of its initial public offering

on November 22 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC completed the initial public offering of 24078827 ordinary

shares by the selling shareholders for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $530 million Delphi

Automotive PLC did not receive any proceeds from the offering and incurred transaction fees and expenses of

approximately $44 million

Other

In January 2012 the Board of Directors authorized the purchase and redemption of up to $300 million of

ordinary shares The program will terminate on the earlier of December 31 2012 or when the Company attains
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$300 million in ordinary share repurchases To the extent we generate discretionary cash flow we may consider

using this additional cash flow for optional prepayments of existing indebtedness strategic acquisitions

dividends on share capital additional share repurchases and/or general corporate purposes

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement for the Senior Notes during the first half of 2012 the

Company expects to file Form S-4 Registration Statement to register the debt securities

Credit Agreement

In March 2011 in conjunction with the redemption of membership interests from Class and Class

membership interest holders Delphi Corporation wholly-owned U.S subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP

the Issuer entered into credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as lead arranger and

administrative agent with respect to $3.0 billion in senior secured credit facilities the Credit Facilities The

March 2011 agreement has been amended and restated the Credit Agreement and as of December 31 2011

consists of $1.3 billion 5-year senior secured revolving credit facility the Revolving Credit Facility $258

million senior secured 5-year term loan the Tranche Term Loan and $950 million senior secured

6-year term loan the Tranche Term Loan During the year ended December 31 2011 $47 million and

$177 million of the Tranche Term Loan and Tranche Term Loan respectively were repaid under the Credit

Agreement In conjunction with the repayments approximately $10 million of debt issuance costs were

extinguished The maximum amount drawn under our Revolving Credit Facility in 2011 to manage intra-month

working capital needs was $150 million The Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn at December 31 2011 As

of December 31 2011 we had approximately $9 million in letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement

Letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement reduce availability under the Revolving Credit Facility

The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate at the Issuers option of either the Administrative Agents

Alternate Base Rate ABR as defined in the Credit Agreement plus with respect to the Revolving Credit

Facility and the Tranche Term Loan 1.50% per annum or iiwith respect to the Tranche Term Loan

1.50% per annum or the London Interbank Offered Rate the Adjusted LIBO Rate as defined in the Credit

Agreement LIBOR plus with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term Loan

2.50% per annum or ii with respect to the Tranche Term Loan 2.50% per annum since our initial public

offering The Tranche Term Loan includes LIBOR floor of 1.00%

The interest rate period with respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one- two- three- or

six-months as selected by the Issuer in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement or other period as

may be agreed by the applicable lenders but payable no less than quarterly The Issuer may elect to change the

selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit

Agreement The applicable interest rates listed above for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term

Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by 0.25% based upon changes to our corporate credit ratings

Accordingly the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the

ABR LIBOR or future changes in our corporate credit ratings Upon completion of our initial public offering

the applicable interest rates for the Tranche Term Loan and Revolving Credit Facility were reduced by

25 basis points The Credit Agreement also requires that the Issuer pay certain commitment fees on the unused

portion of the Revolving Credit Facility and certain letter of credit issuance and fronting fees

The Issuer is obligated to make quarterly principal payments throughout the terms of the Tranche and

Tranche Term Loans according to the amortization schedule in the Credit Agreement In conjunction with the

repayments during the
year

ended December 31 2011 all quarterly principal payment obligations prior to

maturity have been satisfied for the Tranche Term Loan and quarterly principal payments have been satisfied

through December 31 2013 for the Tranche Term Loan and partially satisfied through March 31 2014

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are prepayable at the Issuers option without premium or penalty

provided that any prepayment of the Tranche Term Loan is accompanied by pro rata payment of the Tranche

Term Loan based on the respective amounts then outstanding The Issuer may request that all or portion of
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the Term Loans be converted to extend the scheduled maturity dates with respect to all or portion of any

principal amount of such Term Loans under certain conditions The Credit Agreement also contains certain

mandatory prepayment provisions in the event we generate excess cash flow as defined in the Credit

Agreement or we receive net cash proceeds from any asset sale or casualty event No mandatory prepayments

under these provisions have been made or are due through December 31 2011

As of December 31 2011 the Issuer selected the one-month LIBOR interest rate option as detailed in the

table below for amounts outstanding net of the discount in millions and rates effective as of December 31

2011 were

Borrowings Rates effective

asof asof

December 31 December 31
LIBOR plus 2011 2011

Revolving Credit Facility 2.50%

Tranche Term Loan 2.50% 210 2.8 1%

Tranche Term Loan 2.50% 772 3.50%

Includes LIBOR floor of 1.00%

The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants that limit among other things our and our subsidiaries

ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens to dispose of assets to make certain investments to prepay

certain indebtedness and to pay dividends or to make other distributions or redemptions/repurchases in respect

of our equity interests In addition the Credit Agreement requires that we maintain consolidated leverage ratio

the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA each as defined in the Credit Agreement

of less than 2.75 to 1.0 The Credit Agreement also contains events of default customary for financings of this

type We were in compliance with the Credit Agreement covenants as of December 31 2011

The Tranche Term Loan and the Tranche Term Loan were each issued under the Credit Agreement at

0.5% discount and we paid approximately $86 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit

Facilities The discount and debt issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the facility The amended and

modified Credit Agreement reduced the discount related to the Tranche Term Loan to 0.25%

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are borrowed by Delphi Corporation and jointly and severally

guaranteed by its direct and indirect parent companies and by certain of Delphi Automotive PLCs existing and

future direct and indirect U.S subsidiaries subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement All

obligations under the Credit Agreement including the guarantees of those obligations are secured by certain

assets of Delphi Corporation and the guarantors including substantially all of the assets of Delphi Automotive

PLC and its U.S subsidiaries and certain assets of Delphi Corporations direct and indirect parent companies

Senior Notes

On May 17 2011 Delphi Corporation issued $500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and $500

million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021 the Senior Notes in transaction exempt from registration under

Rule 144A and Regulation of the Securities Act The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed

jointly and severally by Delphi Automotive PLC and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries Interest is

payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year Delphi paid $30 million of interest in

November 2011 We paid approximately $23 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Senior Notes

The net proceeds of approximately $1.0 billion as well as cash on hand were used to pay down amounts

outstanding under the Credit Agreement

The indenture governing the Senior Notes limits among other things our and our subsidiaries ability to

incur additional indebtedness or liens dispose of assets make certain restricted payments or investments enter

into transactions with affiliates or merge with or into other entities
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Acquisition Financing

In connection with the Acquisition Delphi Automotive LLP issued $41 million in senior unsecured five-

year notes the Old Notes pursuant to Note Purchase Agreement the NPA with an Acquisition Date fair

value of $49 million and ii entered into senior secured delayed draw term loan facility the DDTL with

syndicate of lenders The Old Notes paid 12% interest and were scheduled to mature on October 2014 The

DDTL permitted borrowings of up to $890 million consisting of U.S tranche of up to $267 million in

borrowings and foreign tranche of up to $623 million in borrowings There was no commitment fee associated

with the DDTL but if drawn we were required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum with

minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum The DDTL had term of years majority of the holders of the

Old Notes and the lenders under the DDTL were related parties as holders of the Class and Class

membership interests

In connection with the redemption of the Class and Class membership interests on March 31 2011 and

execution of the Credit Agreement each of the DDTL and the NPA was terminated including the termination

discharge and release of all security and guarantees granted in connection with the DDTL and the NPA and we

paid approximately $57 million to redeem the Old Notes in full In connection with the termination of the Old

Notes we incurred early termination penalties and recognized loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately

$9 million for the year ended December 31 2011

Other Financing and Liquidity

Accounts receivable factoringWe maintain various accounts receivable factoring facilities in Europe that

are accounted for as short-term debt We utilize these programs to fund our working capital needs including our

intra-month liquidity needs These unconmiitted factoring facilities are available through various financial

institutions As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $54 million and $112 million respectively was outstanding

under these accounts receivable factoring facilities

Capital leases and otherAs of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $67 million and $130

million respectively of other debt issued by certain international subsidiaries was outstanding primarily related

to bank lines in Asia Pacific and capital lease obligations

U.S Federal Government ProgramsWe have numerous technology and manufacturing development

programs that are competitively awarded from agencies of the U.S Federal Government These programs are

from the U.S Department of Transportation DOT the U.S Department of Energy DOE and the U.S

Department of Defense DoD We received $55 million from these Federal agencies in 2011 for work

performed These programs supplement our internal research and development funds and directly support our

product focus of Safe Green and Connected The largest current program by cost was awarded as part of the

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 through which the DOE will reimburse us for 50% of project

costs up to total reimbursements of $89 million associated with the development and low cost U.S

manufacturing of power electronics related to electric and hybrid electric vehicles The project period for this

grant is January 2010 through December 2012 As of December 31 2011 we have received from the DOE
related project cost reimbursements of $62 million During 2012 we expect to complete this project and receive

the remaining project cost reimbursements from the DOE of $27 million During 2011 we pursued many

technology development programs by bidding on competitively procured programs from DOT DOE and

DoD Some of these programs were bid with us being the lead or Prime Contractor and some were bid with us

as Subrecipient to the Prime Contractor We were awarded new programs with nearly $6 million of U.S

Government funds that will be received over the next 36 months

Warranty settlementOn April 30 2011 we paid 90 million approximately $133 million at April 30

2011 exchange rates under the terms of March 2011 warranty settlement We are also required to make

60 million approximately $78 million at December 31 2011 exchange rates payment on April 30 2012 related

to this settlement
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Con fractual Commitments

The following table summarizes our expected cash outflows resulting from financial contracts and

conmiitments as of December 31 2011 We have not included information on our recurring purchases of

materials for use in our manufacturing operations These amounts are generally consistent from
year to year

closely reflect our levels of production and are not long-term in nature The amounts below exclude as of

December 31 2011 the
gross liability for uncertain tax positions of $99 million related to the items below We

do not expect significant payment related to these obligations to be made within the next twelve months We
are not able to provide reasonably reliable estimate of the timing of future payments relating to the non-current

portion of obligations associated with uncertain tax positions For more information refer to Note 15 Income

Taxes to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein

Debt and capital lease obligations 2106

Estimated interest costs related to debt and

capital lease obligations 733

Operating lease obligations 325

Contractual commitments for capital

expenditures 233

Other contractual purchase commitments

including information technology 208

Total 3605

116 204 195 218

82 124 86 33

232

77 71 43 17

614 431 514 2046

We also have significant obligations to make payments to management under our Value Creation Plan that

are not reflected in the table above See Note 21 Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated

financial statements included herein for additional information

Payments due by Period

Total 2012 2013 2014

in millions

107 31

2015 2016 Thereafter

190 1778
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Capital Expenditures

Supplier selection in the auto industry is generally finalized several years prior to the start of production of

the vehicle Therefore current capital expenditures are based on customer commitments entered into previously

generally several years ago when the customer contract was awarded As of December 31 2011 we had

approximately $233 million in outstanding cancellable and non-cancellable capital commitments Capital

expenditures by operating segment and geographic region for the periods presented were

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

ElectricalfElectronic Architecture 219 202 21 60

Powertrain Systems 228 186 41 167

Electronics and Safety 100 59 14 58

Thermal Systems 70 35 29

Eliminations and Other 13 18

Continuing operations capital expenditures 630 500 88 321

Discontinued operations 99

Total capital expenditures 630 500 88 420

North America 176 140 21 91

Europe Middle East Africa 278 236 51 187

Asia Pacific 118 87 28

South America 58 37 10 15

Continuing operations capital expenditures 630 500 88 321

Discontinued operations 99

Total capital expenditures 630 500 88 420

Cash Flows

Intra-month cash flow cycles vary by region but in general we are users of cash through the first half of

typical month and we generate cash during the latter half of typical month Due to this cycle of cash flows we

may utilize short-term financing including our Revolving Credit Facility and European factoring lines to

manage our intra-month working capital needs Our cash balance typically peaks at month end

Cash in the U.S is managed centrally through U.S cash pooling arrangement As of December 31 2011

all but one of our European operations were participating in European cash pool Outside the U.S and those

countries participating in the pan-European cash pool cash may be managed through country cash pool self-

managed cash flow arrangement or combination of the two depending on our presence in the respective

country

Operating Activities Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $1377 million and $1142 million for

the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The $235 million increase primarily reflects higher

earnings resulting from increased volumes partially offset by higher working capital requirements Cash flow

from operating activities for the year ended December 31 2011 consisted of net earnings of $1223 million

increased by $475 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization partially offset by $370

million related to changes in operating assets and liabilities net of restructuring and pension contributions Cash

flow from operating activities for the year ended December 31 2010 consisted of net earnings of $703 million
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increased by $421 million for non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization partially offset by $9 million

related to changes in operating assets and liabilities net of restructuring and pension contributions

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $159 million for the Successor period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 which resulted primarily from the improvements in OEM production volumes during the

fourth quarter of 2009 resulting in near break-even net earnings increased by $139 million for non-cash charges

for depreciation and amortization Net cash used in operating activities totaled $257 million for the Predecessor

period from January to October 2009 which primarily reflected the decreased OEM production volumes

during this period

Investing Activities Net cash used in investing activities totaled $10 million and $911 million for the years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The decrease is primarily due to the net change related to

maturities/purchases of time deposits partially offset by $130 million increase in capital expenditures

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled $885 million for the Successor period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 which resulted primarily from $862 million acquired from the Predecessor as result of the

Acquisition In addition cash used for capital expenditures of $88 million for the Successor period from

August 19 to December 31 2009 were offset by $74 million in proceeds from the sale of the brakes and

suspensions and occupant protection systems businesses and $28 million decrease in restricted cash Net cash

used in investing activities totaled $1052 million for the Predecessor period from January to October 2009

which resulted primarily from $862 million acquired by the Successor as result of the Acquisition

Additionally cash used for capital expenditures of $321 million for the Predecessor period from January ito

October 2009 was offset by decreases in restricted cash of $142 million

Financing Activities Net cash used in financing activities totaled $3194 million and $126 million for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended

December 31 2011 was driven by the redemption of the Class and Class membership interests for $4566

million and the repurchase of Class 13 membership interests for $181 million offset by the proceeds received net

of repayments from the issuance of debt to partially fund the redemption transaction and the repayment of the

Old Notes of $1689 million Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 was

driven by $99 million of net repayments under debt agreements and $27 million of dividend payments to

minority shareholders of consolidated affiliates

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $2062 million for the Successor period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 which resulted from the $2042 million of cash received associated with the issuance of

Class and Class membership interests in us Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $315 million

for the Predecessor period from January to October 2009 During this period the Predecessor received $850

million under GM liquidity support agreements and repaid $488 million under the amended and restated

debtor-in-possession facility and short-term debt agreements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Other Matters

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet financial arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have

current or future effect on our financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results

of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources

Pension Benefits

Certain of our non-U.S subsidiaries sponsor
defined benefit pension plans which generally provide benefits

based on negotiated amounts for each year
of service Our primary non-U.S plans are located in France

Germany Luxembourg Mexico Portugal and the United Kingdom U.K. The U.K and certain Mexican
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plans are funded In addition we have defined benefit plans in South Korea Turkey and Italy for which amounts

are payable to employees immediately upon separation The obligations for these plans are recorded based on the

vested obligation We anticipate making required pension contributions of approximately $55 million in 2012

Delphi sponsors Supplemental Executive Retirement Program SERP for those employees who were

U.S executives prior to September 30 2008 and were still U.S executives on October 2009 the effective date

of the program This program is unfunded Executives receive benefits over years
after an involuntary or

voluntary separation from Delphi The SERP is closed to new members and was frozen effective September 30
2008 Refer to Note 13 Pension Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements for further information

Prior to the PBGC termination of the U.S pension plans the Predecessor sponsored pension plans covering

employees in the U.S which generally provided benefits of stated amounts for each year of service as well as

supplemental benefits for employees who qualified for retirement before normal retirement age Certain

employees also participated in non-qualified pension plans covering executives which are based on targeted

wage replacement percentages and are unfunded The Predecessor froze the salaried plan the SERP the ASEC

Manufacturing Retirement Program the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining

Retirement Plan collectively the Pension Plans effective September 30 2008 Additionally the Predecessor

reached agreement with its labor unions resulting in freeze of traditional benefit accruals under the Delphi

hourly-rate employees pension plan effective as of November 30 2008

The PBGC terminated the Pension Plans on July 31 2009 Accordingly the Predecessor recognized

pension curtailment and settlement loss of $2.8 billion included in reorganization items in the consolidated

statements of operations for the three and nine month periods ended September 30 2009 This loss included the

reversal of $5.2 billion of liabilities subject to compromise related to the Pension Plans offset by the recognition

of $5.0 billion of related unamortized losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income

and the recognition of $3.0 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim granted to the PBGC

On February 2009 the Predecessor filed motion with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the

Southern District of New York the Court seeking the authority to cease providing retiree OPEB benefits in

retirement to salaried employees retirees and surviving spouses after March 31 2009 On February 24 2009

the Court provisionally approved the Predecessors motion to terminate such benefits effective March 31 2009

based on the Courts finding that the Predecessor had met its evidentiary burdens subject to the appointment of

retirees committee the Retirees Committee to review whether it believes that any of the affected programs

involved vested benefits as opposed to at will or discretionary unvested benefits On March 11 2009 the

Court issued final order approving the Predecessors motion to terminate salaried OPEB benefits The Court

approved settlement agreement the Settlement between the Predecessor and the Retirees Committee and

the Delphi Salaried Retirees Association the Association settling any and all rights for the parties to appeal

the Courts March 11 2009 final order authorizing the Predecessor to terminate salaried OPEB benefits Pursuant

to the Settlement the Predecessor agreed to provide the Retirees Committee with consideration of $9 million to

resolve pending litigation The Predecessor recognized salaried OPEB curtailment and settlement gain of

$1168 million included in reorganization items in the consolidated statement of operations for the period from

January to October 2009 This settlement gain reflects the reversal of existing liabilities of $1173 million

$1181 million net of $8 million to pay salaried OPEB claims incurred but not reported as of March 31 2009

and the recognition of previously unamortized net gains included in accumulated other comprehensive income of

$4 million The reorganization gain also reflects the impact of the $9 million consideration to be provided for the

Settlement described above

Refer to Note 13 Pension Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for

further information on historical benefit costs of the pension plans the principal assumptions used to

determine the pension benefit expense and the actuarial value of the projected benefit obligation for the U.S and

non-U.S pension plans sensitivity analysis of potential changes to pension obligations and expense that

would result from changes in key assumptions and funding obligations
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Environmental Matters

We are subject to the requirements of U.S federal state and local and non-U.S environmental and safety

and health laws and regulations These include laws regulating air emissions water discharge hazardous

materials and waste management We have an environmental management structure designed to facilitate and

support our compliance with these requirements globally Although it is our intent to comply with all such

requirements and regulations we cannot provide assurance that we are at all times in compliance Environmental

requirements are complex change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time Accordingly

we cannot assure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our

eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not be material

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for

the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous substances In addition to clean-up actions brought by U.S

federal state local and non-U.S agencies plaintiffs could raise personal injury or other private claims due to the

presence of hazardous substances on or from property We are currently in the process of investigating and

cleaning up some of our current or former sites In addition there may be soil or groundwater contamination at

several of our properties resulting from historical ongoing or nearby activities

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the undiscounted reserve for environmental investigation and

remediation was approximately $22 million of which $5 million was recorded in accrued liabilities and $17

million was recorded in other long-term liabilities and $23 million of which $5 million was recorded in accrued

liabilities and $18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities respectively We cannot ensure that

environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual

environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of our current reserves In the event

that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded our results of operations could be

materially affected

Legal Proceedings

For description of our legal proceedings see Item Legal Proceedings and Note 14 Commitments and

Contingencies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note Significant Accounting Policies to the audited

consolidated financial statements included herein Certain of our accounting policies require the application of

significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates

By their nature these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty These judgments are based on

our historical experience terms of existing contracts our evaluation of trends in the industry information

provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources as appropriate

We consider an accounting estimate to be critical if

It requires us to make assumptions about matters that were uncertain at the time we were making the

estimate and

Changes in the estimate or different estimates that we could have selected would have had material

impact on our financial condition or results of operations

Acquisition Accounting

Upon the Acquisition the recorded amounts for the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the

Predecessor were adjusted to reflect estimated fair values in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 805
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Business Combinations The fair values were estimated in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures and were based on three generally accepted business valuation

approaches the income market and cost approaches Generally the income and market approaches were used

and weighted by the independent valuation specialists as appropriate

The discounted cash flow DCF method is form of the income approach commonly used to value

business interests The DCF method was based on Company-prepared projections which included variety of

estimates and assumptions While we consider such estimates and assumptions reasonable they are inherently

subject to significant business economic and competitive uncertainties many of which are beyond our control

and therefore may not be realized Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have significant effect on

the determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Acquisition Accordingly

there can be no assurance that the estimates assumptions and values reflected in the valuations will be realized

and actual results could vary materially

Other estimates used in determining fair value include but are not limited to future cash flows or income

related to intangibles market rate assumptions actuarial assumptions for benefit plans and appropriate discount

rates Our estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable but that are inherently

uncertain Acquisition accounting along with the consummation of the Modified Plan and the disposition of the

Predecessor has had material effect on the financial Statements Refer to Note General to the audited

consolidated financial statements included herein for additional information

Warranty Obligations

Estimating warranty obligations requires us to forecast the resolution of existing claims and expected future

claims on products sold We base our estimate on historical trends of units sold and payment amounts combined

with our current understanding of the status of existing claims and discussions with our customers The key

factors which impact our estimates are the stated or implied warranty period OEM source OEM
policy decisions regarding warranty claims and OEMs seeking to hold suppliers responsible for product

warranties These estimates are re-evaluated on an ongoing basis Actual warranty obligations could differ from

the amounts estimated requiring adjustments to existing reserves in future periods Due to the uncertainty and

potential volatility of the factors contributing to developing these estimates changes in our assumptions could

materially affect our results of operations

Legal and Other Contingencies

We are involved from time to time in various legal proceedings and claims including commercial or

contractual disputes product liability claims and environmental and other matters that arise in the normal course

of business We routinely assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes related to these matters as

well as ranges of probable losses by consulting with internal personnel involved with such matters as well as

with outside legal counsel handling such matters We have accrued for estimated losses in accordance with U.S

GAAP for those matters where we believe that the likelihood of loss has occurred is probable and the amount

of the loss is reasonably estimable The determination of the amount of such reserves is based on knowledge and

experience with regard to past and current matters and consultation with internal personnel involved with such

matters and with outside legal counsel handling such matters The amount of such reserves may change in the

future due to new developments or changes in circumstances The inherent uncertainty related to the outcome of

these matters can result in amounts materially different from any provisions made with respect to their resolution

Environmental Matters

Environmental remediation liabilities are recognized when loss is probable and can be reasonably

estimated Such liabilities generally are not subject to insurance coverage The cost of each environmental

remediation is estimated by engineering financial and legal specialists based on current law and considers the
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estimated cost of investigation and remediation required and the likelihood that where applicable other

responsible parties will be able to fulfill their legal obligations and commitments The process of estimating

environmental remediation liabilities is complex and dependent primarily on the nature and extent of historical

information and physical data relating to contaminated site the complexity of the site the uncertainty as to

what remediation and technology will be required and the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies and

if applicable other responsible parties In future periods new laws or regulations advances in remediation

technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used could

significantly change our estimates Refer to Note 14 Commitments and Contingencies to the audited

consolidated financial statements included herein for additional details We cannot ensure that environmental

requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that our eventual environmental costs and

liabilities will not exceed the amount of current reserves In the event that such liabilities were to significantly

exceed the amounts recorded our results of operations could be materially affected

Restructuring

Accruals have been recorded in conjunction with our restructuring actions These accruals include estimates

primarily related to employee termination costs contract termination costs and other related exit costs in

conjunction with workforce reduction and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and

engineering processes Actual costs may vary from these estimates These accruals are reviewed on quarterly

basis and changes to restructuring actions are appropriately recognized when identified

Pensions

We use actuarial estimated and related actuarial methods to calculate our obligation and expense We are

required to select certain actuarial assumptions which are determined based on current market conditions

historical information and consultation with and input from our actuaries and asset managers Refer to Note 13

Pension Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for additional details The key

factors which impact our estimates are discount rates asset return assumptions and actuarial

assumptions such as retirement age and mortality which are determined as of the current year measurement date

We review our actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and make modifications to the assumptions based on

current rates and trends when appropriate Experience gains and losses as well as the effects of changes in

actuarial assumptions and plan provisions are amortized over the average future service period of employees

The principal assumptions used to determine the pension expense and the actuarial value of the projected

benefit obligation for the U.S and non-U.S pension plans were

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31

Pension Benefits

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2011 2010 2011 2010

Weighted-average discount rate 3.30% 4.10% 5.24% 5.69%

Weighted-average rate of increase in compensation levels N/A N/A 3.66% 3.88%

Assumptions used to determine net expense for years ended December 31

Pension Benefits

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Weighted-average discount rate 4.10% 5.00% 6.16% 5.69% 5.97% 6.22%

Weighted-average rate of increase in compensation levels ... N/A N/A N/A 3.88% 3.89% 3.95%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets N/A N/A 8.25% 6.65% 7.14% 7.81%
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We select discount rates by analyzing the results of matching each plans projected benefit obligations with

portfolio of high-quality fixed income investments rated AA- or higher by Standard and Poors

In 2011 we no longer had any U.S pension assets therefore no U.S asset rate of return calculation was

necessary for 2011 The primary funded non-U.S plans are in the United Kingdom and Mexico For the

determination of 2011 expense we assumed long-term asset rate of return of approximately 6.25% and 9.50%

for the United Kingdom and Mexico respectively We evaluated input from local actuaries and asset managers

including consideration of recent fund performance and historical returns in developing the long-term rate of

return assumptions The assumptions for the United Kingdom and Mexico are primarily conservative long-term

prospective rates

Our pension expense
for 2012 is determined at the December 31 2011 measurement date For purposes of

analysis the following table highlights the sensitivity of our pension obligations and expense to changes in key

assumptions

Impact on Projected

Change in Assumption Impact on Pension Expense Benefit Obligation

25 basis point bp decrease in discount rate $2 million $66 million

25 bp increase in discount rate $2 million $62 million

25 bp decrease in long-term return on assets $2 million

25 bp increase in long-term return on assets $2 million

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at time It should be noted that

economic factors and conditions often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in

key assumptions are not necessarily linear The above sensitivities also assume no changes to the design of the

pension plans and no major restructuring programs

Based on information provided by our actuaries and asset managers we believe that the assumptions used

are reasonable however changes in these assumptions could impact our financial position results of operations

or cash flows Refer to Note 13 Pension Benefits to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein

for additional information

Accounts Receivable Allowance

Establishing valuation allowances for doubtful accounts requires the use of estimates and judgment in

regard to the risk exposure and ultimate realization The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based

upon analysis of trade receivables for known collectability issues including bankruptcies and aging of

receivables at the end of each period Changes to our assumptions could materially affect our recorded

allowance

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets Intangible Assets and Investments in Affiliates and Expected Useful Lives

We periodically review the recoverability of our long-lived and indefinite-lived assets based on projections

of anticipated future cash flows including future profitability assessments of various manufacturing sites when

events and circumstances warrant such review We estimate cash flows and fair value using internal budgets

based on recent sales data independent automotive production volume estimates and customer commitmentsand

review of appraisals The key factors which impact our estimates are future production estimates

customer preferences and decisions product pricing manufacturing and material cost estimates and

product life business retention Any differences in actual results from the estimates could result in fair

values different from the estimated fair values which could materially impact our future results of operations and

financial condition We believe that the projections of anticipated future cash flows and fair value assumptions

are reasonable however changes in assumptions underlying these estimates could affect our valuations
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost determined on first-in first-out basis or market including

direct material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs Refer to Note Inventories to the audited

consolidated financial statements included herein Obsolete inventory is identified based on analysis of inventory

for known obsolescence issues and as of December 31 2011 the market value of inventory on hand in excess of

one years supply is generally fully-reserved

From time to time payments may be received from suppliers These payments from suppliers are

recognized as reduction of the cost of the material acquired during the period to which the payments relate In

some instances supplier rebates are received in conjunction with or concurrent with the negotiation of future

purchase agreements and these amounts are amortized over the prospective agreement period

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities

for financial and tax reporting purposes Such amounts are adjusted as appropriate to reflect changes in tax rates

expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse valuation allowance is recorded to reduce our

deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized Changes in tax laws or accounting

standards and methods may affect recorded deferred taxes in future periods

When establishing valuation allowance we consider future sources of taxable income such as future

reversals of existing taxable temporary differences future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary

differences and carryforwards and tax planning strategies tax planning strategy is defined as an action

that is prudent and feasible an enterprise ordinarily might not take but would take to prevent an operating loss

or tax credit carryforward from expiring unused and would result in realization of deferred tax assets In the

event we determine the deferred tax assets will not be realized in the future the valuation adjustment to the

deferred tax assets will be charged to earnings in the period in which we make such determination The

valuation of deferred tax assets requires judgment and accounting for the deferred tax effect of events that have

been recorded in the financial statements or in tax returns and our future projected profitability Changes in our

estimates due to unforeseen events or otherwise could have material impact on our financial condition and

results of operations

We calculate our current and deferred tax provision based on estimates and assumptions that could differ

from the actual results reflected in income tax returns filed in subsequent years Adjustments based on filed

returns are recorded when identified The amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits by federal

state and foreign tax authorities Our estimate of the potential outcome of any uncertain tax issue is subject to

managements assessment of relevant risks facts and circumstances existing at that time We use more-likely-

than-not threshold for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be

taken in tax return We record liability for the difference between the benefit recognized and measured and

tax position taken or expected to be taken on our tax return To the extent that our assessment of such tax

positions changes the change in estimate is recorded in the period in which the determination is made We report

tax-related interest and penalties as component of income tax expense We do not believe there is reasonable

likelihood that there will be material change in the tax related balances or valuation allowance

balances However due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties the ultimate resolution may be

materially different from the current estimate Refer to Note 15 Income Taxes to the audited consolidated

financial statements included herein for additional information

Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Instruments

In determining the fair value of our derivatives we utilize valuation techniques as prescribed by FASB ASC

820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures and also prioritize the use of observable inputs The

availability of observable inputs varies amongst derivatives and depends on the type of derivative and how
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actively traded the derivative is For many of our derivatives the valuation does not require significant

management judgment as the valuation inputs are readily observable in the market For other derivatives

however valuation inputs are not as readily observable in the market and significant management judgment may

be required

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the

transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales Changes in fair value are reported currently

through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria Our derivative exposures are with counterparties

with long-term investment grade credit ratings We estimate the fair value of our derivative contracts using an

income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to single discounted amount

Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are determined using

exchange traded prices and rates We also consider the risk of non-performance in the estimation of fair value

and include an adjustment for non-performance risk in the measure of fair value of derivative instruments The

non-performance risk adjustment reflects the full credit default spread CDS applied to the net commodity and

foreign currency exposures by counterparty When we are in net derivative asset position the counterparty

CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position When we are in net derivative liability position

estimates of peer companies CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability position

In certain instances where market data is not available we use management judgment to develop

assumptions that are used to determine fair value This could include situations of market illiquidity for

particular currency or commodity or where observable market data may be limited In those situations we

generally survey investment banks and/or brokers and utilize the surveyed prices and rates in estimating fair

value

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we were in net derivative liability position of $65 million and asset

position of $76 million respectively and there were no adjustments recorded for nonperformance risk based on

the application of peer companies CDS rates and because Delphis exposures were to counterparties with

investment grade credit ratings Refer to Note 17 Fair Value of Financial Instruments Derivatives and Hedging

Activities to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein for more information

Share-Based Compensation

We expense the estimated fair value of the Value Creation Plan as defined and further discussed in Note 21

Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein long-term

incentive plan for key employees Estimating the fair value for share-based payments requires us to make

assumptions regarding the nature of the payout of the award as well as changes in our stock price during the post-

initial public offering period Any differences in actual results from managements estimates could result in fair

values different from estimated fair values which could materially impact our future results of operations and

financial condition The following highlights the sensitivity to changes in our stock price

Impact on 2012

Change in Estimate of Stock Price Operating Expense

10% $9 million

10% $9 million

The fair market value of the Class E-1 Interests as defined and further discussed in Note 21 Share-Based

Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein was estimated based on

contemporaneous valuation performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing generally accepted

valuation approaches Under certain conditions with respect to our initial public offering or change in control

as defined in the Board of Managers 2010 Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan any interests that had not yet vested

would immediately become vested Approximately $8 million was recognized as charge to compensation

expense
since the criteria for immediate vesting was met with respect to the completion of our initial public

offering on November 22 2011
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Refer to Note 21 Share-Based Compensation to the audited consolidated financial statements included

herein for additional information

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note Significant Accounting Policies to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included

herein for complete description of recent accounting standards which we have not yet been required to

implement which may be applicable to our operations Additionally the significant accounting standards that

have been adopted during the year ended December 31 2011 are described
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks from changes in currency exchange rates and certain commodity prices In

order to manage these risks we operate centralized risk management program that consists of entering into

variety of derivative contracts with the intent of mitigating our risk to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates and

commodity prices We do not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes

discussion of our accounting policies for derivative instruments is included in Note Significant

Accounting Policies to the audited consolidated financial statements included herein and further disclosure is

provided in Note 17 Fair Value of Financial Instruments Derivatives and Hedging Activities to the audited

consolidated financial statements included herein We maintain risk management control systems to monitor

exchange and commodity risks and related hedge positions Positions are monitored using variety of analytical

techniques including market value and sensitivity analysis The following analyses are based on sensitivity tests

which assume instantaneous parallel shifts in currency exchange rates and commodity prices For options and

instruments with non-linear returns appropriate models are utilized to determine the impact of shifts in rates and

prices Currently we do not have any options or instruments with non-linear returns

We have currency exposures related to buying selling and financing in currencies other than the local

currencies in which we operate Historically we have reduced our exposure through financial instruments

hedges that provide offsets or limits to our exposures which are opposite to the underlying transactions We
also face an inherent business risk of exposure to commodity prices risks and have historically offset our

exposure particularly to changes in the price of various non-ferrous metals used in our manufacturing operations

through fixed price purchase agreements commodity swaps and option contracts We continue to manage our

exposures to changes in
currency rates and commodity prices using these derivative instruments

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Currency exposures may impact future earnings and/or operating cash flows In some instances we choose

to reduce our exposures through financial instruments hedges that provide offsets or limits to our exposures

Currently our most significant currency exposures relate to the Mexican Peso Euro Chinese Yuan Renminbi

Turkish Lira Romanian New Leu Brazilian Real and Great Britain Pound As of December 31 2011 the net fair

value asset of all financial instruments including hedges and underlying transactions with exposure to currency

risk was approximately $844 million and the net fair value asset at December 31 2010 was $794 million The

potential loss or gain in fair value for such financial instruments from hypothetical 10% adverse or favorable

change in quoted currency exchange rates would be approximately $148 million and $137 million at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The impact of 10% change in rates on fair value differs from 10%

change in the net fair value asset due to the existence of hedges The model assumes parallel shift in currency

exchange rates however currency exchange rates rarely move in the same direction The assumption that

currency exchange rates change in parallel fashion may overstate the impact of changing currency exchange

rates on assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar

Commodity Price Risk

Commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts are executed to offset portion of our exposure to the

potential change in prices mainly for various non-ferrous metals used in the manufacturing of automotive

components The net fair value of our contracts was liability of approximately $27 million and an asset of

approximately $48 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively If the price of the commodities that are

being hedged by our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts changed adversely or favorably by 10%

the fair value of our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts would decrease or increase by $26 million

and $24 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The changes in the net fair value liability differ

from 10% of those balances due to the relative differences between the underlying commodity prices and the

prices in place in our commodity swaps/average rate forward contracts These amounts exclude the offsetting

impact of the price risk inherent in the physical purchase of the underlying commodities
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Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk associated with changes in interest rates relates primarily to our debt

obligations Asof December 31 2011 we had approximately $1 billion of floating rate debt principally related to

the Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate at our option of either the ABR plus

with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term Loan 1.50% per annum or ii with

respect to the Tranche Term Loan 1.50% per annum or LIBOR plus with respect to the Revolving

Credit Facility and the Tranche Term Loan 2.50% per annum or iiwith respect to the Tranche Term Loan

2.50% per annum The Tranche Term Loan includes LIBOR floor of 1.00% The interest rate period with

respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one- two- three- or six-months as selected by us in

accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement or other period as may be agreed by the applicable lenders

but payable no less than quarterly We may elect to change the selected interest rate over the term of the Credit

Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement The applicable interest rates listed above

for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by

025% based on changes to our corporate credit ratings Accordingly the interest rate will fluctuate during the

term of the Credit Agreement based on changes in the Alternate Base Rate LIBOR or future changes in our

corporate credit ratings

The table below indicates interest rate sensitivity on interest expense to floating rate debt based on amounts

outstanding as of December 31 2011

Tranche Tranche

Term Loan Term Loan

impact to annual interest

Change in Rate expense in millions

25 bps decrease

25 bps increase

LIBOR floor of 1.00% prohibits 25 basis point reduction at current LIBOR levels
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Delphi Automotive PLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Delphi Automotive PLC Successor as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income

shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the period from August 19 2009 to

December 31 2009 and of the former Delphi Corporation now known as DPH Holdings Corp Predecessor

for the period from January 2009 to October 2009 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule

included in Item 5a2 These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Delphi Automotive PLC Successor at December 31 2011 and 2010 and the consolidated

results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended and the period from August 19 2009 to

December 31 2009 and of the former Delphi Corporation now known as DPH Holdings Corp Predecessor

for the period from January 2009 to October 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Successor acquired the automotive supply

business other than the global steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities in the U.S of the

Predecessor on October 2009 Accordingly the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been

prepared in conformity with ASC 805 Business Combinations for the Successor as new entity with assets

liabilities and capital structure not comparable to prior periods

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Delphi Automotive internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011

based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Conmiittee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 17 2012 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

Is/ Ernst Young LLP

Detroit Michigan

February 17 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Delphi Automotive PLC

We have audited Delphi Automotive PLC internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011

based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Delphi Automotive PLC management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on

Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Delphi Automotive PLC maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Delphi Automotive PLC Successor as of December 31 2011

and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income shareholders equity

and cash flows for the years then ended and the period from August 19 2009 to December 31 2009 and of the

former Delphi Corporation now known as DPH Holdings Corp Predecessor for the period from January

2009 to October 2009 and our report dated February 17 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Detroit Michigan

February 17 2012
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales

Operating expenses

Cost of sales

Selling general and administrative

Amortization Note

Restructuring Note 11

Total operating expenses

Operating income loss

Interest expense Note
Other expense income net Note 18

Reorganization items net Note

Income loss from continuing operations before

equity income loss

Equity income loss net of tax

Income loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of

Net income loss
Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Amounts attributable to Successor/Predecessor

Income loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations Note 20

Income from continuing operations attributable

to Predecessor

Loss from discontinued operations attributable

to Predecessor

Basic and diluted income per share attributable

to Predecessor

Weighted average shares outstanding

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

in millions except per share amounts

16041 13817 3421

13386 11768 3047

901 815 242

79 70 16

31 224 126

14397 12877 3431

1201 686

22 17

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

See notes to consolidated financial statements

9363

45

9318

Successor

1644

123
15

940

30
34

10

17

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity income loss 1506 944 35
Income tax expense benefit 305 258 27

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October 2009

in millions except

per share amounts

8334

8480

734

235

9452

1118

24

10210

9116

311

9427

36

9391

44

9347

29

9318

1223

tax

703

1223 703

78 72 15

Net income loss attributable

to Successor/Predecessor 1145 631 18

1145 .$ 631 18

Net income loss attributable to Successor/

Predecessor 1145 631 18

Net income loss per share

Basic and diluted income loss per share

attributable to Successor 2.72 0.92 0.03

Weighted average shares outstanding 421 686 685

N/A

N/A

16.58

0.08

16.50

565
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Successor Predecessor

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to Period from

December 31 December 31 December 31 January to

2011 2010 2009 October6 2009

in millions in millions

Net income loss 1223 703 9347

Other comprehensive loss income

Currency translation adjustments 94 16 171

Net change in unrecognized loss gain on

derivative instruments net of tax Note 17... 98 48 42

Employee benefit plans adjustment net of

tax Note 13 77 26 33 4733

Other comprehensive loss income 269 70 22 4946

Comprehensive income 954 773 19 14293

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling

interests 83 75 13 30

Comprehensive income attributable

to Successor/Predecessor 871 698 14263

Other comprehensive loss income is net of $57 million tax effect $31 million tax effect $0 million tax effect

and $0 million tax effect related to unrecognized income on derivative instruments for the years ended December 31

2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and from January ito October 2009

respectively

Other comprehensive loss income is net of $22 million tax effect $7 million tax effect $10 million tax effect

and $371 million tax effect related to employee benefit plans liability adjustments for the years ended December 31

2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and from January ito October 2009

respectively

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents Note 1363 3219

Restricted cash 47

Time deposits Note 550

Accounts receivable net Note 2459 2307

Inventories Note 1054 988

Other current assets Note 616 555

Total current assets 5501 7666

Long-term assets

Property net Note 2315 2067

Investments in affiliates Note 257 281

Intangible assets net Note 596 665

Other long-term assets Note 459 403

Total long-term assets 3627 3416

Total assets 9128 11082

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term debt Note 12 107 218

Accounts payable 2397 2236

Accrued liabilities Note 1208 1265

Total current liabilities 3712 3719

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt Note 12 1996 71

Pension benefitobligations Note 13 674 677

Other long-term liabilities Note 575 516

Total long-term liabilities 3245 1264

Total liabilities 6957 4983

Commitments and contingencies Note 14

Shareholders equity

Preferred shares $0.01 par value per share 50000000 shares authorized none

issued and outstanding

Ordinary shares $0.01 par value per share 1200000000 shares authorized

328244510 issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital 1758

Retained earnings 110

Membership interests Note 16 5550

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 183 91

Total Delphi shareholders equity 1688 5641

Noncontrolling interest 483 458

Total shareholders equity 2171 6099

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 9128 11082

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 1223 703 9347

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used in

operating activities

Depreciation 396 351 123 537

Amortization 79 70 16

Amortization of deferred issuance costs 10

Restructuring expense net of cash paid 74 67 23 57

Deferred income taxes 36 14 93 380
Pension benefit expenses 70 59 23 315

Equity income loss net of dividends received 13 44

Reorganization items Note 10210
Loss gain on investments extinguishment of debt 12
Shared-based compensation 14

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net 149 184 85 122

Inventories 64 130 40 149

Othercurrentassets 31 66 138 154

Accounts payable 98 354 277 123
Accrued and other long-term liabilities 88 94 353
Other net 24 111 223

Pensioncontributions 159 117 44 111
Other net 102
Discontinued operations Note 20 68

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 1377 1142 159 257

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 630 500 88 321
Purchase of time deposits 750
Maturity of time deposits 550 200

Proceeds from sale of property/investments 72 93 74 36

Cost of acquisitions net of cash acquired 17
Decrease in restricted cash 38 49 28 142

Loans to related parties 14
Cash acquired from Delphi Corporation 862 862
Other net 11
Discontinued operations 36

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 10 911 885 1052

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of amended and restated debtor-in-possession facility 244
Accommodation agreement issuance costs 40
Net borrowings under GM liquidity support agreements 850

Net repayments under other short-term debt agreements 125 49 21 244
Repayments under long-term debt agreements 50
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured term loans net of issuance costs 2385

Repayment of senior secured terms loans 1490
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes net of issuance costs 976

Repayment of five-year notes 57
Proceeds from issuance of membership interests 2042
Proceeds from issuance of five-year notes 41

Dividend payments of consolidated affiliates to minority shareholders 43 27 13
Distributions to Delphi equity holders 93
Redemption of membership interests 4747
Discontinued operations

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 3194 126 2062 315

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 29 35

Decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 1856 112 3107 959
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3219 3107 959

Cashandcashequivalentsatendofperiod 1363 3219 3107

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICITPREDECESSOR

Accumulated

Paid-in

Capital

2747

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Non-

controlling

Interest

137

29

Total

Shareholders

Equity

Deficit

14266
9347

4946

Common Stock

Shares Amount

Balance at January 12009 565

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Deconsolidation of noncontrolling

interest

Dividends

Impact of the Acquisition 565

Balance at October 62009

Retained Accumulated

Earnings Other

Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury
Deficit Income Loss Stock

in millions

12064 5086
9318

4945

20 20
2747 2746 141 140
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITYSUCCESSOR

Ordinary Shares Membership Interests
Accumulated

Number Additional Other

of Paid in Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Class Class Class Class E-1 Total Income Loss

1969 2406 539

114 410 107

67 67 70

45 45

2083 2816 $646 $5 5550 91 5641 458 6099

110 76 930 25 1035 1145 78 1223

274 274
92 93 93

2160 1911 671 4747 4747

loss from employee benefit plans liability adjustments of $18 million net of $5 million tax effect

See notes to consolidated financial statements

12 18

Total Delphi Non-

Shareholders controlling

Equity Interest

18 15

Total

Share
holders

Equity

4932

24 24 22

1972 2418 542 4932 4932

415 415

24 4938 428 5366

631 72 703

$4914

631

Balance at August 19

2009

Net loss

Other comprehensive

income

Issuance of membership

interests Note 16

Impact of the Acquisition

Note

Balance at December 31
2009

Net income

Other comprehensive

income

Dividends

Restricted interests recognized

Note 21

Balance at December 31
2010

Net income

Other comprehensive

income 269
Dividends 51 144
Restricted interests recognized

Note 21

Acquisition
of

minority

interest

Redemption of membership

interest 4747
Equity conversion

November 328 1751 1744 10 1754
Share based compensation

Balance at December 31
2011 328 $3 1758 110 183b 1688 483 2171

As of December 31 2010 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income totaled $91 million net of $48 million tax effect and

included

loss from currency translation adjustments and other of $21 million

Income from unrecognized gain on derivative instruments of $53 million net of $31 million tax effect and

Income from employee benefit plans liability adjustments of $59 million net of $17 million tax effect

As of December 2011 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss totaled $183 million net of $31 million tax effect and included

loss from currency translation adjustments and other of $120 million

loss from net changes in unrecognized income on derivative instruments of $45 million net of $26 million tax effect

and
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Delphi the Company and the Successor refer to Delphi Automotive PLC public limited company

which was formed under the laws of Jersey on May 19 2011 together with its subsidiaries including Delphi

Automotive LLP limited liability partnership incorporated under the laws of England and Wales which was

formed on August 19 2009 for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of the former Delphi Corporation and

became subsidiary of Delphi Automotive PLC in connection with the completion of the Companys initial

public offering on November 22 201 The former Delphi Corporation and as the context may require its

subsidiaries and affiliates are referred to herein as the Predecessor

Nature of operationsDel phi is leading global vehicle components manufacturer and provides electrical

and electronic powertrain safety and thermal technology solutions to the global automotive and commercial

vehicle markets Delphi is one of the largest vehicle component manufacturers and its customers include 24 of

the 25 largest automotive original equipment manufacturers OEMs in the world Delphi operates 114 major

manufacturing facilities and 15 major technical centers utilizing regional service model that enables the

Company to efficiently and effectively serve its global customers from low cost countries Delphi has presence

in 30 countries and has over 17000 scientists engineers and technicians focused on developing market relevant

product solutions for its customers In line with the growth in emerging markets Delphi has been increasing its

focus on these markets particularly in China where the Company has major manufacturing base and strong

customer relationships

Corporate historyOn October 2005 the Petition Date the former Delphi Corporation now known

as DPH Holdings Corp and certain of its United States U.S subsidiaries the Initial Filers filed voluntary

petitions for reorganization relief under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code the Bankruptcy

Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York the Court On

October 14 2005 three additional U.S subsidiaries of the former Delphi Corporation together with the Initial

Filers collectively the Debtors filed voluntary petitions for reorganization relief under chapter 11 of the

Bankruptcy Code collectively the Debtors October 2005 and October 14 2005 filings are referred to herein

as the Chapter 11 Filings On July 30 2009 the Court approved modifications to the First Amended Joint Plan

Of Reorganization Of Delphi Corporation And Certain Affiliates Debtors And Debtors-In-Possession As
Modifiedthe Modified Plan which incorporated the master disposition agreement including all schedules

and exhibits thereto the MDA among the Predecessor GM Component Holdings LLC Motors Liquidation

Company Old GM General Motors Company together with its subsidiaries and affiliates GM and

Delphi for the sale and purchase of substantially all of the Predecessors businesses On October 2009 the

Acquisition Date the Predecessor emerged from chapter 11 in accordance with the Modified Plan Through

the Acquisition Date the Debtors operated their businesses as debtors-in-possession under the jurisdiction of

the Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and orders of the Court The

Predecessors non-U.S subsidiaries were not included in the Chapter 11 Filings continued their business

operations without supervision from the Court and were not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code

On August 19 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP limited liability partnership organized under the laws of

England and Wales was formed for the purpose of acquiring certain assets and subsidiaries of the former Delphi

Corporation its Predecessor which along with certain of its U.S subsidiaries had filed voluntary petitions for

bankruptcy in October 2005 On October 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP acquired the major portion of the

business of the Predecessor other than the global steering business the U.S manufacturing facilities in which the

hourly employees were represented by the International Union United Automobile Aerospace and Agricultural

Implement Workers of America UAW and certain non-productive U.S assets and Delphi Automotive LLP

issued membership interests to group of investors consisting of lenders to the Predecessor GM and Pension

Benefit Guaranty Corporation the PBGC
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On March 31 2011 all of the outstanding Class and Class membership interests held by GM and the

PBGC were redeemed respectively for approximately $4.4 billion The redemption transaction was funded by

$3.0 billion credit facility entered into on March 31 2011 the Credit Facility and existing cash Refer to Note

12 Debt and Note 16 Shareholders Equity and Net Income Loss Per Share for additional disclosures

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to its initial public offering On

November 22 2011 in conjunction with the completion of its initial public offering by the selling shareholders

all of the outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLP was exchanged for ordinary shares of Delphi

Automotive PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive

PLC The transaction whereby Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi

Automotive PLC had no accounting effects These consolidated financial statements of the Successor for periods

prior to the initial public offering are those of Delphi Automotive LLP

General and basis of presentationOn the Acquisition Date the Successor acquired the automotive supply

business other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities in the U.S in which the hourly

employees are represented by the UAW of the Predecessor As result of the Acquisition as defined below

Delphi acquired the major portion of the business of the Predecessor and this business constituted the entirety of

the operations of the Successor Accordingly as required the financial information set forth herein reflects

the consolidated results of operations and cash flows of the Successor for the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 and the period from its incorporation on August 19 2009 to December 31 2009 and of the Predecessor

for the period from January 2009 to October 2009 and ii the consolidated financial position of the

Successor as of December 31 2011 and 2010 Delphi Automotive LLP had no material or substantive

transactions from its incorporation on August 19 2009 to the Acquisition Date In accordance with Financial

Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification FASBASC 805 Business Combinations as

of the Acquisition Date the Company recognized and measured the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed from the Predecessor

The Predecessor adopted the accounting guidance in FASB ASC 852 Reorganizations effective October

2005 and has segregated in the financial statements for all reporting periods subsequent to such date and through

the consummation of the transactions pursuant to the Modified Plan on October 2009 transactions and events

that were directly associated with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business The

consolidated financial statements of Delphi are not comparable to the consolidated financial statements of the

Predecessor due to the effects of the consummation of the Modified Plan and the change in the basis of

presentation

Consummation of the modified planOn October 2009 the Predecessor consummated the

transactions contemplated by the Modified Plan among the Predecessor GM and Delphi and ii emerged from

chapter 11 in accordance with the Modified Plan as DPH Holdings Corp and its subsidiaries and affiliates

DPHH except that two of the Predecessors debtor subsidiaries became subsidiaries of Delphi summary

of significant terms of the Modified Plan follows

Delphi acquired the businesses other than the global steering business and the manufacturing facilities

in the U.S in which the hourly employees are represented by the UAW of the Predecessor pursuant to

the MDA and received $1833 million from GM of which $1689 million was received on the

Acquisition Date and $144 million was received during the Successor period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 and $209 million from the debtor-in-possession DIP lenders to the

Predecessors collectively the Acquisition

GM acquired substantially all of the Predecessors global steering business and the manufacturing

facilities in the U.S at which the hourly employees were represented by the UAW

The Predecessors debtor-in-possession financing was settled
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The Predecessors liabilities subject to compromise were extinguished

If cumulative distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP under certain provisions of its

limited liability partnership agreement exceed $7.2 billion Delphi as disbursing agent on behalf of

DPHH is required to pay to the holders of allowed general unsecured claims against the Predecessor

$32.50 for every $67.50 in excess of $7.2 billion distributed to the members of Delphi Automotive

LLP up to maximum of $300 million

The Predecessors equity holders did not receive recoveries on their claims

Reorganization itemsThe accounting guidance in FASB ASC 852 Reorganizations requires

reorganization items such as revenues professional fees directly related to the process of reorganizing the Debtors

under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code realized gains and losses provisions for losses and interest income

resulting from the reorganization and restructuring of the business to be separately disclosed Professional fees

directly related to the reorganization include fees associated with advisors to the Debtors unsecured creditors

secured creditors and unions The Predecessors reorganization items consisted of the following

Predecessor

IncomeIExpense

Period from

January to

October 62009

in millions

Sale disposition of the Predecessor 794
Extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise 11159
PBGC termination of U.S pension plans Note 13 2818

Salaried OPEB settlement Note 13 1168
Professional fees directly related to reorganization 68

Other 25

Total reorganization items 10210

Disposition of the PredecessorThe Predecessor sold the automotive supply business other than the global

steering business and the UAW manufacturing facilities in the U.S which were acquired by GM to Delphi Certain

assets and liabilities were retained by DPHH and various liabilities were extinguished or settled including the

settlement of approximately $3.3 billion of DIP financing and $850 million outstanding under GM liquidity support

agreements summary of the debt settled upon consummation of the Modified Plan is included below

in millions

First Priority Revolving Credit Facility 230

First Priority Term Loan 310

Second Priority Term Loan 2750

DIP financing 3290
GM liquidity support agreements 850

Total debt settled 4140

The $794 million of gain from reorganization items for the period from January to October 2009

primarily relate to the extinguishment of liabilities As these liabilities were extinguished the respective carrying

values as noted below were eliminated resulting in gain from reorganization as follows

The extinguishment of accrued liabilities resulting in gain from reorganization items for the

Predecessor of approximately $525 million The extinguished accrued liabilities primarily included
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$260 million in interest accruals related to the Second Priority Term Loan settled under the terms of the

Modified Plan and the extinguishment of the $210 million advance on working capital recovery
for the

global steering business provided in 2008 in connection with the Amended MRA as defined and

further discussed in Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan

Certain other long-term liabilities primarily workers compensation that were extinguished as part of

the bankruptcy process resulting in gain from reorganization of approximately $305 million

The net other liabilities of the Predecessor that were not acquired by GM or Delphi resulting in gain

from reorganization for the Predecessor of approximately $20 million

The acquisition by GM of substantially all of the Predecessors global steering business and the

manufacturing facilities in the U.S at which employees were represented by the UAW in Kokomo

Indiana Rochester New York Lockport New York and Grand Rapids Michigan for no cash

consideration paid to Delphi Under the MDA in exchange for the sale of these businesses GM waived

certain claims paid portion of the DIP loans agreed to pay certain administrative claims and assumed

certain liabilities The disposition of these businesses by the Predecessor resulted in loss from

reorganization of approximately $56 million

The following table summarizes the $11159 million of gain from reorganization items related to the

extinguishment of liabilities subject to compromise

Liabilities Assumed by Delphi in millions

Pension and postretirement obligations 68

Cure payments 18

Other

Total claims reinstated 89

Liabilities Extinguished

Pension and postretirement obligations 135

Supplemental executive retirement program obligations 117

PBGC general unsecured claim 3000

GM allowed general unsecured and administrative claims 4128

Allowed IUE-CWA and USW claims 129

Debt and notes payable including junior subordinated notes due 2033 2375

Accounts payable 731

Securities ERISA litigation liability 351

Other 193

Total claims extinguished 11159

Total liabilities subject to compromise assumed by Delphi or retired 11248

Acquisition accountingDelphi has recorded the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed from the

Predecessor at estimated fair values in accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC 820 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures The fair values were estimated based on valuations performed by an independent

valuation specialist utilizing three generally accepted business valuation approaches the income market and

cost approaches Generally the income and market approaches were used and weighted by the independent

valuation specialists as appropriate further description of each approach follows

Income Approach The income approach recognizes the value of an investment is premised on the

receipt of future economic benefits These benefits can include earnings cost savings tax deductions

and the proceeds from disposition The discounted cash flow DCF method is form of the income
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approach commonly used to value business interests The DCF method involves estimating future cash

flows of business and discounting them to their present value The discount rate is selected based on

consideration of the risks inherent in the investment and market rates of return available from

alternative investments of similar type and quality as of the valuation date More specifically the DCF

method bases the value of company on the cash flow attributable to that company This approach is

based on the assumptions that company is worth what it can generate in future cash flows to its

owners ii the future cash flows are reasonably predictable and iii the cost of capital and investors

required rates of return on invested capital can be estimated This approach assumes that the income

derived from company will to large extent determine the value of that company

The DCF method was based on Company-prepared projections which included variety of estimates and

assumptions While the Company considers such estimates and assumptions reasonable they are inherently

subject to significant business economic and competitive uncertainties many of which are beyond the

Companys control and therefore may not be realized Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have

significant effect on the determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the

Acquisition Accordingly there can be no assurance that the estimates assumptions and values reflected in the

valuations will be realized and actual results could vary materially The following key assumptions were utilized

in applying the DCF method

Delphi provided its independent valuation specialist with projected net sales expenses and cash flows

for the years ending December 31 2010 2011 and 2012 representing the Companys best estimates at

the time the analysis was prepared

Discount rates to determine the present value of the future cash flows from 2010 through 2012 and the

terminal values were based on the weighted average cost of capital WACC The WACCs measure

the average cost per
dollar of capital of an enterprise based on the individual costs of debt and equity

and the business units target capital structure The WACC is derived based on set of guideline public

companies for each business unit and is an indicator of the cost of capital for market participant in

the business units industry The cost of equity estimated using the capital asset pricing model was

between 13.4% and 23.5% with median of 16.4% The pre-tax cost of debt was estimated to be 8%

based on the yield on Delphis guideline companies publicly traded bonds as of the Acquisition Date

The range
of WACCs for the business units was between 10.3% and 18.8% with median of 13.6%

Terminal value for each business unit was based on the Gordon GrOwth Model using range of long-

term growth rates of 0% to 5% with median of 3%

Market Approach The market approach measures the value of company through the analysis of recent

sales or offerings of comparable companies The guideline public companies method and the guideline

merged or acquired company method are the most common forms of the market approach used to value

business interests Use of the market approach requires that comparable transactions be available which

may include

The recent sales price of the same or similarcompanies or assets in an arm s-length transaction or

The market price for the license of the same or similar assets to an independent third party

In applying the market approach unique sets of comparable guideline public companies were identified

using the Capital IQ data services Capital IQ was used as the source of data to determine the guideline public

companies Total Invested Capital TIC defined as Market value of equity Market value of debt Market

value of preferred stock and minority interest The TIC was then calculated as multiple of Trailing Twelve

Months TTM Revenue TTM Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortization EBITDA
TTM Earning Before Interest and Tax EBIT Next Fiscal Year NFY Revenue NFY EBITDA NFY

EBIT and NFY1 EBITDA For the NFY financial data revenue and earnings estimates were obtained from
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Capital IQ for the average analyst estimates for the guideline public companies The business units respective

multiples were selected depending on circumstances specific to each business unit within the
range

of the

multiples provided by the comparable companies

Delphi utilized TTM Revenue multiples of 0.3x- .Ox NFY Revenue multiples of 0.3x-0.8x NFY EBITDA

multiples of 4.Ox-6.9x and NFY1 EBITDA multiples of 3.2x-7.2x The selected multiples were then applied to

respective financial results of the business units to derive an implied value of TIC The resulting values from TFM
Revenue NFY Revenue NFY EBITDA and NFY1 EBITDA multiples were weighted according to unique

characteristics of each business unit mostly at 20% 20% 50% and 10% respectively to arrive at minority

marketable value of TIC No control premium was applied to determine the fair value of the TIC of the business

units on controlling basis in consideration of the difficult conditions within the automotive supplier industry

Cost Approach The cost approach considers reproduction or replacement cost as an indicator of value The

cost approach is based on the assumption that prudent investor would pay no more for an entity than the

amount for which he could replace or re-create it Historical costs are often used to estimate the current cost

of replacing the entity valued In doing so adjustments for physical deterioration and obsolescence are taken

into account When using the cost approach to value business enterprise the equity value is calculated as

the appraised value of the individual assets that comprise the business less the value of the liabilities that

enºumber those assets

The following table summarizes the estimated provisional fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed based on information that was available at the Acquisition Date Measurement period adjustments were

completed in 2010 and reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the

Acquisition Date primarily related to changes in deferred taxes to reflect book to tax return reconciliations

Accordingly the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and property plant and equipment were retrospectively

adjusted as of October 2009 The impact of the retrospective adjustments was not material to Delphis results

of operations or cash flows for the period from the Acquisition Date through December 31 2009 and therefore

was reflected in operating results in the year ended December 31 2010

October 2009 Measurement

As initially Period October 62009
reported Adjustments As adjusted

in millions

Fair value of membershipinterests issued 4932 4932

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents1 2801 2801

Restricted cash 124 124

Accounts receivable 2160 2160

Inventory2 964 964

Property plant and equipment3 2255 169 2086
Identifiable intangible assets4 766 766

Deferred tax assets 305 169 474

Other assets 896 896

Accounts payable 1585 1585
Pension liabilitiesS 882 882
Debt6 419 419
Deferred tax liabilities 328 328
Other liabilities7 1710 1710
Noncontrolling interests 415 415

Total identifiable net assets 4932 4932

Acquisition-related costs of $19 million were included in Other income expense net in the consolidated results

of operations of the Successor for the period August 19 to December 31 2009
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Cash and cash equivalents acquired is as follows

Cash from issuance of Class membership interests

Cash from issuance of Class membership interests

Cash acquired from the Predecessor

Proceeds from issuance of 5-Year Note 41

Total cash and cash equivalents acquired 2801

Inventory is recorded at fair value Raw materials were valued at current replacement costs and

work-in-process was valued at the estimated selling prices of finished goods less the sum of costs to

complete costs of disposal and reasonable profit allowances for completing and selling efforts based on

profits for similar finished goods Finished goods were valued at estimated selling prices less the sum of

costs of disposal and reasonable profit allowances for the selling efforts

Property plant and equipment are recorded at fair value giving consideration to their highest and best use

Key assumptions used in the valuation of the Companys property plant and equipment were based on

combination of the cost or market approach depending on whether market data was available

Identifiable intangible assets are recorded at fair value and include customer relationships trade names

patents and in-process research and development IPRD The following approaches were considered in

valuing the identifiable intangible assets

Relieffrom Royalty RFR Method This form of the income approach determines the value of an

intangible asset by capitalizing future royalty payments income that are avoided earned since the

intangible asset is owned rather than licensed Royalty payments are estimated at the amount that

company would be willing to pay in the form of royalty for the use of the intangible asset assuming

an outside party owned the rights to the intangible asset The relief from royalty method is generally

used to value trademarks trade names and some technologies This methodology is most reliable when

there are observable royalty rates charged for the use of comparable intangible assets

Excess Earnings EE Method Similar to the DCF method described above the EE method

calculates the value of an intangible asset by discounting its future cash flows Cash flow is calculated

by first estimating after-tax income which is adjusted for non-cash charges contributory asset

charge is also applied to reflect the costs associated with the use of other assets to generate the cash

flow The excess earnings method is often used to value customer relationships technologies and

IPRD The EE method is the best approach to use when future economic benefits of the intangible

asset can be reasonably estimated but need to be segregated from one or more assets that contribute to

the production of the cash flow

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values as of the Acquisition Date of the identifiable

intangible assets the method and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair values and the weighted

average amortization period of definite-lived intangible assets

Identifiable Intangible Asset

Patents

Customer relationships

Trade names

IPRD

Total identifiable intangible assets

Weighted

Average
Valuation Amortization

Approach Royalty Rate Discount Rate Period

Years

0.7%-1.2% l4.4%-22.0% 13

N/A 14.5%-22.4%

0.2%-1.0% 14.5%-21.4% 20

EE N/A 22.4%-39.5% N/A

in millions

1689

209

862

RFR

EE

RFR

Acquisition

Date Fair

Value

in millions

442

140

97

87

766
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Pension obligations assumed are comprised primarily of plans outside the U.S and were recorded at fair

value as of the Acquisition Date

Debt is comprised of foreign receivables factoring and other debt assumed from the Predecessor and the

issuance of $41 million five-year note with 12% interest rate in conjunction with the Acquisition Debt

was recorded at fair value as of the Acquisition Date which resulted in $2 million net reduction to the

nominal value of the debt The difference between the fair value and nominal value of debt will be accreted

to nominal value over the term of the indebtedness

Contingent liability of up to $300 million required to be paid to the holders of allowed general unsecured

claims against the Predecessor if cumulative distributions to the members exceed $7.2 billion was not

probable as of October 2009 and therefore recorded at zero

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies outlined below are applicable to both Delphi and the Predecessor unless

otherwise specifically indicated Accordingly except where otherwise indicated references to Delphi within

Note Significant Accounting Policies should be understood to be related both to Delphi and the Predecessor

ConsolidationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi and domestic and

non-U.S subsidiaries in which Delphi holds controlling financial or management interest and variable interest

entities of which Delphi has determined that it is the primary beneficiary Delphis share of the earnings or losses

of non-controlled affiliates over which Delphi exercises significant influence generally 20% to 50%

ownership interest is included in the consolidated operating results using the equity method of accounting All

significant intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated Delphi businesses have been

eliminated

Use of estimatesPreparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions

that affect amounts reported therein Generally matters subject to estimation and judgment include amounts

related to accounts receivable realization inventory obsolescence asset impairments useful lives of intangible

and fixed assets deferred tax asset valuation allowances income taxes pension benefit plan assumptions

accruals related to litigation warranty costs environmental remediation costs workers compensation accruals

and healthcare accruals Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates actual results reported in

future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from those estimates

Revenue recognitionSales are recognized when there is evidence of sales agreement the delivery of

goods has occurred the sales price is fixed or determinable and the collectability of revenue is reasonably

assured Sales are generally recorded upon shipment of product to customers and transfer of title under standard

commercial terms In addition if Delphi enters into retroactive price adjustments with its customers these

reductions to revenue are recorded when they are determined to be probable and estimable From time to time

Delphi enters into pricing agreements with its customers that provide for price reductions some of which are

conditional upon achieving certain joint cost saving targets In these instances revenue is recognized based on

the agreed-upon price at the time of shipment

Sales incentives and allowances are recognized as reduction to revenue at the time of the related sale In

addition from time to time Delphi makes payments to customers in conjunction with ongoing and in limited

circumstances future business These payments to customers are recognized as reduction to revenue at the time

of the commitment to make these payments

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in net sales while costs of shipping and

handling are included in cost of sales
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Delphi collects and remits taxes assessed by different governmental authorities that are both imposed on and

concurrent with revenue-producing transaction between the Company and the Companys customers These

taxes may include but are not limited to sales use value-added and some excise taxes Delphi reports the

collection of these taxes on net basis excluded from revenues

Membership interestsAt the Acquisition Date the outstanding common stock of the Predecessor was

cancelled and membership interests in Delphi Automotive LLP were issued to Delphis owners On March 31

2011 all of the outstanding Class and Class membership interests held by GM and PBGC were redeemed

respectively for approximately $4.4 billion

In conjunction with the completion of the initial public offering on November 22 2011 of 24078827

ordinary shares by the selling shareholders for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $530 million all of

the outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLP was exchanged for 328244510 ordinary shares par value

$0.01 in Delphi Automotive PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of

Delphi Automotive PLC Delphi did not receive any proceeds from this offering

Prior to the initial public offering total membership interests and net income loss were allocated among
the respective classes based on the ôumulative distribution provisions of the Fourth Amended and Restated

Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP the Fourth LLP Agreement Refer to

Note 16 Shareholders Equity and Net Income Loss Per Share for additional information

Net income loss per shareBasic net income loss per
share is computed by dividing net income loss

attributable to Delphi by the weightedaverage number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period Diluted

net income loss per
share reflects the weighted average

dilutive impact of all potentially dilutive securities from

the date of issuance and is computed using the treasury stock method by dividing net income loss attributable to

Delphi by the diluted weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding Share amounts included in these

notes are on diluted basis See Note 16 Shareholders Equity and Net Income Loss Per Share for additional

information including the calculation of basic and diluted net income loss per share

Research and developmentCosts are incurred in connection with research and development programs that

are expected to contribute to future earnings Such costs are charged against income as incurred Total research

and development expenses including engineering were $1.2 billion $1.0 billion $0.3 billion and $1.0 billion

for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods August 19 to December 31 2009 and

January to October 2009 respectively

Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid investments

with original maturities of three months or less

Time depositsFrom time to time Delphi enters into various time deposit agreements whereby certain of

Delphis funds on deposit with financial institutions may not be withdrawn for specified period of time Time

deposits with original maturity periods of three months or less are included as Cash and cash equivalents in the

consolidated balance sheets while time deposits with original maturity periods greater than three months are

separately stated in the consolidated balance sheets The carrying value of time deposits approximates fair value

as of December 31 2010 There were no time deposits at December 31 2011

Marketable securitiesMarketable securities with maturities of three months or less are classified as cash

and cash equivalents for financial statement purposes Available-for-sale securities are recorded in the

consolidated financial statements at market value with changes in market value included in other comprehensive

income OCI Available-for-sale securities with cost basis of $0 million and $13 million and carrying

value of $0 million and $12 million were held as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively In the event debt

or equity securities experience an other-than-temporary impairment in value such impairment is recognized as

loss in the consolidated statement of operations In 2011 and 2010 Delphi recognized an other-than-temporary

impairment of $6 million and $9 million respectively
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Restricted cashRestricted cash includes balances on deposit at financial institutions that have issued

letters of credit in favor of Delphi

Accounts receivableDelphi enters into agreements to sell certain of its accounts receivable primarily in

Europe Since the agreements allow Delphi to maintain effective control over the receivables these various

accounts receivable factoring facilities were accounted for as short-term debt at December 31 2011 and 2010

Collateral is not generally required related to these trade accounts receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon analysis of trade receivables for known

collectability issues and the aging of the trade receivables at the end of each period and generally all accounts

receivable balances greater than 90 days past due are fully reserved As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the accounts

receivable reserve was $70 million and $64 million respectively and the provision for doubtful accounts was $25

million $45 million $33 million and $22 million for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods

August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October 2009 respectively

The Company exchanges certain amounts of accounts receivable primarily in the Asia/Pacific region for

bank notes with original maturities greater than three months The collection of such bank notes are included in

operating cash flows based on the substance of the underlying transactions which are operating in nature

InventoriesAs of December 31 2011 and 2010 inventories are stated at the lower of cost determined on

first-in first-out basis or market including direct material costs and direct and indirect manufacturing costs

Refer to Note Inventories for additional information Obsolete inventory is identified based on analysis of

inventory for known obsolescence issues and generally the market value of inventory on hand in excess of one

years supply is fully-reserved

From time to time payments may be received from suppliers These payments from suppliers are

recognized as reduction of the cost of the material acquired during the period to which the payments relate In

some instances supplier rebates are received in conjunction with or concurrent with the negotiation of future

purchase agreements and these amounts are amortized over the prospective agreement period

PropertyProperty plant and equipment including internally-developed internal use software and special

tools were adjusted to fair value as of October 2009 which represents new cost basis and were adjusted for

depreciation in subsequent periods Major improvements that materially extend the useful life of property are

capitalized Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred For the Successor

depreciation is determined based on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of groups of property

For the Predecessor depreØiation was determined based on the estimated useful lives of groups of property

generally using straight-line methods or using an accelerated method which accumulates depreciation of

approximately two-thirds of the depreciable cost during the first half of the estimated useful lives Leasehold

improvements under capital leases are depreciated over the period of the lease or the life of the property

whichever is shorter with the depreciation applied directly to the asset account

At December 31 2011 and 2010 the special tools balance was $310 million and $247 million respectively

included within property net in the consolidated balance sheets Special tools balances represent Delphi-owned

tools dies jigs and other items used in the manufacture of customer components Special tools also include

unreimbursed pre-production tooling costs related to customer-owned tools for which the customer has provided

non-cancellable right to use the tool Delphi-owned special tools balances are depreciated over the expected life

of the special tool or the life of the related vehicle program whichever is shorter The unreimbursed costs

incurred related to customer-owned special tools that are not subject to reimbursement are capitalized and

depreciated over the expected life of the special tool or the life of the related vehicle program whichever is

shorter Engineering testing and other costs incurred in the design and development of production parts are

expensed as incurred unless the costs are reimbursable as specified in customer contract As of December 31

2011 and 2010 the Delphi-owned special tools balances were $259 million and $220 million respectively and

the customer-owned special tools balances were $51 million and $27 million respectively
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Valuation of long-lived assetsThe carrying value of long-lived assets held for use including definite-lived

intangible assets is periodically evaluated when events or circumstances warrant such review The carrying

value of long-lived asset held for use is considered impaired when the anticipated separately identifiable

undiscounted cash flows from the asset are less than the carrying value of the asset In that event loss is

recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset Fair

value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at rate commensurate with the risk

involved and Delphis review of appraisals Impairment losses on long-lived assets held for sale are determined

in similarmanner except that fair values are reduced for the cost to dispose of the assets Refer to Note 20

Discontinued Operations and Note Property Net for more information

Intangible assetsIntangible assets were $596 million and $665 million as of December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively In general definite-lived intangible assets are being amortized over their useful lives

normally 6-20 years Costs to renew or extend the term of acquired intangible assets are recognized as expense as

incurred Refer to Note Intangible Assets and Goodwill for more information

WarrantyExpected warranty costs for products sold are recognized at the time of sale of the product

based on its estimate of the amount that eventually will be required to settle such obligations These accruals are

based on factors such as past experience production changes industry developments and various other

considerations These estimates are adjusted from time to time based on facts and circumstances that impact the

status of existing claims Refer to Note 10 Warranty Obligations

Foreign currency
translationAssets and liabilities of non-U.S subsidiaries that use currency other than

U.S dollars as their functional
currency are translated to U.S dollars at end-of-period currency exchange rates

The consolidated statements of operations of non-U.S subsidiaries are translated to U.S dollars at average-

period currency exchange rates The effect of translation for non-U.S subsidiaries is generally reported in OCI

The effect of remeasurement of assets and liabilities of non-U.S subsidiaries that use the U.S dollar as their

functional currency is primarily included in cost of sales Also included in cost of sales are gains and losses

arising from transactions denominated in currency other than the functional currency of particular entity Net

foreign currency transaction gains or losses of $3 million $20 million $2 million and $5 million were

included in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the

periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to October 2009 respectively

RestructuringDelphi continually evaluates alternatives to align the business with the changing needs of

its customers and to lower the operating costs This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing

capacity facility closures or similaractions in the normal course of business These actions may result in

voluntary or involuntary employee termination benefits which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual

agreements Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer Involuntary

termination benefits are accrued upon the commitment to termination plan and the benefit arrangement is

conmiunicated to affected employees or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable depending

on the existence of substantive plan for severance or termination Contract termination costs are recorded when

contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the leased facility and no longer derives economic benefit

from the contract All other exit costs are expensed as incurred Refer to Note 11 Restructuring Refer to Note

Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for employee termination benefits and other exit costs related to

non-core product lines Pursuant to the Amended MRA as defined in Note Elements of Predecessor

Transformation Plan GM reimbursed the Predecessor for severance obligations paid by the Predecessor from

January to October 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active inactive and

retired employees

Environmental liabilitiesEnvironmental remediation liabilities are recognized when loss is probable

and can be reasonably estimated Such liabilities generally are not subject to insurance coverage The cost of

each environmental remediation is estimated by engineering financial and legal specialists based on current law

and considers the estimated cost of investigation and remediation required and the likelihood that where

applicable other responsible parties will be able to fulfill their commitments The process of estimating
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environmental remediation liabilities is complex and dependent primarily on the nature and extent of historical

information and physical data relating to contaminated site the complexity of the site the uncertainty as to

what remediation and technology will be required and the outcome of discussions with regulatory agencies and

if applicable other responsible parties at multi-party sites In future periods new laws or regulations advances in

remediation technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used

could significantly change estimates by Delphi Refer to Note 14 Commitments and Contingencies for more

information

Asset retirement obligationsAsset retirement obligations are recognized in accordance with FASB ASC

410 Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations Conditional retirement obligations have been identified

primarily related to asbestos abatement at certain sites To lesser extent conditional retirement obligations also

exist at certain sites relatd to the removal of storage tanks and polychlorinated biphenyl disposal costs Asset

retirement obligations were $3 million and $4 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Customer concentrationsSales to GM were approximately 19% 21% 20% and 26% of Delphis and the

Predecessors total net sales for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the period from August 19

2009 to December 31 2009 and the period from January 2009 to October 2009 respectively Accounts and

other receivables due from GM were $382 million and $393 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of Delphis consolidated net sales in any

period presented

Derivative financial instrumentsAll derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance

sheet at fair value unless the transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales Changes in fair

value are reported currently through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria

Exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates interest rates and certain commodity prices are

managed by entering into variety of forward contracts and swaps with various counterparties Such financial

exposures are managed in accordance with the policies and procedures of Delphi Delphi did not enter into

derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes As part of the hedging program approval process

Delphi identifies the specific financial risk which the derivative transaction will minimize the appropriate

hedging instrument to be used to reduce the risk and the correlation between the financial risk and the hedging

instrument Purchase orders sales contracts letters of intent capital planning forecasts and historical data are

used as the basis for determining the anticipated values of the transactions to be hedged Delphi does not enter

into derivative transactions that do not have high correlation with the underlying financial risk Hedge

positions as well as the correlation between the transaction risks and the hedging instruments are reviewed on

an ongoing basis

Foreign exchange forward contracts are accounted for as hedges of firm or forecasted foreign currency

commitments to the extent they are designated and assessed as highly effective All foreign exchange contracts

are marked to market on current basis Commodity swaps are accounted for as hedges of firm or anticipated

commodity purchase contracts to the extent they are designated and assessed as effective All other commodity

derivative contracts that are not designated as hedges are either marked to market on current basis or are

exempted from mark to market accounting as normal purchases At December 31 2011 and 2010 the exposure

to movements in interest rates was not hedged with derivative instruments Refer to Note 17 Fair Value of

Financial Instruments Derivatives and Hedging Activities for additional information

Extended disability benefitsCosts associated with extended disability benefits provided to inactive

employees are accrued throughout the duration of their active employment Workforce demographic data and

historical experience are utilized to develop projections of time frames and related expense for postemployment

benefits Pursuant to the Amended MRA as defined in Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan

GM reimbursed the Predecessor for extended disability benefits paid by the Predecessor from January to

October 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active inactive and retired

employees Refer to Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for more information
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Workers compensation benefitsWorkers compensation benefit accruals are actuarially determined and

are subject to the existing workers compensation laws that vary by location Accruals for workers compensation

benefits represent the discounted future cash expenditures expected during the period between the incidents

necessitating the employees to be idled and the time when such employees return to work are eligible for

retirement or otherwise terminate their employment Delphi assumed only workers compensation liabilities

associated with claims incurred after the Petition Date for the employees it hired The remaining workers

compensation liabilities of the Predecessor were discharged as part of the bankruptcy process assumed by GM as

part of its acquisition of substantially all of the Predecessors global steering business and the manufacturing

facilities in the U.S at which the employees were represented by the UAW or remained liabilities of DPHH
Pursuant to the Amended MRA as defined in Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan GM
reimbursed the Predecessor for workers compensation benefits paid by the Predecessor from January 2009

through October 2009 in relation to all current and former UAW-represented hourly active inactive and

retired employees Refer to Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan for more information

Discontinued operationsIn accordance with FASB ASC 360-10 Properly Plant and Equipment the

general accounting principles applicable to the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets business component

that is disposed of or classified as held for sale is reported as discontinued operations if the cash flows of the

component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of an entity and that entity will no

longer have any significant continuing involvement in the business component The results of discontinued

operations are aggregated and presented separately in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated

statements of cash flows Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are aggregated and reported

separately as assets and liabilities held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet Amounts presented for prior

years are required to be reclassified to effect their classification as discontinued operations

For periods from January to October 2009 and prior amounts have been derived from the consolidated

financial statements and accounting records of the Predecessor using the historical basis of assets and liabilities

held for sale and historical results of operations related to the Predecessors global steering and halfshaft

businesses the Steering Business and the Automotive Holdings Group AHG which includes various

non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit the Predecessors strategic framework At the Acquisition

Date substantially all of the Steering Business was acquired from the Predecessor by GM While the historical

results of operations of the Steering Business and AHG include general corporate allocations of certain functions

historically provided by the Predecessor such as accounting treasury tax human resources facility

maintenance and other services no amounts for these general corporate retained functions have been allocated to

discontinued operations in the statements of operations Expenses related to the service cost of employee pension

and other postretirement benefit plans were allocated to discontinued operations in the statements of operations

Allocations have been made based upon reasonable allocation method Refer to Note 20 Discontinued

Operations for more information

Contractual interest expense and interest expense on unsecured claimsContractual interest expense

represents amounts due under the contractual terms of outstanding debt including debt subject to compromise for

which interest expense is not recognized in accordance with the provisions of FASBASC 852 Reorganizations

Contractual interest expense was $494 million for the period from January to October 2009 In September

2007 the Predecessor began recording prior contractual interest expense related to certain prepetition debt

because it became probable that the interest would become an allowed claim based on the provisions of the plan

of reorganization filed with the Court in September 2007 and confirmed as amended on January 25 2008 The

plan of reorganization confirmed on January 25 2008 also provided that certain holders of allowed unsecured

claims against the Predecessor would be paid postpetition interest on their claims calculated at the contractual

non-default rate from the Petition Date through January 25 2008 when the Predecessor ceased accruing interest

on these claims At December 31 2008 the Predecessor had accrued interest of $415 million related to

prepetition claims As discussed in Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan on July 30 2009 the

Court confirmed the Modified Plan eliminating postpetition interest on prepetition debt and allowed unsecured

claims Therefore the reversal of the $415 million of accrued interest was included as reduction of interest

expense in the consolidated statement of operations of the Predecessor for the period from January to

October 2009
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Recently issued accounting pronouncementsIn June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued guidance related to accounting for transfers of financial assets which changes the way entities

account for securitizations and special-purpose entities codified in FASB ASC 810 Consolidation and FASB

ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing The adoption of this guidance on January 2010 did not have significant

impact on Delphis financial statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2009-13 Revenue Recognition

Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangementsa consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force which

amends FASB ASC 605 Revenue Recognition by modifying the criteria used to separate elements in multiple-

element arrangement introducing the concept of best estimate of selling price for determining the selling price

of deliverable establishing hierarchy of evidence for determining the selling price of deliverable requiring

use of the relative selling price method and prohibiting use of the residual method to allocate arrangement

consideration among units of accounting and expanding the disclosure requirements for all multiple-element

arrangements within the scope of FASB ASC 605-25 The amended guidance is effective prospectively for

revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 The

adoption of this guidance on January 2011 did not have significant impact on Delphis financial statements

In April 2010 the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 08-9 Milestone Method of Revenue

Recognition Issue 08-9 ASU 2010-17 Revenue RecognitionMilestone Method which resulted from the

ratification of Issue 08-9 and amends FASB ASC 605 ASU 2010-17 allows but does not require an entity to

make an accounting policy election to recognize payment that is contingent upon the achievement of

substantive milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved The guidance in ASU

2010-17 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning on or after June 15 2010

The adoption of this guidance on January 2011 did not have significant impact on Delphis financial

statements

In August 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 ReceivablesDisclosures about the Credit Quality of

Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses This guidance amends required disclosures about an

entitys allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its financing receivables The update will require

entities to provide greater level of disaggregated information about the credit quality of its financing

receivables and its allowance for credit losses The guidance is effective for public companies for interim and

annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15 2010 and for non-public companies for annual

reporting periods ending on or after December 15 2011 In January 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-01

ReceivablesDeferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures about troubled debt restructurings in ASU 2010-20

This guidance temporarily delays the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for

public entities This deferral was reversed by the issuance of ASU 2011-02 see description in the following

paragraph and the effective date is interim and annual periods beginning after June 15 2011 The adoption of

this guidance on January 2011 did not have significant impact on Delphis financial statements

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring is

Troubled Debt Restructuring This guidance clarifies the definition of what constitutes concession given by

creditor and clarifies guidance on whether debtor is experiencing financial difficulties both for purposes of

recording an impairment loss and for disclosure of troubled debt restructuring The guidance in ASU 2011-02 is

effective with interim and annual periods beginning after June 15 2011 The adoption of this guidance did not

have significant impact on Delphis financial statements

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement

and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRSs which updates the definition of fair value and

measurement criteria to bring them into agreement with IFRSs which are also changed to agree with US

GAAP The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early

adoption is not permitted Delphi is evaluating the effects of this guidance but does not expect it to have

significant impact on Delphis financial statements other than providing the required disclosures
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In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income This guidance

requires presentation of all non-owner changes in equity to be presented in one continuous statement of

comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements It also prohibits the inclusion of

comprehensive income items in the statement of equity Also the amendments in this update do not change the

items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income

must be reclassified to net income The guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those

years beginning after December 15 2011 Early adoption is permitted and Delphi elected to adopt this ASU in

2011 The adoption of this ASU did not have significant impact on Delphis financial statements other than

providing the new presentation

ASU 2011-05 was modified by the issuance of ASU 2011-12 Deferral of the Effective Date for

Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications Of Items out ofAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income

in Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05 in December 2011 This update defers certain paragraphs of ASU

2011-05 that require reclassifications of items from other comprehensive income OCI to net income by

component of net income and by component of OCT

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Testing Goodwillfor Impairment The revised standard

is intended to simplify goodwill impairment testing by adding an option to qualitatively assess goodwill for

impairment The guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early

adoption is permitted Delphi adopted this guidance for its testing of goodwill for impairment effective

October 2011 and it did not have significant impact on Delphis financial statements

In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-10 Derecognition of In-substance Real Estatea Scope

Clarification This guidance requires that if an entity ceases to have controlling interest in subsidiary that is in

substance real estate due to default on the loan mortgage on that real estate it would continue to recognize the

asset and related debt until the real estate is legally transferred to satisfy the debt The guidance is effective for

fiscal years beginning after June 15 2012 and early adoption is permitted Delphi is evaluating the effects of this

guidance but does not expect it to have significant impact on its financial statements

Also in December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and

Liabilities This guidance requires entities to disclose both gross and net information about both instruments and

transactions eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and instruments and transactions subject to

an agreement similar to master netting arrangement The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning on

or after January 2013 Early adoption is not permitted but this guidance shall be applied retrospectively for

any period presented that begins before the date of initial application Delphi is evaluating the effects of this

guidance but does not expect it to have significant impact on its financial statements

ELEMENTS OF PREDECESSOR TRANSFORMATION PLAN

GMThe Predecessor and Old GM entered into comprehensive settlement agreements consisting of the

Global Settlement Agreement dated September 2007 as amended through December 2007 the Original

GSA and the Master Restructuring Agreement dated September 2007 as amended through December

2007 the Original MRA The Original GSA and the Original MRA were approved in the order confirming

the Predecessors initial plan of reorganization on January 25 2008 The Original GSA and the Original MRA
provided that they would not be effective until and unless the Predecessor emerged from chapter 11 However as

part of the Predecessors overall negotiations with its stakeholders to further amend the initial plan of

reorganization and emerge from chapter 11 as soon as practicable on September 12 2008 the Predecessors and

Old GM entered into an Amended and Restated Global Settlement Agreement the Amended GSA and an

Amended and Restated Master Restructuring Agreement the Amended MRA The Court approved such

amendments on September 26 2008 and the Amended GSA and Amended MRA became effective on

September 29 2008 These amended agreements included provisions related to the transfer of certain legacy

pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and became effective independent of and in advance of
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substantial consummation of an amended plan of reorganization although provisions relating to the acceleration

of payment terms were not immediately effective The effectiveness of these agreements resulted in material

reduction in the Predecessors liabilities and future expenses related to U.S hourly workforce benefit programs

Upon the Acquisition Date the Amended MRA was terminated except that Old GM agreed to remain

responsible for certain of its obligations thereunder and the MDA and certain ancillary agreements govern

certain aspects of the relationship among GM and Delphi as purchaser of the major portion of the Predecessors

businesses

Global settlement agreementThe Original GSA and the Amended GSA resolved outstanding issues

between the Predecessor and Old GM including litigation commenced in March 2006 by the Predecessor to

terminate certain supply agreements with Old GM all potential claims and disputes with Old GM arising out of

the separation of the Predecessor from Old GM in 1999 including certain post-separation claims and disputes

the proofs of claim filed by Old GM against the Predecessor in the Predecessors chapter 11 cases Old GMs
treatment under the Predecessors original plan of reorganization and various other legacy U.S hourly

workforce benefit issues including commitments by the Predecessor and Old GM regarding other U.S OPEB
pension obligations and other Old GM contributions with respect to labor matters and releases

GM general unsecured claimWith respect to Old GMs claims in the Predecessors chapter 11 cases Old

GM under the Amended GSA had agreed to general unsecured claim of $2.5 billion primarily for OPEB and

special attrition programs for the U.S hourly workiorce However under the Modified Plan and the MDA Old

GM and GM agreed to waive the general unsecured claim in the Predecessors chapter 11 cases GM and certain

related parties and the Predecessor and certain related parties have also exchanged broad global releases

effective as of the effective date of the Amended GSA which releases do not apply to certain surviving claims as

set forth in the Amended GSA In addition to providing release to GM the Predecessor agreed to withdraw

with prejudice the sealed complaint filed against GM in the Court on October 2007 In addition the Modified

Plan contains additional mutual releasesbetween Old GM GM and the Predecessor

Master resfructuring agreementThe Amended MRA was intended to among other things govern certain

aspects of the commercial relationship between the Predecessor and Old GM following the effectiveness of the

Amended MRA and continuing after the Predecessors emergence from chapter 11 The Amended MRA
addressed the scope of Old GM existing and future business awards to the Predecessor and related pricing and

sourcing arrangements Old GMs commitments with respect to reimbursement of specified ongoing U.S hourly

workforce labor costs the disposition of certain of the Predecessors facilities and the treatment of existing

commercial agreements between the Predecessor and Old GM The MDA superseded the Amended MRA and

the Amended MRA was terminated as of the Acquisition Date except as set forth in the MDA

Existing and future business awards and related mattersThe Amended MRA addressed the scope of

existing business awards related pricing agreements and extensions of certain existing supply agreements

including Old GMs ability to move production to alternative suppliers and the reorganized Predecessors rights

to bid and qualify for new business awards ii eliminated the requirement to implement price-downs with

respect to certain businesses and restricted Old GMs ability to resource products manufactured at core U.S

operations through at least December 31 2011 and Mexican operations through December 31 2010

iii contained commitment by Old GM to provide the Predecessor with an annual keep site facilitation fee of

$110 million in 2009 and 2010 which was not contingent on the Predecessors emergence from chapter 11

payable in quarterly installments during these periods which consistent with the Predecessors policy was

recognized in earnings over the applicable future production periods and iv contained commitments by Old

GM concerning the sale of certain of the Predecessors non-core businesses and additional commitments by Old

GM if certain of the Predecessors businesses and facilities were not sold or wound down by specified future

dates On March 31 2009 June 30 2009 and September 30 2009 the Predecessor received quarterly

installments of the annual keep site facilitation fee of $27.5 million of which approximately $75 million was

recorded as net sales during the Predecessor period from January to October 2009
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Reimbursement of hourly labor costsOld GM agreed to reimburse the Predecessor for hourly workforce

labor costs in excess of $26 per hour excluding certaincOsts including hourly pension and OPEB contributions

provided under the supplemental wage agreement at specified UAW manufacturing facilities retained by the

Predecessor The economic substance of this provision of the Amended MRA was to lower the Predecessors

labor costs at specified UAW-represented manufacturing facilities to $26 per hour excluding certain costs in

order to maintain more competitive operations in the U.S During the period from January to October 2009

the Predecessor received $106 million of reimbursement from GM of hourly labor costs in excess of $26 per

hour The Predecessor recorded $50 million as reduction to operating expenses during the period from

January to October 2009 with $25 million recognized in periods prior to January 2009 Additionally $31

million was recognized in 2009 as reduction to operating expenses
in discontinued operations

Production cash burn breakeven reimbursementThe Predecessor had agreed to continue manufacturing at

certain non-core sites to meet Old GMs production requirements and Old GM had agreed to provide the

Predecessor with operating cash flow breakeven support or production cash burn breakeven PCBB from

January 2008 through site-specified time periods to compensate the Predecessor for keeping these sites in

production Additionally Old GM had agreed to reimburse capital spending in excess of $50000 per month at

the PCBB sites from January 2008 through site-specified time periods PCBB reimbursement including capital

spending from Old GM was recognized contemporaneously as incurred and was treated as reduction to

operating expenses fixed assets or discontinued operations as appropriate During the period from January to

October 2009 the Predecessor received $150 million of PCBB reimbursement from GM of which $86 million

was recorded as income from discontinued operations and $2 million was recorded as reduction to the

Predecessors operating expenses

Reimbursement of hourly workers compensation and other benefitsOld GM agreed to reimburse the

Predecessor for all current and future workers compensation disability supplemental unemployment benefits

and severance obligations paid by the Predecessor after January 2009 in relation to all current and former

UAW-represented hourly active inactive and retired employees Consistent with the substance of the provision

the Predecessor recognized anticipated future reimbursements from Old GM contemporaneously with the

Predecessors incurrence of related cash payments During the period from January ito October 2009 the

Predecessor received related reimbursements from GM of $28 million The Predecessor recorded $35 million as

reduction to operating expenses during the period from January to October 2009

PensionsSubsequent to entering chapter ii the Predecessor had generally limited its contributions to the

GM Hourly-Rate Employees Pension Plan the Hourly Plan the Delphi Retirement Program for Salaried

Employees the Salaried Plan the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program the Delphi Mechatronics

Retirement Program the PHI Bargaining Retirement Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan

collectively the U.S Pension Plans to normal cost contributions which are less than the minimum funding

requirements established by the Internal Revenue Code and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act

ERISA Following the Courts approval of the Hourly and Salaried Pension Program Modification Motion on

September 23 2008 the Salaried Plan the Mechatronic Plan the ASEC Plan and the PHI Non-Bargaining Plan

were frozen effective September 30 2008 The Hourly Plan was frozen on November 30 2008 By freezing the

U.S pension plans the Predecessor halted the accrual of normal cost payments going forward thereby

preserving liquidity

On July 21 2009 the Predecessor announced that the PBGC was expected to make determination whether

to initiate the termination process for the U.S pension plans Also on July 21 2009 the Predecessor reached

agreement with the PBGC to settle the PBGCs various claims against the Predecessor and its global affiliates

the Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement Pursuant to that settlement agreement the PBGC received

$3 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim which received the same treatment given to holders of

general unsecured claims as set forth in the Modified Plan The PBGC received additional consideration from

GM which together with the PBGCs allowed unsecured claim was in consideration for among other things

full release of all causes of action claims and liens the liability to be assumed by the PBGC related to the
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possible termination of the U.S pension plans and the withdrawal of all notices of liens filed by the PBGC

against the Predecessors global non-U.S affiliates The Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement which was

subject to Court approval was filed with the Court on July 21 2009 In connection with seeking Court approval

of the Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement the Predecessor sought finding by the Court that such

termination did not violate the Labor MOUs the Union 1113/1114 Settlement Approval Orders or the Local

Agreement Between Delphi Connection Systems formerly Packard-Hughes Interconnect And Electronic And

Space Technicians Local 1553 and any modifications thereto On July 30 2009 the Court approved the

Predecessor-PBGC Settlement Agreement and made the finding that such agreement did not violate the

Predecessors collective bargaining agreements On August 10 2009 the PBGC and the Predecessor executed

termination and trusteeship agreement retroactive to July 31 2009 with respect to the U.S pension plans

PortfolioIn March 2006 the Predecessor identified non-core product lines and manufacturing sites that

did not fit into its future strategic framework including brake and chassis systems catalysts cockpits and

instrument panels door modules and latches ride dynamics steering halfshafts wheel bearings and power

products With the exception of the catalyst and global exhaust product lines included in the Powertrain Systems

segment the Companys non-core product lines were included in discontinued operations refer to Note 20

Discontinued Operations

Costs recorded by the Predecessor related to the transformation plan for non-core product lines include

employee termination benefits and other exit costs and U.S employee workforce transition program charges and

are further described in Note 11 Restructuring and Note 20 Discontinued Operations

Cost structureThe Predecessor implemented restructuring initiatives in pursuit of its transformation

objective to reduce selling general and administrative expenses These initiatives included changing the model

for delivery of financial services information technology and certain sales administration activities as well as

the reduction of the global salaried workforce by leveraging attrition and using salaried separation plans andthe

realignment of certain salaried benefit programs with business conditions While the continually challenging

economic environment persisted in 2009 further restructuring initiatives continued to be required The

Predecessor implemented number of cash conservation measures including short-term salaried layoff plan

the suspension of 2009 pay increases and annual incentive payments for eligible employees the cessation of

health care and life insurance benefits in retirement to salaried employees and retirees effective March 31 2009

and decrease in salaried severance payments in 2009 The PBGCs termination of the U.S Pension Plans

effective July 31 2009 refer to Note 13 Pension Benefits also had the effect of reducing the Predecessors cash

needs

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost determined on first-in first-out basis or market including

direct material costs and direct and indirect thanufacturing costs summary of inventories is shown below

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Productive material 594 544

Work-in-process 144 159

Finished goods 316 285

Total 1054 988
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ASSETS

Other current assets consisted of the following

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

226 180

183 136

93 87

24 33

As part of Delphis operations it has investments in non-consolidated affiliates accounted for under the

equity method of accounting These affiliates are not publicly traded companies and are located primarily in

South Korea China and Mexico Delphis ownership percentages vary generally from approximately 20% to

50% with the most significant investments in Korea Delphi Automotive Systems Corporation of which Delphi

owns approximately 50% Delphi-TVS Diesel Systems Ltd of which Delphi owns approximately 50% and

Promotora de Partes Electricas Automotrices S.A de C.V of which Delphi owns approximately 40% The

aggregate investment in non-consolidated affiliates was $257 million and $281 million at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively Dividends of $1 million $10 million $0 million and $8 million for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to October

2009 respectively have been received from non-consolidated affiliates $7 million impairment charge was

recorded for the year ended December 31 2011 related to Delphis investment in non-consolidated affiliate No

impairment charges were recorded for the year-ended December 31 2010 or for the period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 $23 million impairment charges was recorded for the period from January to October

2009 related to Delphis investment in non-consolidated affiliate
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17

36

12

21

616

28

12

59

20

555

Value added tax receivable

Deferred income taxes Note 15

Prepaid insurance and other
expenses

Notes receivable

Debt issuance costs

Income and other taxes receivable

Deposits to vendors

Derivative financial instruments Note 17
Other

Total

Other long-term assets consisted of the following

Deferred income taxes Note 15

Debt issuance costs

Income and other taxes receivable

Reimbursable engineering costs

Value added taxes receivable

Other investments

Notes receivable

Derivative financial instruments Note 17

Other

Total

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

204 183

43

71

58

41

35

46

459

44

13

31

17

68
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The following is summary of the combined financial information of significant affiliates accounted for

under the equity method as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October 2009 unaudited

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Current assets 740 888

Non-current assets 405 545

Total assets 1145 1433

Current liabilities 366 587

Non-current liabilities 203 227

Shareholders equity 576 619

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 1145 1433

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

Net sales 1750 1750 369 866

Gross profit 160 215 53 56

Net income loss 28 41 44

summary of transactions with affiliates is shown below

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

Sales to affiliates 66 62

Purchases from affiliates 304 315 51 90

PROPERTY NET

Property net consisted of

Estimated Useful
December 31

Lives 2011 2010

Years in millions

Land 160 163

Land and leasehold improvements 3-20 85 79

Buildings 40 504 492

Machinery equipment and tooling 3-20 1989 1470

Furniture and office equipment 3-10 149 104

Construction in progress 235 246

Total 3122 2554

Less accumulated depreciation 807 487

Total property net 2315 2067
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For the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 Delphi did not incur impairment charges related to long-

lived assets held for use The following table summarizes the impairment charges included in cost of sales related

to long-lived assets held for use for the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to

October 2009

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

August 19 to January to

December 31 October

Segment 2009 2009

in millions in millions

Electronics and Safety 37

Powertrain Systems 12

Electrical/Electronic Architecture

Thermal Systems

Eliminations and Other

Continuing operations 17 41

Discontinued operations

Total $17 $41

During the period from January to October 2009 the Predecessors Electronics and Safety segment

recorded $37 million of long-lived asset impairment charges related to the exit of its occupant protection systems

business in North America and Europe

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

As further described in Note General Delphi acquired the following intangible assets in conjunØtion with

the Acquisition

As of December 312011 As of December 312010

Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

in millions in millions

Amortized intangible assets

Patents and developed technology 487 94 393 455 48 407

Customer relationships 140 57 83 137 32 105

Trade names 96 11 85 95 89

Total 723 162 561 687 86 601

Unamortized intangible assets

In-process research development 27 27 64 64

Goodwill

Total 758 162 596 751 86 665

The estimated useful lives of the Companys amortized intangible assets range from to 20 years

Amortization expense is estimated to be $80 million for the year ending December 31 2012 $80 million for the

year ending December 31 2013 $70 million for the year ending December 31 2014 $60 million for the year

ending December 31 2015 and $50 million for the year ending December 31 2016
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roll-forward of the
gross carrying amounts for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 is presented

below

2011 2010

in millions

Balance at January 751 766

Acquisitions 17

Foreign currency translation and other 10 15
Balance at December31 758 751

roll-forward of the accumulated amortization for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 is

presented below

2011 2010

in millions

Balance at January 86 16

Amortization 79 70

Foreign currency translation and other

Balance at December 31 162 $86

LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Payroll-related obligations 214 203

Employee benefits including current pension obligations 145 167

Income and other taxes payable 257 220

Warranty obligations Note 10 182 243

Restructuring Note 11 55 115

Customer deposits 20 22

Deferred income taxes Note 15 28

Derivative financial instruments Note 17 43

Accrued interest 10

Other 254 290

Total 1208 1265
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Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Environmental Note 14 17 18

Executive long-term incentive plan 107 31

Extended disability benefits 10

Warranty obligations Note 10 133 119

Restructuring Note 11 41 54

Payroll-related obligations 10 11

Accrued income taxes 46 52

Deferred income taxes Note 15 134 178

Derivative financial instruments Note 17 26

Other 51 45

Total 575 516

10 WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

Expected warranty costs for products sold are recognized principally at the time of sale of the product based

on estimates of the amount that will eventually be required to settle such obligations These accruals are based on

factors such as past experience production changes industry developments and various other considerations

These estimates are adjusted from time to time based on facts and circumstances that impact the status of existing

claims Delphi has recognized its best estimate for its total aggregate warranty reserves across all of its operating

segments as of December 31 2011 The estimated reasonably possible amounts to ultimately resolve all matters

are not materially different from the recorded reserves as of December 31 2011

The table below summarizes the activity in the product warranty liability for the years ended December 31

2011 and 2010

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Accrual balance at beginning of period 362 332

Provision for estimated warranties incurred during the period 68 62

Provision for changes in estimate for preexisting warranties 84 80

Settlements made during the period in cash or in kind 205 99
Foreign currency translation and other 13

Accrual balance at end of period 315 362

In 2009 Delphi received information regarding potential warranty claims related to certain components

supplied by Delphis Powertrain segment In 2010 Delphi recorded change in the previous estimate of probable

loss related to this matter by recognizing warranty expense in cost of sales of $75 million This adjustment

resulted in corresponding $75 million decrease in net income attributable to Delphi and corresponding

unfavorable earnings per share impact of $0.11 In March 2011 Delphi reached settlement with its customer

related to this matter and reflected change in its previous estimate of probable loss as result of the settlement

agreement by recognizing $76 million of warranty expense in cost of sales This adjustment resulted in

corresponding $76 million decrease in net income attributable to Delphi and corresponding unfavorable

earnings per share impact of $0.18 In April 2011 in accordance with the terms of the settlement agreement

Delphi made payment of 90 million approximately $133 million at April 30 2011 exchange rates related to

this matter On April 30 2012 Delphi is required to make 60 million approximately $78 million at

December 31 2011 exchange rates payment related to this matter
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11 RESTRUCTURING

Delphi continually evaluates alternatives to align its business with the changing needs of its customers and

to lower the operating costs of the Company This includes the realignment of its existing manufacturing

capacity facility closures or similaractions in the normal course of business These actions may result in

voluntary or involuntary employee terminatidn benefits which are mainly pursuant to union or other contractual

agreements Voluntary termination benefits are accrued when an employee accepts the related offer Involuntary

termination benefits are accrued when Delphi commits to termination plan and the benefit arrangement is

communicated to affected employees or when liabilities are determined to be probable and estimable depending

on the existence of substantive plan for severance or termination Contract termination costs are recorded when

contracts are terminated or when Delphi ceases to use the leased facility and no longer derives economic benefit

from the contract All other exit costs are accrued when incurred

Delphis restructuring costs are undertaken as necessary to implement managements strategy streamline

operations take advantage of available capacity and resources and ultimately achieve net cost reductions These

activities generally relate to the realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure of facilities and other

exit or disposal activities as it relates to executing the Companys strategy in the normal course of business and

transforming the salaried workforce to reduce general and administrative expenses

The following table summarizes the restructuring charges recorded for the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 and January to October 2009 by operating

segment

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from
Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

Segment 2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

Electronics and Safety 29 20 91

Powertrain Systems 12 49 50 45

Electrical/Electronic Architecture 12 94 50 99

Thermal Systems 52 11

Eliminations and Other 11

Continuing operations 31 224 126 235

Discontinued operations 14

Total 31 224 126 249
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The table below summarizes the activity in the restructuring liability for the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010

Employee
Termination

Benefits Other Exit

Liability Costs Liability Total

in millions

Accrual balance at January 2010 210 19 229

Provision for estimated
expenses

incurred during the period 194 31 225

Provision for changes in estimates for preexisting programs

Payments made during the period 260 31 291
Foreign currency and other

Accrual balance at December 31 2010 148 21 169

Provision for estimated expenses incurred during the period 25 31

Payments made during the period 89 16 105
Foreign currency and other

Accrual balance at December 31 2011 86 10 96

Delphi has initiated several programs to streamline operations and lower costs The following are details of

significant charges during 2011

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure offacilities As part of Delphis ongoing

efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently the Company recorded $10 million of restructuring costs in

North America and South America primarily related to the Electrical/Electronic Architecture segment

The Company also recorded $10 million of restructuring costs in conjunction with workforce reduction

and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes including plant

closures in Europe primarily related to the Powertrain segment Additionally $5 million of costs were

incurred related to workiorce reduction efforts resulting from prior divestitures

Delphi and the Predecessor have initiated several programs to streamline operations and lower costs The

following are details of significant charges during 2010

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure offacilities As part of Delphis ongoing

efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently the Company recorded $28 million of restructuring costs in

North America primarily related to the Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments continued efforts to

reduce the workforce The four reporting segments recorded $174 million of restructuring costs in

conjunction with workforce reduction and programs related to the rationalization of manufacturing and

engineering processes including plant closures primarily in Europe The Electronics and Safety

segment also incurred $8 million of costs related to the ongoing sales and wind-down of its occupant

protection systems businesses during the year ended December 31 2010

The following are details of significant charges during 2009

Realignment of existing manufacturing capacity and closure offacilities As part of Delphi and the

Predecessors ongoing efforts to lower costs and operate efficiently the Electronics and Safety

Powertrain Systems Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Thermal Systems segments executed

initiatives to realign manufacturing operations within North America to lower cost markets and to

reduce the workiorce in line with the realigned manufacturing operations and incurred approximately

$34 million and $69 million of restructuring costs during the periods from August 19 to December 31

2009 and January to October 2009 respectively Additionally European South American and

Asian operations in the Electronics and Safety and Electrical/Electronic Architecture segments incurred

$78 million and $99 million of restructuring costs in the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009
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and January to October 2009 respectively in conjunction with workforce reductions and programs

related to the rationalization of manufacturing and engineering processes Additionally the Electronics

and Safety segment incurred $5 million and $7 million of costs related to upcoming sales and wind-

down of its occupant protection systems business in North America and Europe during periods from

August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to October 2009 respectively

Transformation plan activities As part of an effort to transform its salaried workforce and reduce

general and administrative expenses Delphi and the Predecessor identified certain salaried employees in

North America during periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October 2009

for involuntary separation and incurred $5 million and $58 million respectively in related employee

termination benefits included in continuing operations Delphi also incurred $6 million of U.S salaried

separations recorded in discontinued operations for the period from January to October 2009 As

result of the Amended MRA $53 million of U.S employee termination benefits were reimbursed by

GM during the period from January to October 2009 of which $44 million and $9 million related to

U.S hourly separations and U.S salaried separations respectively

12 DEBT

The following is summary of debt outstanding net of discounts of approximately $3 million related to the

Tranche Term Loan and the Tranche Term Loan as of December 31 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

in millions

Accounts receivable factoring 54 112

5.875% senior notes due 2019 500

6.125% senior notes due 2021 500

12.00% unsecured notes initially due 2014 47

TrancheATermLoan due 2016 210

TrancheBTermLoan due 2017 772

Capital leases and other 67 130

Total debt 2103 289

Less current portion 107 218

Long-term debt 1996 71

The principal maturities of debt at nominal value follows

Debt and

Capital Lease

Year Obligations

in millions

2012 107

2013

2014 26

2015 28

2016 162

Thereafter 1778

Total 2106
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Credit Agreement

In March 2011 in conjunction with the redemption of membership interests from Class and Class

membership interest holders Delphi Corporation wholly-owned U.S subsidiary of Delphi Automotive LLP

the Issuer entered into credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as lead arranger and

administrative agent with respect to $3.0 billion in senior secured credit facilities the Credit Facilities The

March 2011 credit agreement has been amended and restated the Credit Agreement and as of December 31

2011 consists of $1.3 billion 5-year senior secured revolving credit facility the Revolving Credit Facility

$258 million senior secured 5-year term loan the Tranche Term Loan and $950 million senior secured

6-year term loan the Tranche Term Loan During the
year

ended December 31 2011 $47 million and

$177 million of the Tranche Term Loan and Tranche Term Loan respectively were repaid under the Credit

Agreement In conjunction with the repayments approximately $10 million of debt issuance costs and discount

were extinguished The Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn at December 31 2011 As of December 31 2011

we had approximately $9 million in letters of credit issued under the Credit Agreement Letters of credit issued

under the Credit Agreement reduce availability under the Revolving Credit Facility

The Credit Agreement carries an interest rate at the Issuers option of either the Administrative Agents

Alternate Base Rate ABR as defined in the Credit Agreement plus with respect to the Revolving Credit

Facility and the Tranche Term Loan 1.50% per annum or ii with respect to the Tranche Term Loan

1.50% per annum or the London Interbank Offered Rate the Adjusted LIBO Rate as defined in the Credit

Agreement LIBOR plus with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term Loan

2.50% per annum or ii with respect to the Tranche Term Loan 2.50% per annum since the initial public

offering The Tranche Term Loan includes LIBOR floor of 1.00%

The interest rate period with respect to the LIBOR interest rate option can be set at one- two- three- or

six-months as selected by the Issuer in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement or other period as

may be agreed by the applicable lenders but payable no less than quarterly The Issuer may elect to change the

selected interest rate over the term of the Credit Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Credit

Agreement The applicable interest rates listed above for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Tranche Term

Loan may increase or decrease from time to time by 0.25% based upon changes to the Companys corporate

credit ratings Accordingly the interest rate will fluctuate during the term of the Credit Agreement based on

changes in the ABR LIBOR or future changes in the Companys corporate credit ratings Upon completion of

our initial public offering the applicable interest rates- for the Tranche Term Loan and Revolving Credit

Facility were reduced by 25 basis points The Credit Agreement also requires that the Issuer pay certain

commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility and certain letter of credit issuance and

fronting fees

The Issuer is obligated to make quarterly principal payments throughout the terms of the Tranche and

Tranche Term Loans according to the amortization schedule in the Credit Agreement In conjunction with the

repayments during the year ended December 31 2011 all quarterly principal payment obligations prior to

maturity have been satisfied for the Tranche Term Loan and quarterly principal payments have been satisfied

through December 31 2013 for the Tranche Term Loan and partially satisfied through March 31 2014

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are prepayable at the Issuers option without premium or penalty

provided that any prepayment of the Tranche Term Loan is accompanied by pro rata payment of the Tranche

Term Loan based on the respective amounts then outstanding The Issuer may request that all or portion of

the Term Loans be converted to extend the scheduled maturity dates with respect to all or portion of any

principal amount of such Term Loans under certain conditions The Credit Agreement also contains certain

mandatory prepayment provisions in the event the Company generates excess cash flow as defined in the Credit

Agreement or Delphi receives net cash proceeds from any asset sale or casualty event No mandatory

prepayments under these provisions have been made or are due through December 31 2011
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As of December 31 2011 the Issuer selected the one-month LIBOR interest rate option asdetailed in the

table below and the amounts outstanding net of the discount in millions and rates effective as of December 31
2011 were

Borrowings Rates effective

asof asof

December 31 December 31
LIBOR plus 2011 2011

Revolving Credit Facility 2.50%

TrancheATerm Loan 2.50% 210 2.81%

Tranche Term Loan 2.50% 772 3.50%

Includes LIBOR floor of 1.00%

The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants that limit among other things the Companys and the

Companys subsidiaries ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens to dispose of assets to make certain

investments to prepay certain indebtedness and to pay dividends or to make other distributions or redemptionsf

repurchases in respect of the Companys equity interests In addition the Credit Agreement requires that the

Company maintain consolidated leverage ratio the ratio of Consolidated Total Indebtedness to Consolidated

EBITDA each as defined in the Credit Agreement of less than 2.75 to 1.0 The Credit Agreement also contains

events of default customary for financings of this type The Company was in compliance with the Credit

Agreement covenants as of December 31 2011

The Tranche Term Loan and the Tranche Term Loan were each issued under the Credit Agreement at

0.5% discount and Delphi paid approximately $86 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit

Facilities The discount and debt issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the facility The amended and

modified Credit Agreement reduced the discount related to the Tranche Term Loan to 0.25%

All obligations under the Credit Agreement are borrowed by Delphi Corporation and jointly and severally

guaranteed by its direct and indirect parent companies and by certain of Delphi Automotive PLC existing and

future direct and indirect U.S subsidiaries subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement All

obligations under the Credit Agreement including the guarantees of those obligations are secured by certain

assets of Delphi Corporation and the guarantors including substantially all of the assets of Delphi Automotive

PLC and its U.S subsidiaries and certain assets of Delphi Corporations direct and indirect parent companies

Senior Notes

On May 17 2011 Delphi Corporation issued $500 million of 5.875% senior notes due 2019 and $500

million of 6.125% senior notes due 2021 the Senior Notes in transaction exempt from registration under

Rule 144A and Regulation of the Securities Act The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed

jointly and severally by Delphi Automotive PLC and certain of its existing and future subsidiaries Interest is

payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year Delphi paid $30 million of interest in

November 2011 Delphi paid approximately $23 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Senior

Notes The net proceeds of approximately $1.0 billion as well as cash on hand were used to pay down amounts

outstanding under the Credit Agreement

The indenture governing the Senior Notes limits among other things Delphis and Delphis subsidiaries

ability to incur additional indebtedness or liens dispose of assets make certain restricted payments or

investments enter into transactions with affiliates or merge with or into other entities As of December 31 2011

the Company was in compliance with the provisions of the Senior Notes
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Acquisition Financing

In connection with the Acquisition Delphi Automotive LLP issued $41 million in senior unsecured five-

year notes the Old Notes pursuant to Note Purchase Agreement the NPA with an Acquisition Date fair

value of $49 million and ii entered into senior secured delayed draw term loan facility the DDTL with

syndicate of lenders The Old Notes paid 12% interest and were scheduled to mature on October 2014 The

DDTL permitted borrowings of up to $890 million consisting of U.S tranche of up to $267 million in

borrowings and foreign tranche of up to $623 million in borrowings There was no commitment fee associated

with the DDTL but if drawn Delphi was required to pay interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 6.0% per annum

with minimum LIBOR amount of 2.0% per annum The DDTL had term of years majority of the holders

of the Old Notes and the lenders under the DDTL were related parties as holders of the Class and Class

membership interests

In connection with the redemption of the Class and Class membership interests on March 31 2011 and

execution of the Credit Agreement each of the DDTL and the NPA was terminated including the termination

discharge and release of all secunty and guarantees granted in connection with the DDTL and the NPA and

Delphi paid approximately $57 million to redeem the Old Notes in full In connection with the termination of the

Old Notes Delphi incurred early tennination penalties and recognized loss on extinguishment of debt of

approximately $9 million for the year ended December 31 2011

Other Financing

Accounts receivable factoringY arious accounts receivable factoring facilities are maintained in Europe

and are accounted for as short-term debt These uncommitted factoring facilities are available through various

financial institutions As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $54 million and $112 million respectively were

outstanding under these accounts receivable factoring facilities

Capital leases and otherAs of December 31 2011 and 2010 approximately $67 million and

approximately $130 million respectively of other debt issued by certain international subsidiaries was

outstanding primarily related to bank lines in Asia Pacific and capital lease obligations

InterestCash paid for interest related to amounts outstanding totaled $101 million $30 million $8 million

and $157 million for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods August 19 to December 31

2009 and January to October 2009 respectively

13 PENSION BENEFITS

Overview

Certain of Delphi non subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans which generally provide

benefits based on negotiated amounts for each year of service Delphis primary non-U.S plans are located in

France Germany Luxembourg Mexico Portugal and the United Kingdom U.K. The U.K and certain

Mexican plans are funded In addition Delphi has defined benefit plans in South Korea Turkey and Italy for

which amounts are payable to employees immediately upon separation The obligations for these plans are

recorded based on the vested obligation

Delphi sponsors Supplemental Executive Retirement Program SERP for those employees who were

U.S executives prior to September 30 2008 and were still U.S executives on October 2009 the effective date

of the program This program is unfunded Executives receive benefits over years after an involuntary or

voluntary separation from Delphi The SERP is closed to new members and was frozen effective September 30

2008 as discussed further below

115



Termination of the U.S Pension Plans and U.S OPEB

Prior to the PBGC termination of the U.S pension plans as further discussed in Note Elements of

Predecessor Transformation Plan the Predecessor sponsored pension plans covering employees in the U.S
which generally provided benefits of stated amounts for each year of service as well as supplemental benefits for

employees who qualified for retirement before normal retirement age Certain employees also participated in

non-qmilified pension plans covering executives which are based on targeted wage replacement percentages and

are unfunded The Predecessor froze the Salaried Plan the SERP the ASEC Manufacturing Retirement Program

the Delphi Mechatronics Retirement Program and the PHI Non-Bargaining Retirement Plan effective

September 30 2008 Additionally the Predecessor reached agreement with its labor unions resulting in freeze

of traditional benefit accruals under the Hourly Plan effective as of November 30 2008

On September 26 2008 the Predecessor received the consent of its labor unions and approval from the

Court to transfer certain assets and liabilities of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employee Pension Plan

pursuant to section 4141 of the Internal Revenue Code the 4141 Net Liability Transfer as agreed under the

Amended GSA The 4141 Net Liability Transfer was to occur in two separate steps
On September 29 2008 the

Predecessor completed the first
step

of the 141 Net Liability Transfer transferring liabilities of approximately

$2.6 billion and assets of approximately $0.5 billion of the Hourly Plan to the GM Hourly-Rate Employees

Pension Plan representing 30% and 10% of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets respectively as of

September 29 2008 The 4141 Net Liability Transfer was sufficient to avoid an accumulated funding deficiency

for the Hourly Plan for plan year ended September 30 2008 In consideration of the first step of the 4141 Net

Liability Transfer Old GM received an allowed administrative bankruptcy claim equivalent to 77.5% of the net

unfunded liabilities transferred or $1.6 billion The first step of the 4141 Net Liability Transfer was accounted

for as partial settlement of the Hourly Plan under the accounting guidance related to employers accounting for

settlements and curtailments of defined benefit pension plans and for termination benefits in the third quarter of

2008 The Predecessor recognized settlement loss of $494 million included in reorganization items in the

consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31 2008 which reflects the recognition of

$494 million of previously unrecognized actuarial losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income

The amount of actuarial losses recognized represents the proportion of the projected benefit obligation

transferred to Old GM relative to the total projected benefit obligation of the Hourly Plan

The second step of the 141 Net Liability Transfer the Second Pension Transfer was to occur upon the

effectiveness of an amended plan of reorganization In July 2009 GM advised the Predecessor that it would not

assume the Hourly Plan and would not complete the Second Pension Transfer GM and the PBGC negotiated

separate release and waiver agreement regarding possible initiation by the PBGC of the plan termination

process for the Hourly Plan which provides consideration to the PBGC for certain releases to be granted to

among others GM the Predecessor and the Predecessors global affiliates On July 22 2009 the PBGC initiated

the process to terminate the Hourly Plan and the U.S salaried and subsidiary pension plans The Predecessor

recognized pension curtailment and settlement loss of $2.8 billion included in reorganization items in the

consolidated statement of operations for the period ended October 2009 This loss included the reversal of $5.2

billion of liabilities subject to compromise related to the U.S pension plans offset by the recognition of $5.0

billion of related unamortized losses previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and the

recognition of $3.0 billion allowed general unsecured non-priority claim granted to the PBGC For additional

information regarding the PBGC termination of the Hourly Plan and the U.S salaried and subsidiary pension

plans refer to Note Elements of Predecessor Transformation Plan

On February 2009 the Predecessor filed motion with the Court seeking the authority to cease providing

retiree OPEB benefits in retirement to salaried employees retirees and surviving spouses
after March 31 2009

On February 24 2009 the Court provisionally approved the Predecessors motion to terminate such benefits

effective March 31 2009 based on the Courts finding that the Predecessor had met its evidentiary burdens

subject to the appointment of retirees committee the Retirees Committee to review whether it believes that

any of the affected programs involved vested benefits as opposed to at will or discretionary unvested
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benefits On March 11 2009 the Court issued final order approving the Predecessors motion to terminate

salaried OPEB benefits The Court approved settlement agreement the Settlement between the Predecessor

and the Retirees Committee and the Delphi Salaried Retirees Association the Association settling any and

all rights for the parties to appeal the Courts March 11 2009 final order authorizing the Predecessor to terminate

salaried OPEB benefits to the U.S District Court for the Southern District of New York the District Court
Pursuant to the Settlement the Predecessor agreed to provide the Retirees Committee with consideration of $9

million to resolve pending litigation including withdrawing the appeals of the Retirees Committee and the

Association to the District Court The consideration provided by the Predecessor under the Settlement included

an initial $1 million payment in May 2009 to hardship fund subsequent monthly payments of $1.25 million for

five months beginning in June 2009 and final $1 million payment in November 2009 which under the terms

of the Modified Plan was paid by DPHH In addition the Predecessor contributed $500000 toward the creation

of Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association VEBA and agreed to reimburse up to an additional

$250000 of reasonable legal expenses incurred by the counsel for the Retirees Committee and the Association

Neither Delphi nor the Predecessor has any future funding obligations or commitments to the VEBA Following

the initial payment of $1.5 million by May 2009 the Disthct Court dismissed the appeal filed by the retirees

with prejudice The Predecessor recognized salaried OPEB curtailment and settlement gain of $1168 million

included in reorganization items in the consolidated statement of operations for the period ended October

2009 This settlement gain reflects the reversal of existing liabilities of $1173 million $1181 million net of $8

million to pay salaried OPEB claims incurred but not reported as of March 31 2009 and the recognition of

previously unamortized net gains included in accumulated other comprehensive income of $4 million The

reorganization gain also reflects the impact of the $9 million consideration to be provided for the Settlement

described above

On September 23 2008 the Predecessor received approval from the Court and on September 26 2008

received the consent of its labor unions to cease providing traditional U.S hourly OPEB In addition upon

effectiveness of the Amended GSA Old GM assumed financial responsibility for all of the Predecessors

traditional hourly OPEB liabilities from and after January 2007 GM assumed approximately $6.8 billion of

postretirement benefit liabilities for certain of the Predecessors active and retired hourly employees The

assumption of the traditional hourly OPEB liability by Old GM and Old GMs agreement to reimburse

postretirement benefit expenses through the administrative transfer date of February 2009 was accounted for as

curtailment and settlement under the guidance related to employers accounting for postretirement benefits

other than pensions During the Predecessor period from January to October 2009 Old GM and GM funded

an additional $41 million of OPEB payments made to the hourly workforce
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Funded Status

The amounts shown below reflect the change in the U.S defined benefit pension obligations during 2011

and 2010

Year ended Year ended

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Benefit obligation at beginning of period 83 81

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of period 83 83

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period

Delphi contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Underfunded status 83 83

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities 74 75
Total 83 83

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

consist of pre-tax

Actuarial loss

Total
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The amounts shown below reflect the change in the non-U.S defined benefit pension obligations during

2011 and 2010

Year ended Year ended

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Benefit obligation at beginning of period 1518 1533

Service cost 45 38

Interest cost 87 84

Plan participants contributions

Actuarial loss 43

Benefits paid 75 66
Impact of curtailments

Plan amendments and other

Exchange rate movements 21 60
Benefit obligation at end of period 1596 1518

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 910 798

Actual return on plan assets 10 95

Delphi contributions 151 109

Plan participants contributions

Benefits paid 75 66
Exchange rate movements and other 28

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 987 910

Underfunded status 609 608
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of

Current liabilities 16 13
Non-current liabilities 593 595

Total 609 608

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

consist of pre-tax

Actuarial loss gain 17 75
Prior service cost

Total 18 75
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PBO
ABO
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

PBO

ABO
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

PBO

ABO
Fair value of plan assets at end of

year

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Settlement loss gain

Amortization of prior service costs

Amortization of actuarial losses

Net periodic benefit cost

Non-U.S Pension Plans

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

12

393

341
188

15

126

17

The projected benefit obligation PBO accumulated benefit obligation ABO and fair value of plan

assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets and with plan assets in

excess of accumulated benefit obligations are as follows

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2011 2010 2011 2010

in millions

Plans with ABO in Excess of Plan Assets

83 83 1480 1402

83 83 1320 1246

883 807

Plans with Plan Assets in Excess of ABO

116 116

76 74

104 103

Total

83 83 1596 1518

83 83 1396 1320

987 910

Benefit costs presented below were determined based on actuarial methods and included the following

U.S Pension Plans

Successor

Year ended

December 31
2011

Year ended

December 31
2010

in millions

Period from

August 19 to

December 31
2009

$3 $4 $1

Successor

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

in millions

Service cost 45 38 13

Interest cost 87 84 21

Expected return on plan assets 61 55 12
Settlement gain

Curtailment gain loss

Amortization of prior service costs

Amortization of actuarial losses

Net periodic benefit cost 67 60 20

Predecessor

Period from

January ito

October

2009

in millions

32

76

63

48

14

109
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Other

Postretirement

Benefits

Period from

January ito

October

2009

in millions

Service cost

Interest cost 18

Settlement gain 1175
Amortization of prior service costs credit 30
Amortization of actuarial losses

Net periodic benefit cost 1171

Other postretirement benefit obligations were not significant at December 31 2011 or December 31 2010

Net periodic benefit cost above reflects $5 million that was included in loss from discontinued operations of the

Predecessor for the period from January to October 2009

Experience gains and losses as well as the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions

are amortized over the average future service period of employees The estimated actuarial loss for the defined

benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic

benefit cost in 2012 is less than $1 million

The principal assumptions used to determine the pension expense and the actuarial value of the projected

benefit obligation for the U.S and non-U.S pension plans were

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31

Pension Benefits

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2011 2010 2011 2010

Weighted-average discount rate 3.30% 4.10% 5.24% 5.69%

Weighted-average rate of increase in compensation

levels N/A N/A 3.66% 3.88%

Assumptions used to determine net expense for years ended December 31

Pension Benefits

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Weighted-average discount rate 4.10% 5.00% 6.16% 5.69% 5.97% 6.22%

Weighted-average rate of increase in

compensation levels N/A N/A N/A 3.88% 3.89% 3.95%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan

assets N/A N/A 8.25% 6.65% 7.14% 7.81%

Delphi selects discount rates by analyzing the results of matching each plans projected benefit obligations

with portfolio of high-quality fixed income investments rated AA-or higher by Standard and Poors

Delphi does not have any U.S pension assets therefore no U.S asset rate of return calculation was

necessary for 2011 or 2010 The primary funded non-U.S plans are in the United Kingdom and Mexico For the

determination of 2011 expense Delphi assumed long-term asset rate of return of approximately 6.25% and

9.50% for the United Kingdom and Mexico respectively Delphi evaluated input from local actuaries and asset
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managers including consideration of recent fund performance and historical returns in developing the long-term

rate of return assumptions The assumptions for the United Kingdom and Mexico are primarily conservative

long-term prospective rates

Delphis pension expense for 2012 is determined at the 2011 measurement date For purposes of analysis

the following table highlights the sensitivity of the Companys pension obligations and expense to changes in key

assumptions

Change in Assumption Impact on Pension Expense Impact on PBO

25 basis point bp decrease in discount rate $2 million 66 million

25 bp increase in discount rate $2 million 62 million

25 bp decrease in long-term return on assets $2 million

25 bp increase in long-term return on assets $2 million

The above sensitivities reflect the effect of changing one assumption at time It should be noted that

economic factors and conditions often affect multiple assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in

key assumptions are not necessarily linear The above sensitivities also assume no changes to the design of the

pension plans and no major restructuring programs

Pension Funding

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be

paid

Projected

Pension

Benefit Payments

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

in millions

2012 65

2013 61

2014 70

2015 65

2016 73

20172021 44 445

Delphi anticipates making required pension contributions of approximately $64 million in 2012

Delphi sponsors and the Predecessor sponsored defined contribution plans for certain hourly and salaried

employees Expense related to the contributions for these plans was $46 million $35 million $6 million and $41

million for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009

and January to October 2009 respectively

Plan Assets

The pension plans sponsored by Delphi and the Predecessor invest in diversified portfolio consisting of an

array of asset classes that attempts to maximize returns while minimizing volatility These asset classes include

developed market equities emerging market equities private equity global high quality and high yield fixed

income real estate and absolute return strategies
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The fair values of Delphis pension plan assets weighted-average asset allocations at December 31 2011

and 2010 by asset category are as follows

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2011

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for Significant Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

in millions

101 101

263 263

360 360

43 43

81 81

35

63 63

41 41

987 205 658
_________

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2010

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for Significant

Identical Observable

Assets Inputs

Asset Category Total Level Level
___________

in millions

Cash 185

Equity mutual funds 388

Bond mutual funds 234

Debt securities 63

Equity securities 40
_________ _________ _________

Total 910
_________ _________ _________

Following is description of the valuation methodologies used for pension assets measured at fair value

Equity Mutual FundsThe fair value of the equity mutual funds is determined by the direct quoted market

prices on regulated financial exchanges of the underlying investments included in the fund

Bond Mutual FundsThe fair value of the bond mutual funds is determined by the direct quoted market

prices on regulated financial exchanges of the underlying investments included in the fund

Real EstateThe fair value of real estate properties is estimated using an annual appraisal provided by the

administrator of the
property

investment Management believes this is an appropriate methodology to obtain the

fair value of these assets

Hedge FundsThe fair value of the hedge funds is accounted for by custodian The custodian obtains

valuations from the underlying hedge fund managers based on market quotes for the most liquid assets and

alternative methods for assets that do not have sufficient trading activity to derive prices Management and the

custodian review the methods used by the underlying managers to value the assets Management believes this is

an appropriate methodology to obtain the fair value of these assets

Asset Category

Cash

Equity mutual funds

Bond mutual funds

Real estate trust funds

Hedge Funds

Commodities Fund

Debt securities

Equity securities

Total

35

124

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

185

63

40

288

388

234

622
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CommoditiesThe fair value of commodity funds are determined by comparing exchange traded prices and

Index rates for futures and/or swap contracts as of the measurement date to the contract rate of the underlying

futures and/or swap contracts

Debt SecuritiesThe fair value of debt securities is determined by direct quoted market prices on regulated

financial exchanges

Equity SecuritiesThe fair value of equity securities is determined by direct quoted market prices on

regulated financial exchanges

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs Level

Real Estate Alternative

Trust Fund Investments Hedge Funds

in millions

Beginning balance at December 31 2009 ... 82 56

Actual return on plan assets

Relating to assets still held at the

reporting date

Relating to assets sold during the

period 35
Purchases sales and settlements 47 58
Transfers in and/or out of Level

Ending balance at December 31 2010

Actual return on plan assets

Relating to assets still held at the

reporting date

Purchases sales and settlements 42 82

Ending balance at December 31 2011 43 81

14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

European Union Antitrust investigation

Delphi has received requests for informatkin from antitrust authorities at the European Commission seeking

information about alleged conduct by Delphi in connection with an investigation of automotive parts suppliers

concerning possible violations of antitrust laws related to the supply of wire harnesses to vehicle manufacturers

Delphi is cooperating fully with the European authorities Investigations of this nature often continue for several

years and may result in fines imposed by the European authorities Any fine could result in material adverse

impact on the Companys operating results and cash flows However at this time Delphi is unable to estimate

any reasonably possible range of loss that may ultimately result from this investigation No accrual for this matter

has been recorded as of December 31 2011

Class Action Antitrust Litigation

number of class action complaints have been filed in various U.S federal district courts alleging that

several wire harness manufacturers including Delphi have violated U.S antitrust laws These complaints allege

that consumers overpaid for their vehicles as result of the alleged conduct of the wire harness manufacturers At

this time the Company believes that the allegations contained in the complaints are without merit with regard to

the Company and the Company intends to vigorously defend against the allegations set forth in the complaints

No accruals for these matters have been recorded as of December 31 2011
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Unsecured Creditors Litigation

In December 2011 complaint was fiId in the Bankruptcy Court alleging that the redemption by Delphi

Automotive LLP of the membership interests of GM and the PBGC the initial public offering and distribution

by Delphi Automotive LLP in the amount of $95 million principally in respect of taxes constituted in the

aggregate distributions to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP in excess of $7.2 billion The complaint

further alleges that such aggregate distributions obligate Delphi Automotive LLP to pay to the holders of allowed

general unsecured claims against the Predecessor $32.50 for every $67.50 in excess of $7.2 billion in

distributions up to maximum of $300 million At this time we believe that the allegations contained in the

complaint are without merit and we intend to vigorously contest the allegations set forth in the complaint No

accrual for this matter has been recorded as of December 31 2011

Environmental Matters

Delphi is subject to the requirements of U.S federal state and local and non-U.S environmental and safety

and health laws and regulations As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the undiscounted reserve for environmental

investigation and remediation was approximately $22 million of which $5 million was recorded in accrued

liabilities and $17 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities and $23 million of which $5 million was

recorded in accrued liabilities and $18 million was recorded in other long-term liabilities respectively Delphi

cannot ensure that environmental requirements will not change or become more stringent over time or that its

eventual environmental remediation costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of its current reserves In the

event that such liabilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded Delphis results of operations could

be materially affected At December 31 2011 the difference between the recorded liabilities and the reasonably

possible range of loss was not significant

Ordinary Business Litigation

Delphi is from time to time subject to various legal actions and claims incidental to its business including

those arising out of alleged defects breach of contracts product warranties intellectual property matters and

employment-related matters It is the opinion of Delphi that the outcome of such matters will not have material

adverse impact on the consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows of Delphi With respect

to warranty matters although Delphi cannot ensure that the future costs of warranty claims by customers will not

be material Delphi believes its established reserves are adequate to cover potential warranty settlements

Brazil Matters

Delphi conducts significant business operations in Brazil that are subject to the Brazilian federal labor

social security environmental tax and customs laws as well as variety of state and local laws While Delphi

believes it complies with such laws they are complex subject to varying interpretations and the Company is

often engaged in litigation with government agencies regarding the application of these laws to particular

circumstances In addition Delphi also is party to commercial and labor litigation with private parties As of

December 31 2011 related claims totaling approximately $225 million using December 31 2011 foreign

currency rates have been asserted against Delphi As of December 31 2011 the Company maintains accruals for

these asserted claims of approximately $40 million using December 31 2011 foreign currency rates The

amounts accrued represent claims that are deemed probable of loss and are reasonably estimable based on the

Companys analyses and assessment of the asserted claims and prior experience with similarmatters While the

Company believes its accruals are adequate the final amounts required to resolve these matters could differ

materially from the Companys recorded estimates and Delphis results of operations cotild be materially

affected

125



Romania Value Added Tax VAT Assessment

During the first quarter of 2010 as result of tax audit for years 20062008 we received tax assessment

from the Romanian tax authorities in the amount of approximately $42 million based on the taxing authoritys

assessment that we underpaid its VAT mostly on export sales by approximately $24 million and owe accrued

interest and penalties of $18 million We filed an appeal contesting the assessment and in October 2010 the

Romanian tax authorities substantially reduced the amount of the assessment and decided to re-audit us In

December 2011 the Company received $13 million from the tax authorities related to the outstanding VAT
credit As of December 31 2011 we maintain reserve for this contingency that is substantially less than the

amount of the remaining balance under assessment While we believe our reserve is adequate the final amounts

required to resolve this initial assessment could differ materially from our recorded estimate

Operating leases

Rental expense totaled $95 million $98 million $34 million and $76 million for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January tO October

2009 respectively As of December 31 2011 Delphi had minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable

operating leases totaling $325 million which become due as follows

Minimmn Future

Year Operating Lease Commitments

in millions

2012 82

2013 67

2014 57

2015 48

2016 38

Thereafter 33

Total 325

15 INCOME TAXES

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes and equity income loss for U.S and

non-U.S operations are as follows

Successor Predecessor

Period from Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to January to

December 31 December 31 December 31 October

2011 2010 2009 2009

in millions in millions

U.S income loss 149 313 86 9460

Non-U.S income loss 1357 631 51 344

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity income loss 1506 944 35 9116

The Predecessors U.S income of $9460 million for the period from January to October 2009 includes

reorganization gain of $10210 million primarily relating to the extinguishment of liabilities subject to

compromise
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Current income tax expense

U.S federal 104

Non-U.S 232

U.S state and local

Total current 341

Deferred income tax benefit expense net

U.S federal

Non-U.S

U.S state and local

Total deferred 36
Total income tax provision benefit 305

Notional U.S federal income taxes at statutory

rate 527

U.S income taxed at other rates

Non-U.S income taxed at other rates 226
Change in valuation allowance 52
Tax credits 26
Change in tax law 13

Other changes in tax reserves 17

Other comprehensive income adjustment

Withholding taxes

Other adjustments

Total income tax expense benefit

98

164

10

272

Successor

330

31
21
29
15

Included in loss from discontinued operations are income tax provisions of $17 million for the period from

January to October 2009
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The provision benefit for income taxes is comprised of

Successor

Year ended Year ended

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

in millions

Period from

August 19 to

December 31
2009

11

55

66

41
50

93

27

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

60

60

358
13

371

311

45
12

17

14
258

Cash paid or withheld for income taxes was $303 million $254 million $20 million and $92 million for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January

to October 2009 respectively

For purposes of comparability and consistency we have used the notional U.S federal income tax rate when

presenting our reconciliation of the income tax provision The Company is U.K resident taxpayer and as such

is not generally subject to U.K tax on remitted foreign earnings As result we do not anticipate foreign earnings

would be subject to 35% tax rate upon repatriation to the U.K as is the case for U.S based companies

reconciliation of the provision benefit for income taxes compared with the amounts at the notional U.S federal

statutory rate was

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

in millions

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

3190

266

56

3464

358

311

12

16

10

27

56

$305

24

258



The Companys tax rate is affected by the tax rates in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates the

relative amount of income earned by jurisdiction jurisdictions with statutory tax rate less than the U.S rate of

35% and the relative amount of losses or income for which no tax benefit or expense was recognized due to

valuation allowance Included in non-U.S income taxed at other rates for 2011 are tax incentives of $64 million

obtained in various non-U.S countries primarily Hi-Tech Enterprise status in China and the Maquiladora regime

in Mexico and $65 million tax benefit for income earned in jurisdictions where valuation allowance has been

recorded primarily in France

We recognized $52 million primarily Germany and $21 million tax benefit in 2011 and 2010

respectively related to changes of judgment in valuation allowance for the realization of deferred tax assets

During 2011 the Company recorded withholding tax of $10 million related to the funding of the redemption of

all the outstanding Class and Class membership interests and $27 million related to changes in our assertion

with respect to our intent to repatriate foreign earnings in certain countries

During the period from January through October 2009 the Company recognized tax benefits associated

with gains from Other Comprehensive Income of $358 million see discussion in Note 13 Pension Benefits

Delphi currently benefits from tax holidays in various non-U.S jurisdictions with expiration dates from

2012 through 2023 The income tax benefits attributable to these tax holidays are approximately $20 million

$0.05 per share in 2011 $5 million $0.01 per share in 2010 $2 million $0.00 per share for January to

October 2009 and $1 million $0.00 per share for August 19 to December 31 2009

Deferred income taxes

Delphi accounts for income taxes and the related accounts under the liability method Deferred income tax

assets and liabilities reflect the impact of temporary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the bases of such assets and liabilities as measured by tax laws Significant

components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Deferred tax assets

Pension 136 136

Employee Benefits 49 26

Net operating loss carryforwards 483 561

Warranty and other liabilities 188 148

Other 91 106

Total
gross

deferred tax assets 947 977

Less valuation allowances 472 551

Total deferred tax assets 475 426

Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed Assets 18

Tax on unremitted profits of certain foreign subsidiaries 39 16

Intangibles 160 210

Foreign operating loss recapture 45 45

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 250 289

Net deferred tax assets 225 137

Reflects gross amount before jurisdictional netting of deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Net current and non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated balance sheets

as follows

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Current assets $183 $136

Current liabilities 28
Long-term assets 204 183

Long-term liabilities 134 178

Total deferred tax asset 225 137

The net deferred tax assets of $225 million as of December 31 2011 are primarily comprised of deferred tax

asset amounts in the U.K China and Germany

Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

As of December 31 2011 Delphi has gross deferred tax assets of approximately $483 million for non-U.S

net operating loss NOL carryforwards with recorded valuation allowances of $460 million These NOLs are

available to offset future taxable income and realization is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income

prior to expiration of the loss carryforwards The non-U.S NOL relate primarily to France Spain and

Luxembourg The NOL carryforwards have expiration dates ranging from one year to an indefinite period

Deferred tax assets include $10 million and $19 million of tax credit carryforwards with recorded valuation

allowances of $3 million and $19 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively These tax credit

carryforwards expire in 2012 through 2029

Cumulative ændistributed foreign earnings

Withholding taxes of $39 million on undistributed earnings are related to China South Korea and Turkey

that are not indefinitelyreinvested There are no other material liabilities for U.K income taxes on the

undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as the Company has concluded that such earnings are either

indefinitely reinvested or should not give rise to additional income tax liabilities as result of the distribution of

such earnings

Uncertain tax positions

Delphi recognizes tax benefits only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon

examination by tax authorities The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is

greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement Unrecognized tax benefits are tax

benefits claimed in Delphis tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards
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reconciliation of the gross change in the unrecognized tax benefits balance excluding interest and

penalties is as follows

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to Period from

December 31 December 31 December 31 January to

2011 2010 2009 October 62009

in millions in millions

Balance at beginning of period 82 83 79

Liabilities assumed in acquisition 80

Additions related to current year 43 10

Additions related to prior year 11

Reductions related to prior year 24 19 10
Reductions due to expirations of statute of

limitations

Settlements-cash

Gain from reorganization 75
Balance at end of period 99 82 83

portion of Delphis unrecognized tax benefits would if recognized reduce its effective tax rate The

remaining unrecognized tax benefits relate to tax positions for which only the timing of the benefit is uncertain

Recognition of these tax benefits would reduce the Companys effective tax rate only through reduction of

accrued interest and penalties As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the amounts of unrecognized tax benefit that

would reduce the Companys effective tax rate were $68 million and $52 million respectively In addition $19

million and $31 million for 2011 and 2010 respectively would be offset by the write-off of related deferred tax

asset if recognized

Delphi recognizes interest and penalties as part of income tax expense Total accrued liabilities for interest

and penalties were $15 million and $18 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Total interest and

penalties recognized as part of income tax expense benefit was decrease of $3 million decrease of $3

million decrease of $3 million and an increase of $1 million for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

and for the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January to October 2009 respectively

Delphi files tax returns in multiple jurisdictions and is subject to examination by taxing authorities

throughout the world Taxing jurisdictions significant to Delphi include the U.S China Brazil France

Germany Mexico Poland and the U.K Open tax years
related to these taxing jurisdictions remain subject to

examination and could result in additional tax liabilities In general Delphi affiliates are no longer subject to

income tax examinations by foreign tax authorities for
years

before 2002 It is reasonably possible that audit

settlements the conclusion of current examinations or the expiration of the statute of limitations in several

jurisdictions could impact the Companys unrecognized tax benefits Delphi expects potential reduction in

unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve months of approximately $22 million due to expected resolution

with tax authorities

Tax return filing determinations and elections

Delphi Automotive LLP which acquired the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor on

October 2009 the Acquisition Date was established on August 19 2009 as limited liability partnership

incorporated under the laws of England and Wales At the time of its formation Delphi Automotive LLP elected

to be treated as partnership for U.S federal income tax purposes Prior to the Acquisition Date the Internal

Revenue Service the IRS issued Notice 2009-78 the Notice announcing its intent to issue regulations

under Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code with an effective date

prior to the Acquisition Date If regulations as described in the Notice are issued with the effective date

indicated in the Notice and with no exceptions for transactions that were subject to binding commitments on

that date we believe there is significant risk that the IRS may assert that Delphi Automotive LLP and as
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result Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes

retroactive to the Acquisition Date If Delphi Automotive LLP were treated as domestic corporation for U.S

federal income tax purposes we expect that although we are incorporated under the laws of Jersey and tax

resident in the U.K we would also be treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes

Delphi Automotive LLP has filed informational U.S federal partnership tax returns for 2009 and 2010 In

light of the Notice the IRS is currently reviewing whether Section 7874 applies to Delphi Automotive LLPs

acquisition of the automotive supply and other businesses of the Predecessor The Company believes after

consultation with counsel that neither Delphi Automotive LLP nor Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as

domestic corporations for U.S federal income tax purposes and intends to vigorously defend any assertion by

the IRS to the contrary including through litigation if we were unable to reach satisfactory resolution with the

IRS However no assurance can be given that the IRS will not contend or that court would not conclude that

neither Delphi Automotive LLP and therefore Delphi Automotive PLC should be treated as domestic

corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes No accrual for this matter has been recorded as of

December 31 201L

If we were treated as domestic corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes we would be subject to

U.S federal income tax on our worldwide taxable income including some or all of the distributions from our

subsidiaries as well as some of the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that constitute controlled

foreign corporations This could have material adverse impact on our future tax liability related to these

distributions and earnings Future cash distributions made by us to non-U.S shareholders could be subject to U.S

income tax withholding at rate of 30% unless reduced or eliminated by tax treaty In addition we could be

liable for additional U.S federal income taxes on such distributions and earnings and for the failure by Delphi

Automotive LLP to withhold U.S income taxes on distributions to its non-U.S members for periods beginning

on or after the Acquisition Date which liability could have material adverse impact on our results of

operations and financial condition

16 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND NET INCOME LOSS PER SHARE

Overview

On May 19 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC was formed as Jersey public limited company and had

nominal assets no liabilities and had conducted no operations prior to its initial public offering On

November 22 2011 in conjunction with the completion of its initial public offering all of the outstanding equity

of Delphi Automotive LLP was exchanged for 328244510 ordinary shares par
value $0.01 in Delphi

Automotive PLC As result Delphi Automotive LLP became wholly-owned subsidiary of Delphi Automotive

PLC and subsequent to the exchange Delphi Automotive PLC completed the initial public offering of

24078827 ordinary shares by the selling shareholders for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $530

million Delphi AUtomotive PLC did not receive any proceeds from the offering and incurred transaction fees

and expenses of approximately $44 million

Immediately prior to the exchange of membership interests for ordinary shares and the completion of the

initial public offering there were 344495 Class and 24000 Class E-1 membership interests outstanding

Substantially all of the membership interests were exchanged for 326306261 ordinary shares and 1938249

ordinary shares of Delphi Automotive PLC respectively Additionally in conjunction with the Acquisition on

October 2009 there were also 1750000 Class and 100000 Class membership interests issued and

outstanding until March 31 2011 when all Class and Class membership interests were redeemed See

Membership Interests below for additional information

Net income loss per share

Basic net income loss per share is computed by dividing net income loss attributable to Delphi by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period Diluted net income loss per share

reflects the weighted average dilutive impact of all potentially dilutive securities from the date of issuance and is
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computed using the treasury stock method by dividing net income loss attributable to Delphi by the diluted

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding In the second quarter of 2010 Delphis Board of

Managers approved and authorized the Value Creation Plan the VCP Refer to Note 21 Share-Based

Compensation for additional information The awards fully vest on December 31 2012 and final settlement can

be made in cash or ordinary shares or combination thereof as provided in the participation agreement or as

otherwise determined by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors As

result the awards that are expected to be settled in shares were included in the calculation of diluted net income

loss per share Additionally in November 2011 Delphi granted 51003 restricted stock units RSUs to the

Board of Directors These awards were also included in the calculation of diluted net income loss per
share For

all periods presented the effect of the VCP awards was anti-dilutive and therefore excluded from the calculation

of diluted net income loss per share

Predecessor Period

In the Predecessor period the stock options stock appreciation rights and restricted stock units of the

Predecessor were included in the calculation of diluted net income loss per share The inclusion of the

Predecessor stock options stock appreciation rights and restricted stock units in the calculation of diluted net

income loss per share was anti-dilutive

Weighted Average Shares

As described above on November 22 2011 Delphi Automotive PLC completed the exchange of all of the

outstanding equity of Delphi Automotive LLP for 328244510 ordinary shares in Delphi Automotive PLC For

each of the Successor periods the net income loss per share is presented giving effect to this transaction on

retrospective basis In addition weighted average shares outstanding for the Successor periods were impacted by

the following transactions

The redemption of all outstanding Class and Class membership interests for $4565 million on

March 31 2011

The repurchase of 10005 Class membership interests for approximately $180 million in 2011

The issuance of 24000 Class E-1 membership interests to the Board of Managers as part of the Class

E- Interest Incentive Plan in June 2010

The impact of the above transactions on weighted average shares outstanding follows

Successor

Period from
Year ended Year ended August 19 to

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

shares in millions

Weighted average ordinary shares

outstanding as result of the initial

public offering 328 328 328

Redemption of Class

membership interests 86 349 349

Repurchase of Class membership

interests 10 10

Issuance of Class E- membership

interests

Weighted average ordinary shares

outstanding for the period 421 686 685

The Class and membership interests redeemed on March 31 2011 represented approximately 51% of all outstanding

membership interests at the Acquisition Date The remaining 49% membership interests consisted primarily of Class

membership interests The 328 million ordinary shares outstanding as of the date of the initial public offering were increased to

reflect ordinary shares outstanding for the Class and membership interests prior to March 31 2011
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The following table illustrates net income loss per share attributable to Delphi and the weighted average

shares outstanding used in calculating basic and diluted income loss per share

Successor Predecessor

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to Period from

December 31 December 31 December 31 January to

2011 2010 2009 October 62009

in millions except per share data in millions except

per share data

Basic and Diluted net income loss per share

Numerator

Net income loss attributable to Delphi 1145 631 18 9318

Denominator

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding... 421 686 685 565

Basic and diluted net income loss per share 2.72 0.92 0.03 16.50

Anti-dilutive securities share impact 43

Share Repurchase Program

In January 2012 the Board of Directors authorized share repurchase of up to $300 million of ordinary

shares The program will terminate on the earlier to occur of December 31 2012 or when the Company attains

$300 million in ordinary share repurchases

Membership Interests

In conjunction with the consummation of the Modified Plan on the Acquisition Date all outstanding shares

of stock of the Predecessor were cancelled and Delphi Automotive LLP issued membership interests on the

Acquisition Date As more fully described in Note General in conjunction with the Acquisition and the

consummation of the Modified Plan on October 2009 Delphi Automotive LLP and GM collectively acquired

substantially all of the assets of the Predecessor the Class and membership interests were issued to GM
certain investors including former creditors of the Predecessor and the PBGC respectively and the debt

outstanding from the DIP lenders was settled The Class and Class membership interests entitled the holders

to non-controlling representation on Delphi Automotive LLPs Board of Managers and along with Class and

Class E-1 membership interests entitled the holders to potential future distributions by Delphi Automotive LLP

Additionally prior to the redemption of the Class and Class membership interests as more fully described

below the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi Automotive LLP

Second LLP Agreement required the consent of or provided special rights to Class and certain Class

membership interest holders with respect to certain events including changes in corporate governance the

execution of significant transactions and the issuance of additional securities
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The Class and Class members received their membership interests in consideration for $1833 million

and $209 million of cash respectively In addition the rights of the DIP lenders to receive certain assets of the

Predecessor were assigned to Delphi Automotive LLP These assets had fair value of $2890 million

determined in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The PBGC interests were derived from

negotiations between GM and the PBGC with respect to the Predecessors terminated U.S pension plans In June

2010 24000 Class E-1 membership interests were issued to Delphi Automotive LLPs Board of Managers

under the Class E- Interest Incentive Plan in order to attract and reward board members and to promote the

creation of long-term value for interest holders of Delphi Automotive LLP The fair value of the Class and

membership interests issued on October 2009 totaled $4932 million and was determined as more fully

described in Note General as follows

in millions

Fair value of Predecessor assets acquired net of liabilities assumed 2890
Fair value of cash contributed by GM 1833

Fair value of cash contributed by investors including DIP lenders 209

Fair value of net assets acquired 4932

The fair value of the membership interests issued on the Acquisition Date was allocated between the

respective classes based on the distribution provisions of the Second LLP Agreement The distribution

percentages varied by class of membership interest and by cumulative amount distributed and between classes

were not related or proportional to the number of membership interests held

The following table summarizes the membership interests issued

Allocation of

Membership Membership Fair Value of

Interests as of Interests as of Membership

Membership Date December 31 December 31 Interests as of

Members Interests Issued Issued 2010 2009 the Acquisition Date

Class in millions

... GM 1750000 October 2009 2083 1969 1972

... DIP Lenders1 354500 October 2009 2816 2406 2418

... PBGC 100000 October 2009 646 539 542

E-1 .. Board of Managers 24000 June 2010

Total 5550 4914 4932

Included controlling equity stake for affiliates of Silver Point Capital and Elliot Management Subsequent to October 2009 Class

membership interests traded on the 144A market and therefore the holders of Class membership interests changed over time

Class and Class membershipinterests redemption

On March 31 2011 all 1750000 outstanding Class and 100000 Class membership interests were

redeemed for $3791 million and $594 million respectively In conjunction with the redemption transaction

Delphi Automotive LLP incurred transaction-related fees and expenses totaling approximately $180 million

including amounts paid to certain membership interest holders In addition Delphi Automotive LLP obtained

necessary consents to the redemption of the Class and Class membership interests and modified and

eliminated specific rights provided to these membership interest holders under the Second LLP Agreement

The amounts paid to redeem the outstanding Class and Class membership interests were $1736 million

in excess of the total recorded carrying value of the Class and Class membership interests The excess was

reflected as pro-rata reduction to the recorded carrying value of the remaining membership interests the

Class and Class E- membership interests
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Class membershipinterests repurchase program

In August 2011 Delpbi Automotive LLPs Board of Managers approved repurchase program of Class

membership interests During the year ended December 31 2011 10005 Class membership interests were

repurchased for cumulative cost of approximately $180 million at an average price per membership interests

unit of $17904 This was recorded as reduction to the carrying value of the Class membership interests

Distribution

Under the terms of the Fourth LLP Agreement if the Board of Managers determined that there was

available cash as defined in the Fourth LLP Agreement the Class and Class E-1 members would be entitled

to receive distribution for taxes and pursuant to the cumulative distribution provisions of available cash to

enable the members to pay projected tax liabilities attributable to tax book profits and losses by Delphi that are

attributable to their membership interests In October 2011 Delphi Automotive LLP Board of Managers

approved the payment of distribution primarily in respect of taxes of approximately $95 million which was

paid on December 2011 to members who held membership interests as of the close of business on October 31

2011 Tax distributions were treated as an advance of amounts otherwise distributable to the members

Other

Prior to the completion of the initial public offering on November 22 2011 net income and other changes to

membership interests were allocated to the respective outstanding classes based on the cumulative distribution

provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement

In conjunction with the adoption in 2010 of the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan

and the VCP both of which are long-term incentive plans designed to assist the Company in attracting retaining

motivating and rewarding the Board of Managers and key employees of the Company and promoting the

creation of long-term value the Fourth LLP Agreement was amended to address the Class E- membership

interests and the VCP The Fourth LLP Agreement includes provisions related to potential distributions or

alternatively allocations of equity to the Class E- members and employee incentive plans based on rates

amounts as defined in the agreement approximately 3.7% for the first approximately $1.6 billion of distributions

and approximately 3.4% for distributions thereafter subject to adjustment for the Class membership interests

repurchased with ratable reductions in the distribution percentages applied to Class members

Additionally under the terms of the Acquisition and the Fourth LLP Agreement if cumulative distributions

to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP under certain provisions of the Fourth LLP Agreement exceed $7.2

billion Delphi as disbursing agent on behalf of DPHH is required to pay to the holders of allowed general

unsecured claims against Old Delphi $32.50 for
every $67.50 in excess of $7.2 billion distributed to the

members up to maximum amount of $300 million This contingency is not considered probable of occurring as

of December 31 2011 In December 2011 complaint was filed in the Bankruptcy Court alleging that

distributions in excess of $7.2 billion were made to the members of Delphi Automotive LLP Refer to Note 14

Commitments and Contingencies for additional information

Allocation of net income loss to membershipinterest classes

Total membership interest equity as of October 2009 was allocated to the respective classes of

membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined by the Second LLP

Agreement In subsequent periods total membership interest equity at the end of the period was allocated to the

respective classes of membership interests across all tranches of the cumulative distribution schedule as defined

by the LLP agreement effective in that period The allocation of the net income loss for the period is the

difference between the ending and beginning of period allocation of membership interest equity as adjusted for

the payment of distribution of approximately $95 million which was paid on December 2011 to members

who held membership interests as of the close of business on October 31 2011
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The following table summarizes the allocation of net income loss to the membership interest classes for

the periods prior to the initial public offering

Period from January Year Ended Period from

2011 to Initial December 31 August 19 to

Public Offering 2010 December 31
Net Income Net Income 2009 Net Loss

Attributable to Attributable to Attributable to

Membership Membership Membership
Interests Interests Interests

Class in millions

76 114

930 410 12
25 107

E-l N/A

1035 631 18

17 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Financial Instruments

Delphis financial instruments include debt which consists of its accounts receivable factoring

arrangements capital leases and other debt issued by Delphis foreign subsidiaries the Tranche Term Loan

the Tranche Term Loan and the Senior Notes The fair value of debt is based on quoted market prices for

instruments with public market data or the current book value for instruments without quoted public market

price As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the total of debt was recorded at $2103 million and $289 million

respectively and had estimated fair values of $2125 million and $293 million respectively For all other

financial instruments recorded at December 31 2011 and 2010 fair value approximates book value

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Delphi is exposed to market risk such as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates commodity prices

and changes in interest rates which may result in cash flow risks To manage the volatility relating to these

exposures Delphi aggregates the exposures on consolidated basis to take advantage of natural offsets For

exposures that are not offset within its operations Delphi enters into various derivative transactions pursuant to

its risk management policies which prohibit holding or issuing derivative financial instruments for trading

purposes and designation of derivative instruments is performed on transaction basis to support hedge

accounting The changes in fair value of these hedging instruments are offset in part or in whole by

corresponding changes in the fair value or cash flows of the underlying exposures being hedged Delphi assesses

the initial and ongoing effectiveness of its hedging relationships in accordance with its documented policy As of

December 31 2011 Delphi has entered into derivative instruments to hedge cash flows extending out to January

2014
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As of December 31 2011 the Company had the following outstanding notional amounts related to

commodity and foreign currency
forward contracts that were entered into to hedge forecasted exposures

62494

31962

17634

78

11836

6829

3804

542

509

292

138

113

90

51

38

in millions

pounds

pounds

pounds

troy ounces

troy ounces

HUF

MXN
KRW
CNY
JPY

RON
TRY

EUR

PLN

BRL

GBP

SGD

The fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 are as follows

Designated derivatives instruments

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Total

Derivatives not designated

None

Designated derivatives instruments

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Total

Balance Sheet Location

Other Current Assets

Other Current Assets

Accrued Liabilities

Other Long-Term Assets

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Balance Sheet Location

Other Current Assets

Other Current Assets

Accrued Liabilities

Other Long-Term Assets

Other Long-Term Assets

17

35

11

17

80

Commodity

Copper

Primary Aluminum

Secondary Aluminum

Silver

Gold

Foreign Currency

Quantity Hedged Unit of Measure

in thousands

Hungarian Forint

Mexican Peso

South Korean Won

Chinese Yuan Renminbi

Japanese Yen

Romanian Leu

New Turkish Lira

Euro

Polish Zloty

Brazilian Real

British Pound

Singapore Dollar

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

December 31
2011

December 31
2011 Balance Sheet Location

in millions

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued Liabilities

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other Long-Term Liabilities

15

Liability DerivativesAsset Derivatives

December 31
2010 Balance Sheet Location

in millions

37 Accrued Liabilities

29 Accrued Liabilities

Other Current Assets

11 Other Long-Term Liabilities

10 Other Long-Term Assets

87

December 31
2010

11

Derivatives not designated
None

Derivative instruments within this category are subject to master netting arrangements and are presented on net basis in the

consolidated balance sheets in accordance with accounting guidance related to the offsetting of amounts related to certain contracts
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The fair value of Delphis derivative financial instruments decreased from net asset position at

December 31 2010 to net liability position at December 31 2011 primarily due to decreases in the forward

rates of commodities and certain foreign currencies

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended

December 31 2011 is as follows

Loss

Recognized in

Gain Income

Loss Reclassified Ineffective

Recognized in from OCI into Portion

OCI Income Excluded from

Effective Effective Effectiveness

Year ended December 312011 Portion Portion Testing

in millions

Designated derivatives instruments

Commodity derivatives 52 28

Foreign currency derivatives 56 18

Total 108 46

Gain Recognized

Year ended December 31 2011 in Income

in millions

Derivatives not designated

Foreign currency
derivatives

The effect of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended

December 31 2010 is as follows

Gain

Recognized in

Gain Income

Gain Reclassified Ineffective

Recognized in from OCI into Portion

OCI Income Excluded from

Effective Effective Effectiveness

Year ended December 312010 Portion Portion Testing

in millions

Designated derivatives instruments

Commodity derivatives 58 12

Foreign currency derivatives 48 15

Total 106 27

Gain Recognized

Year ended December 31 2010 in Income

in millions

Derivatives not designated

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Total

The gain or loss reclassified from OCI into income for the effective portion of designated derivative

instruments and the gain or loss recognized in income for the ineffective portion of designated derivative

instruments excluded from effectiveness testing were recorded to cost of sales in the consolidated statements of

operations for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 The gain or loss recognized in income for

non-designated derivative instruments was recorded in other income expense net for the years
ended

December 31 2011 and 2010
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Gains and losses on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in OCI to the extent that

hedges are effective until the underlying transactions are recognized in earnings Unrealized amounts in

accumulated OCT will fluctuate based on changes in the fair value of hedge derivative contracts at each reporting

period Net losses included in accumulated OCT as of December 31 2011 were $45 million after-tax $71 million

pre-tax Of this pre-tax total loss of approximately $44 million is expected to be included in cost of sales

within the next 12 months and loss of approximately $27 million is expected to be included in cost of sales in

subsequent periods Cash flow hedges are discontinued when Delphi determines it is no longer probable that the

originally forecasted transactions will occur The amount included in cost of sales related to hedge

ineffectiveness was approximately $1 million for the year ended December 31 2011 and insignificant for the

year ended December 31 2010

Fair value measurements

Fair Value Measurements on Recurring Basis

All derivative instruments are required to be reported on the balance sheet at fair value unless the

transactions qualify and are designated as normal purchases or sales Changes in fair value are reported currently

through earnings unless they meet hedge accounting criteria Delphis derivative exposures are with

counterparties with long-term investment grade credit ratings Delphi estimates the fair value of its derivative

contracts using an income approach based on valuation techniques to convert future amounts to single

discounted amount Estimates of the fair value of foreign currency and commodity derivative instruments are

determined using exchange traded prices and rates Delphi also considers the risk of non-performance in the

estimation of fair value and includes an adjustment for non-performance risk in the measure of fair value of

derivative instruments The non-performance risk adjustment reflects the credit default spread CDS applied

to the net commodity and foreign currency exposures by counterparty When Delphi is in net derivative asset

position the counterparty CDS rates are applied to the net derivative asset position When Delphi is in net

derivative liability position estimates of peer companies CDS rates are applied to the net derivative liability

position

In certain instances where market data is not available Delphi uses management judgment to develop

assumptions that are used to determine fair value This could include situations of market illiquidity for

particular currency or commodity or where observable market data may be limited In those situations Delphi

generally surveys investment banks and/or brokers and utilizes the surveyed prices and rates in estimating fair

value

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 Delphi was in net derivative liability position of $65 million and net

derivative asset position of $76 million respectively and no significant adjustments were recorded for

nonperformance risk based on the application of peer companies CDS rates and because Delphis exposures

were to counterparties with investment grade credit ratings

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 Delphi had the following assets measured at fair value on recurring

basis

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Other Unobservable

Markets Level Observable Inputs

As of December 312011 Total Inputs Level Level

in millions

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Total $4 $4
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As of December 312010

Time deposits

Available-for-sale securities

Commodity derivatives

Foreign currency derivatives

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Other

Markets Level Observable

Total Inputs Level

in millions

28

Total 638

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Other

Markets Level Observable

Total Inputs Level

in millions

28

41

________
69

Fair Value Measurements on Nonrecurring Basis

In addition to items that are measured at fair value on recurring basis Delphi also has items in its balance

sheet that are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis As these items are not measured at fair value on

recurring basis they are not included in the tables above Nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at

fair value on nonrecurring basis include long-lived assets intangible assets asset retirement obligations and

liabilities for exit or disposal activities measured at fair value upon initial recognition No impairment charges

were recorded during the year ended December 31 2010 During the year ended December 31 2011 Delphi

recorded an impairment charge of $7 million to the carrying value of its investments in affiliates Delphi

determined that it was not probable that it would recover its investment The fair value measurement of Delphis

investment in this affiliate was based on Level inputs

18 OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

Other income expense net included

Interest income

Costs associated with initial public offering

Impairmentinvestment in available-for-sale

security

Loss on extinguishment of debt

Acquisition-related transaction costs

Other net

Other income expense net

550

12

48

550

12

48

28

626
_________

12
________

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 Delphi had the following liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis

As of December 312011
__________ _______________ _____________

Commodity derivatives 28

Foreign currency derivatives 41

Total 69
________ ________

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

As of December 31 2010

None

Successor

Period from

Year ended Year ended August 19 to

December 31 December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009

in millions

31 29

44

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

10

14

24

16
19

20 22

15 34 17
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During the year ended December 31 2011 Delphi incurred approximately $44 million in transaction costs

related to our initial public offering completed in November 2011 As further discussed in Note 12 Debt during

the
year

ended December 31 2011 Delphi repaid $47 million and $177 million of the Tranche Term Loan and

Tranche Term Loan respectively and paid $57 million to extinguish the Old Notes recognizing losses on

extinguishments

During the year ended December 31 2010 Delphi repaid $12 million of interest-free government-backed

debt due in 2021 which required compensating cash collateral The debt was previously adjusted to $4 million

fair value as result of acquisition accounting and therefore Delphi recognized an $8 million loss on early

extinguishment of debt Other net primarily includes insurance and other recoveries and income from royalties

The Successor recognized $19 million of transaction costs related to the Acquisition for the period from

August 19 to December 31 2009

19 ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Acquisitions

In May 2011 Delphis Powertrain segment completed the acquisition of manufacturer of specialized

diesel testing equipment for purchase price of $19 million The acquisition was not material to the Companys
consolidated financial statements In connection with the acquisition the Company recorded goodwill of

approximately $8 million The purchase price allocation was finalized to reflect final valuation studies

Sale of Daesung investment

On January 31 2011 Delphi completed the sale of its 49.5% ownership interest in Daesung Electric Co
Ltd Delphi received $35 million in net proceeds and recognized gain on divestiture of $8 million which is

included in equity income net of tax in the consolidated statement of operations

Sale of occupant protection systems

On March 31 2010 Delphi completed the sale of its occupant protection systems business in Asia to

Autoliv AB Delphi received net proceeds of $71 million and recognized gain on divestiture of $10 million

which is included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations in 2010 The results of operations

including the gain or loss on divestiture were not significant to the consolidated financial statements in any

period presented and this divestiture did not meet the discontinued operations criteria

20 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Court approval of Delphis plan to dispose of the Steering Business and the interiors and closures

business triggered held for sale accounting in 2007 The Court approval of bidding procedures for the sale of the

remaining assets of the chassis business on April 23 2009 and subsequent approval of the sale triggered held for

sale accounting for AHG in the second quarter of 2009

Steering and halfshaft business

In conjunction with the consummation of the Modified Plan on the Acquisition Date an affiliate of GM
acquired the Steering Business Refer to Note General for further information During the period from

January to October 2009 the Predecessor recorded loss of $24 million net of tax due to the results of

operations and adjustment of assets held for sale to fair value of the Steering Business
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Automotive Holdings Group

AHG included various non-core product lines and plant sites that did not fit the Predecessors strategic

framework As part of the Acquisition the global suspensions and brake business of AHG was acquired by

Delphi Substantially all of the remainder of AHG emerged from chapter 11 as part of DPHH and therefore is

not included in Delphis consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31 2009

Global suspension and brakes business saleOn March 31 2009 the Predecessor announced that it had

entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement with BeijingWest Industries Co Ltd BWI for the sale of

Delphis remaining chassis business the global suspension and brakes business whereby BWI would acquire

machinery and equipment intellectual property and certain real property for purchase price of approximately

$90 million which is subject to certain adjustments Certain customer and supplier contracts were also to be

assumed and/or assigned to BWI The 2008 annual revenues for the global suspension and brakes business were

$670 million The closing of the sale occurred in October 2009 and Delphi received net proceeds of $82 million

which under the terms of the Acquisition were transferred net of Delphis costs in connection with the sale to

GM during the Successor period from August 19 to December 31 2009 During the period from January to

October 2009 held for sale loss of $29 million was recognized by the Predecessor to reflect the revaluation

of the disposal group to fair value based on the estimated proceeds of the sale agreement

Results of discontinued operations

The Steering Business through the Acquisition Date and AHG through the date of the respective

divestitures within AHG are reported as discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations and

statement of cash flows of the Predecessor for the period from January to October 2009

The results of the discontinued operations are summarized as follows

Predecessor

Period from

January to

October

2009

in millions

Total sales 1524

Loss before income taxes including equity income net of tax 28
Provision for income taxes 17
Loss attributable to discontinued operations 45

21 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

2011 Delphi Long Term Incentive Plan

In November 2011 the Delphi Automotive PLC Long Term Incentive Plan the PLC LTIP was

established which allowed for the grant of awards up to 22977116 shares The awards can be in the form of

shares options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units RSUs performance awards

and other share-based awards to the employees directors consultants or advisors of the Company

On November 22 2011 Delphi granted 51003 RSUs to the Board of Directors at grant date fair value of

approximately $1 million The grant date fair value was determined based on the closing price of the Companys

ordinary shares on November 22 2011 The RSUs become fully vested on June 13 2012
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summary of activity including award grants vesting and forfeitures is provided below

RSUs

in thousands

Outstanding January 2011

Granted 51

Vested 10
Forfeited

Outstanding December 31 2011 41

2010 Board of Managers Equity Award

In June 2010 the 2010 Board of Managers Class E-1 Interest Incentive Plan the Plan was authorized in

order to attract and reward board members and to promote the creation of long-term value for interest holders of

Delphi On June 30 2010 24000 restricted interests of newly created class of membership interests Class E-

membership interests were issued to board members The restricted interests were initially subject to continued

service through applicable vesting dates as follows

20% on November 2010

40% on November 2011

40% on November 2012

However in conjunction with the completion of the initial public offering in November 2011 these interests

were exchanged for 1938249 ordinary shares of Delphi Automotive PLC

Under certain conditions with respect to an initial public offering or change in control as defined in the

Plan any interests that had not yet vested would immediately vest Because Delphi completed an initial public

offering on November 22 2011 and the resulting total equity valuation of the Company based on the average

closing price of Delphi shares during the 15-day period beginning on the 30th day after the closing of the

offering plus the value of prior distributions made under the LLP agreement effective in that period to holders

of membership interests as well as $4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class and Class membership interests

Refer to Note General for more information any Class membership interest repurchases any additional

distributions to Class and Class E- membership interest holders and any amounts distributed or paid to

holders of Class E- membership interests with respect to or to repurchase their Class E- membership interests

was greater than $6 billion the remaining unvested interests fully vested Approximately $8 million of

compensation expense was recognized in 2011 since the criteria for accelerated vesting was met

At the time of issuance the fair market value of the Class E- membership interests was estimated to be $19

million based on contemporaneous valuation performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing

generally accepted valuation approaches Beginning in the third quarter of 2010 Delphi recognized

compensation cost on straight-line basis COmpensation expense recognized during the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 totaled $14 million and $5 million net of tax of $0 respectively There were no

cash flow impacts for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

2010 Executive Long Term Incentive Plan

During the second quarter of 2010 the Board of Managers approved and authorized the VCP long-term

incentive plan designed to assist the Company in attracting retaining motivating and rewarding key employees

of the Company and promoting the creation of long-term value Participants were granted an award in

September 2010 for the period ending December 31 2012 Each individual participants target value was based
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on the participants level of responsibility within the Company and the country in which the participant is

located The awards cliff vest fully at the end of the performance period but may immediately fully vest upon

change in control as defined in the VCP for certain participants In the event of qualified termination as

defined the participant shall vest in pro-rata percentage of their award as of the termination date For any other

termination the award shall be forfeited

The amounts to be settled under the VCP will be determined based on Delphis enterprise value and

accumulated distributions as well as $4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class and Class membership interests

Refer to Note General for more information any Class membership interest repurchases any additional

distributions to Class and Class E- membership interest holders and any amounts distributed to holders of

Class E- membership interests to repurchase their Class E- membership interests as of December 31 2012

compared to target enterprise value of $8.25 billion An enterprise value of $2.5 billion must be achieved to

receive minimum award payout and above this level the payout is determined as percentage of the target

award The authorized target amount of the awards is $135 million of which $105 million are outstanding as of

December 31 2011 but the ultimate final settlement amount of the awards could be higher or lower depending

on the enterprise value of Delphi at December 31 2012 The estimated fair value of the awards granted as of

December 31 2011 was $186 million Because of Delphis completed initial public offering the estimated

enterprise value will be based on the average daily closing market price of the Company between November 17

2011 and the end of the performance period plus any distributions to holders of all membership interests and the

approximately $4.4 billion paid to repurchase Class and Class membership interests any Class

membership interest repurchases any additional distributions to Class and Class E- membership interest

holders and any amounts distributed to holders of Class E-1 membership interests with respect to or to

repurchase their Class E-1 membership interests Delphi recognized compensation cost in 2011 and 2010 and

will continue to recognize compensation cost based on estimates of the enterprise value over the requisite

vesting periods of the awards Compensation expense recognized during the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 totaled $76 million $61 million net of tax and $31 million $21 million net of tax respectively Based

on the estimate of enterprise value as of December 31 2011 unrecognized compensation expense on pretax

basis of approximately $79 million is anticipated to be recognized during 2012 There were no cash flow impacts

for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Final settlement can be made in cash or ordinary shares or combination thereof as provided in the

participation agreement or as otherwise detennined by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of

the Board of Directors

The VCP awards are accounted for as liability awards pursuant to FASB ASC 718 Compensation-Stock

Compensation Estimating the fair value of the liability awards under the VCP requires assumptions regarding

the Companys enterprise value Any differences in actual results from managements estimates could result in

fair values different from estimated fair values which could materially impact the Companys future results of

operations and financial condition Prior to public quoted market prices for averages to determine fair value

estimates for VCP the fair market value of the liability awards were based on contemporaneous valuations

performed by an independent valuation specialist utilizing generally accepted valuation approaches

Signficant Factors Assumptions and Methodologies Used in Estimating Fair Value of Enterprise Value

for VCP Awards and Fair Value of E-1 Membership Interests

The estimated fair value of the Class E- membership interests were based on contemporaneous valuation

performed as of the grant date The liability awards under the VCP were based on contemporaneous valuations

performed periodically by an independent valuation specialist Both the Class E- membership interests and VCP

valuations utilize appropriate weighting of the market and income approaches

Market Approach The market approach measures the value of company through analysis of recent sales

or offerings of comparable companies Based on analysis of guideline public companies and guideline merged or
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acquired companies Delphi utilized 2010 EBITDA and 2011 EBITDA multiples of 4.5x-6.25x to value the

Class E- membership interests and VCP awards in periods prior to the completion of the initial public offering

In addition to the guideline public company and guideline merged or acquired company approaches the

Company considered the trading price of its Class membership interests by qualified institutional investors in

determining the enterprise value of the Company in periods prior to the completion of the initial public offering

Income Approach The income approach derives the value of company based on assumptions about the

companys future stream of cash flows Delphi provided its independent valuation specialist with projected net

sales expenses and cash flows for the years ended December 31 2010 2011 and 2012 for the Class E- awards

and for the years ended December 31 2010 2011 2012 and 2013 for the VCP awards These financial

projections represent managements best estimate at the time of the contemporaneous valuations Discount rates

used to determine the present value of future cash flows were based on the weighted average cost of capital

which ranged from ll.6%-13.7%

Predecessor Plans

At the Acquisition Date all outstanding common stock of the Predecessor including all stock options

exercisable were cancelled Prior to the Acquisition Date the Predecessors share-based compensation programs

included stock options restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights

22 SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

In May 2011 Delphi Corporation issued the Senior Notes in transaction exempt from registration under

Rule 144A and Regulation of the Securities Act Refer to Note 12 Debt for more information All obligations

under theSenior Notes are borrowed by Delphi Corporation Subsidiary Issuer and are fully and

unconditionally guaranteed by its direct and indirect parent companies and by certain of Delphi Automotive

PLCs direct and indirect U.S subsidiaries the Parent Companies on joint and several basis subject to

customary release provisions Subsidiaries not subject to the guarantee Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries consist

primarily of the non-U.S subsidiaries of the Company

In lieu of providing separate audited financial statements for the Guarantors the Company has included the

accompanying condensed consolidating financial statements These condensed consolidating financial statements

are presented on the equity method Under this method the investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost and

adjusted for the parents share of the subsidiarys cumulative results of operations capital contributions and

distributions and other equity changes The Guarantor subsidiaries are combined in the condensed consolidating

financial statements The principal elimination entries are to eliminate the investments in subsidiaries and

intercompany balances and transactions

145



Periods prior to the Acquisition Date are not presented as the information is not meaningful under the

Predecessor corporate structure

Statement of Operations Year Ended December 312011

Parent Subsidiary

Companies Issuer

Netsales

Operating expenses

Cost of sales

Selling general and

administrative 118

Amortization

Restructuring

Total operating expenses... 118

Operating loss income 118
Interest expense 37 101
Other expense income net 38 27

Loss income before income

taxes and equity income 193 74
Income tax benefit expense 27

Loss income before equity

income 190 47
Equity in net income loss of

affiliates

Equity in net income loss of

subsidiaries 1335 121

Net income loss 1145 74

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to

Delphi 1145 74

Statement of Operations Year Ended December 312010

Parent Subsidiary

Companies Issuer

Netsales

Operating expenses

Cost of sales

Selling general and

administrative 121

Amortization

Restructuring

Total operating expenses... 121

Operating loss income 121
Interest expense

Other income expense net

Loss income before income taxes

and equity income loss 121
Income tax expense

Loss income before equity

income loss 122
Equity in net income of

affiliates

Equity in net income loss of

subsidiaries 753 233

Net income loss 631 233

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to

Delphi

Consolidated

13817

11768

815

70

224

12877

940

30
34

944

258

686

17

703

72

Non-

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

5292 12225

Eliminations Consolidated

1476 16041

511

26

28

10689

1536

26
36

1546

238

1308

22

1330

78

1252

4754 10124 1492 13386

272 901

53 79

31

5082
_____________

1492 14397

210 16 1644
42 123

_____________
43 15

212 15 1506

91
______________

305

121 1201

22

1456

121 1447 1223

78

121 1447 1145

Non-

Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

in millions

4870 10259 1312

4238 8865 1335

259 435

49 21

11 213

4557 9534 1335
___________

313 725 23

27
17 18

___________

327 716 22

94 156
___________

233 560 15

17

986
___________

233 577 971

72

631 233 233 505 971 631
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Net sales

Operating expenses

Cost of sales

Selling general and administrative

Amortization

Restructuring

Total operating expenses

Operating loss income

Interest expense

Other expense income net

Loss income before income taxes and equity

income loss
Income tax benefit expense

Loss income before equity income

Equity in net income of affiliates

Equity in net income loss of subsidiaries

Net loss income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Net loss income attributable to Delphi 18 51 49

Statement of Comprehensive Income Year Ended December 31 2011

Parent Subsidiary

Companies Issuer

Net income loss 1145 74

Other comprehensive loss income

Currency translation adjustments

Net change in unrecognized gain loss on
derivative instruments net of tax

Employee benefit plans adjustment net of

tax

Other comprehensive loss income

Equity in other comprehensive loss income

of subsidiaries 274 102
_________

Comprehensive income 871 28
Comprehensive income attributable to

noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to

Successor/Predecessor 871 28

Statement of Comprehensive Income Year Ended December 31 2010

Net income loss
Other comprehensive loss income

Currency translation adjustments

Net change in unrecognized gain loss on
derivative instruments net of tax

Employee benefit plans adjustment net of

tax

Other comprehensive loss income

Equity in other comprehensive income loss
of subsidiaries

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to

noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to

Successor/Predecessor

Parent Subsidiary

Companies Issuer

Statement of Operations Period from August 19 to December 312009

Non-

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

in millions

1178 2588 345

1135 2256 344
98 139

10

26 100

1269 2501 346

91 87

19

23 86 76
37 11

22 49 65

49 45

18 51 49 70 45

Consolidated

3421

3047

242

16

126

3431

10

17

35
27

15

18

15

55

Non-

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

121 1330

45
_________

Eliminations Consolidated

1447 1223

94

98

____________
77

___________
269

94

73

167

98

102

19

376

1163 1071 954

83 83

19 1080 1071 871

Non-

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

631 233 233 577

48

26

48 22

67 48

698 281 281 599

75

698 281 281 524
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Eliminations Consolidated

971 703

48

26

70

115

1086 773

75
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Statement of Comprehensive Income from August 19 to December 312009

Net income loss

Other comprehensive loss income

Currency translation adjustments

Net change in unrecognized gain loss on

derivative instruments net of tax

Employee benefit plans adjustment net of

tax

Other comprehensive loss income

Equity in other comprehensive income loss
of subsidiaries

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to

noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to

Successor/Predecessor

Balance Sheet as of December 312011

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Long-term assets

Property net

Intangible assets net

Investments in affiliates

Investments in subsidiaries

Other long-term assets

Total long-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt

Intercompany accounts net

Pension benefit obligations

Other long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Total Delphi shareholders equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders

186 1124

636 1823

294 768

157 446

1273 4170

1801

158

257

364

___________
2580

__________ $__6750

1363

2459

1054

616

5501

2315

596

257

3627

9128

107

2397

1208

37 12

1996

674

575

3245

6957

1688

483

2171

9128

Non-

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

in millions

18 51 49 70 45

16 16

33 33

17 22

24 29

46 44 87 16 19

13 13

46 44 74 16

Non-
Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

Eliminations Consolidated

53

53

3302

3305

3358

1666

1666

1670

1688

1688

514

438

19

971

2244

20

565

292

877

17

17

690

71

761

778

1981

1307

674

683

95

95

12

3992

3990

4002

.2

4000

4000

4002

87

1830

908

2825

10

654
596

275

227

3052

3215

483

3698

6750

296

78

298

677

____________
1554

690

690

778 2244equity 3358
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Balance Sheet as of December 312010

Non-

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS in millions

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2010 1203 3219

Restricted cash 25 22 47

Time Deposits 550 550

Accounts receivable 621 1686 2307

Inventories 301 692 988

Other current assets 150 405 555

Total current assets 3657 4008 7666

Long-term assets

Property net 437 1630 2067

Intangible assets net 494 171 665

Investments in affiliates 281 281

Investments in subsidiaries 5743 3355 9098
Other long-term assets 57 342 403

Total long-term assets 5747 3355 988 2424 9098 3416

Totalassets 5753 3355 4645 6432 9103 11082

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Short-term debt 18 200 218

Accounts payable 527 1709 2236

Accrued liabilities 250 1013 1265

Total current liabilities 795 2922 3719

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt 63 71

Intercompany accounts net 110 11 75 174
Pens ion benefit obligations 80 597 677

Other long-term liabilities 332 184 516

Total long-term liabilities 110 11 495 670 1264

Total liabilities 112 11 1290 3592 4983

Total Delphi shareholders equity 5641 3366 3355 2382 9103 5641

Noncontrolling interest 458 458

Total shareholders equity 5641 3366 3355 2840 9103 6099

Total liabilities and shareholders

equity 5753 3355 4645 6432 9103 11082
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 312011

Non-

Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

in millions

Net cash provided by used in operating

activities 255 17 269 1346 1377

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 161 469 630
Maturity of time deposits 550 550

Proceeds from sale of property/

investments 12 60 72

Cost of acquisitions net of cash sold 17 17
Decrease in restricted cash 25 13 38

Loans of related
parties 14 14

Other net

Net cash provided by used in

investing activities 422 432 10

Cash flows from financing activities

Net repayment borrowings under other

short-term debt agreements 128 125
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured

term loans net of issuance costs 2385 2385

Repayment of senior secured term

loans 1490 1490
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes

net of issuance costs 976 976

Repayment of senior unsecured five-year

notes 57 57
Dividend payments to noncontrolling

interests 43 43
Intercompany dividends and net increase

decrease in intercompany

obligations 5142 1892 2514 736
Distribution to Delphi equity holders 93 93
Redemption of membership interests .. 4747 4747

Net cash provided by used in

financing activities 302 17 2515 964 3194

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash

and cash equivalents 29 29

Increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 47 1824 79 1856
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period 2010 1203 3219

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period 53 186 1124 1363
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 312010

Eliminations Consolidated

1142

Non
Parent Subsidiary Guarantor Guarantor

Companies Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

Net cash provided by operating

activities 442 695

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 124 376 500
Purchase of time deposits 750 750
Maturity of time deposits 200 200

Proceeds from sale of

property/investments 89 93

Decrease in restricted cash 33 16 49

Other net 12 15

Net cash used in investing activities 625 286 911

Cash flows from financing activities

Net repayment under other short-term debt

agreements 47 49
Repayments of long-term debt 50 50
Dividend payments of consolidated

affiliates to minority shareholders 27 27

Net cash used in financing activities ... 124 126

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash

and cash equivalents

Increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 185 292 112

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period 2195 911 3107

Cashandcashequivalentsatendofperiod 2010 1203 3219
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Statement of Cash Flows from the period August 19 to December 312009

Net cash used in provided by operating

activities 18

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from divestitures net of cash

sold

Decrease in restricted cash

Cash acquired from Delphi Corporation

Other net

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net repayment under other short-term debt

agreements

Proceeds from issuance of membership

interests 19

Proceeds from issuance of five-year notes

Net cash provided by financing

activities 19

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and

cash equivalents

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

23 SEGMENT REPORTING

21

2009 14

41

2009 34

2195 911

Effective December 2010 Delphi realigned its segment reporting to reflect certain items previously

included in the Eliminations and Other segment within its core business segments Delphi operates its core

business along the following operating segments which are grouped on the basis of similar product market and

operating factors

ElectricallElectronic Architecture which includes complete electrical architecture and component

products

Powertrain Systems which includes extensive systems integration expertise in gasoline diesel and fuel

handling and full end-to-end systems including fuel and air injection combustion electronics controls

exhaust handling test and validation capabilities diesel and automotive aftermarket and original

equipment service

Electronics and Safety which includes component and systems integration expertise in infotainment

and connectivity body controls and security systems displays mechatronics passive and active safety

electronics and electric and hybrid electric vehicle power electronics as well as advanced development

of software

Thermal Systems which includes heating ventilating and air conditioning HVAC systems

components for multiple transportation and other adjacent markets and powertrain cooling and related

technologies

Parent Subsidiary

Companies Issuer

Non-

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

in millions

180

21 67

12 62

24

859

879

Eliminations Consolidated

159

88

74

28

862

885

21

2042

41

2062

3107

2195 911 3107
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Eliminations and Other which includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions and ii certain

other expenses and income of non-operating or strategic nature

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note Significant Accounting

Policies except that the disaggregated financial results for the segments have been prepared using management

approach which is consistent with the basis and manner in which management internally disaggregates financial

information for the purposes of assisting internal operating decisions Generally Delphi evaluates performance

based on stand-alone segment net income before depreciation and amortization including long-lived asset and

goodwill impairment interest expense other income expense net income tax expense equity income net of

tax transformation and rationalization charges related to plant consolidations plant wind-downs and

discontinued operations Adjusted EBITDA and accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales

or transfers were to third parties at current market prices Through December 31 2010 Delphis management

believed that Adjusted EBITDA was meaningful measure of performance and it was used by management to

analyze Company and stand-alone segment operating performance Management also used Adjusted EBITDA for

planning and forecasting purposes Effective January 2011 Delphis management began utilizing net income

before depreciation and amortization including long-lived asset and goodwill impairment interest expense

other income expense net income tax expense and equity income net of tax EBITDA as key

performance measure because its restructuring was substantially completed in 2010 Segment EBITDA and

Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered substitutes for results prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and

should not be considered alternatives to net income loss attributable to Successor/Predecessor which is the

most directly comparable financial measure to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA that is in accordance with U.S

GAAP Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as determined and measured by Delphi should also not be

compared to similarly titled measures reported by other companies

Included below are sales and operating data for Delphis segments for the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 and periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October 2009 as well as

balance sheet data as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Successor

Electrical Eliminations

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal and

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems Other1 Total

2011 in millions

Net sales 6642 4970 2931 1755 257 16041

EBITDA 868 710 369 172 2119

Depreciation

Amortization 131 195 105 44 475

Operating income 737 515 264 128 1644

Equity income loss 20 22

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 33 33 12 78

Successor

Electrical Eliminations

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal and

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems Other1 Total

2010 in millions

Net sales 5620 4086 2721 1603 213 13817

EBITDA 650 361 247 109 1361

Adjusted EBITDA 758 423 293 165 1633

Depreciation Amortization 108 170 100 42 421

Operating income loss 542 191 147 67 940

Equity income loss 17

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 31 28 12 72
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Successor

Electrical/ Eliminations

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal and

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems Other1 Total

August 19December 312009 in millions

Net sales 1325 957 761 365 13 3421

EBITDA 94 17 129

Adjusted EBITDA 155 79 56 21 313

Depreciation Amortization 31 52 39 17 139

Operating income loss 63 43 22 10
Equity income loss

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 15

Predecessor

Electrical/ Eliminations

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal and
Architecture Systems and Safety Systems Other1 Total

January 1October 62009 in millions

Netsales 2970 2667 1801 1008 112 8334
EBITDA 132 71 319 514
Adjusted EBITDA 18 214 17 229
Depreciation Amortization 147 163 177 53 540

Operating loss income 279 234 496 49 60 1118
Equity income loss 13 12 36
Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest 12 29

Electrical/ Eliminations

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal and
Architecture Systems and Safety Systems Other1 Total

in millions

Balance as of

December 31 2011

Investment in affiliates 96 74 71 16 257

Capital expenditures 219 228 100 70 13 630

Total segment assets 3567 4541 1723 921 1624 9128
December 31 2010

Investment in affiliates 85 53 61 60 22 281

Capital expenditures 202 186 59 35 18 500

Total segment assets 3336 3718 1905 898 1225 11082

Eliminations and Other includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions

Includes charges recorded in 2011 related to costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of $5 million for

Electronics and Safety $12 million for Powertrain Systems $12 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture and $2 million for

Thermal Systems

Includes charges recorded in 2010 related to costs associated with employee termination benefits and other exit costs of $29 million for

Electronics and Safety $49 million for Powertrain Systems $94 million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture and $52 million for

Thermal Systems

Includes charges recorded from August 19 to December 31 2009 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with

employee termination benefits and other exit costs of $20 million for Electronics and Safety $62 million for Powertrain Systems $50

million for Electrical/Electronic Architecture $10 million for Thermal Systems and $1 million for Eliminations and Other

Includes charges recorded from January to October 2009 related to long-lived asset impairments and costs associated with employee

termination benefits and other exit costs of $128 million for Electronics and Safety $46 million for Powertrain Systems $100 million for

Electrical/Electronic Architecture $13 million for Thermal Systems and $l million for Eliminations and Other
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The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA includes other transformation and rationalization costs

related to the implementation of information technology systems to support finance manufacturing and

product development initiatives certain plant consolidations and closures costs consolidation of many staff

administrative functions into global business service group and employee benefit plan settlements in

Mexico The reconciliation of EBITDA to net income loss attributable to Successor/Predecessor follows

Successor

2011

EBITDA ______ _______ ______ ______ _____

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income

Interest expense

Other expense net

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes and equity

income

Income tax expense

Equity income net of tax
_________

Net income

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to Successor

Electrical/

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems
___________ ___________

2010 in millions

Adjusted EBITDA 758 423 293 165

Transformation and rationalization

charges

Employee termination benefits

and other exit costs

Other transformation and

rationalization costs

EBITDA
______ _______ ______ ______ _____

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income loss
_________ _________ _________ ________ _______

Interest expense

Other income net

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes and equity

income

Income tax expense

Equity income net of tax
_________

Net income

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to Successor

868

131

737

Electrical

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal Eliminations

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems and Other Total

in millions

_____ 710 369 172 ____

_________
195 105 44

_______ __________

________
515 264 128

______

2119

475

1644

123
15

1506

305
22

1223

78

$1145

Successor

Eliminations

and Other Total

L633

94 49 29 52 224

14 13 17 48
650 361 247 109 1361

108 170 100 42 421

542 191 147 67 940

30
34

944

258
17

703

72

631
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Successor

Electrical

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal Eliminations

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems and Other Total

August 19December 312009 in millions

Adjusted EBITDA 155 79 56 21 313

Transformation and rationalization

charges

Employee termination benefits and

other exit costs 50 50 20 126
Other transformation and

rationalization costs 11 20 19 58
EBITDA 94 17 129

Depreciation and amortization 31 52 39 17 139

Operating loss income 63 43 22 10
Interest expense

Other expense net 17
Loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity income 35
Income tax benefit 27

Equity income net of tax

Netloss

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest 15

Net loss attributable to Successor 18
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Predecessor

Electrical

Electronic Powertrain Electronics Thermal Eliminations

Architecture Systems and Safety Systems and Other Total

in millions

January 1October 2009

Adjusted EBITDA 18 214 17 229
Transformation and rationalization charges

Employee termination benefits and

other exit costs 99 45 91 11 11 235
Other transformation and

rationalization costs 15 17 14 50
EBITDA 132 71 319 514

Depreciation and amortization 147 163 177 53 540
Discontinued operations 64 64

Operating loss 279 234 496 49 60 1118

Other income net 24

Reorganization items 10210

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes and equity loss 9116

Income tax benefit 311

Equity loss net of tax 36
Loss from discontinued operations net of

tax 44

Net income 9347

Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest 29

Net income attributable to Predecessor 9318

Information concerning principal geographic areas is set forth below Net sales data reflects the manufacturing location

and is for the years ended December 31 2011 December 31 2010 the periods from August 19 to December 31 and

January to October 2009 Net property data is as of December 31

Successor Predecessor

Period from

January to

Year ended Year ended Period from August 19 to October

December 312011 December 312010 December 312009 2009

in millions in millions

Net Net Net

Net Sales Property1 Net Sales Property1 Net Sales Property1 Net Sales

United States 4993 506 4529 417 1083 430 3107

Other North America 118 129 76 134 16 109 24

Europe Middle East Africa2 7264 1107 5892 1045 1448 1047 3330

Asia Pacific 2464 422 2177 325 590 272 1223

South America 1202 151 1143 146 284 102 650

Total 16041 2315 13817 2067 3421 1960 8334

Net property data represents property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation

157



Includes Delphis country of domicile Jersey and the country of Delphis principal executive offices the United Kingdom

The Company had no sales in Jersey in any period The Company had net sales of $866 million $690 million $159 million

and $394 million in the United Kingdom for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 and the period from August 19 to

December 31 2009 and the period from January ito October 2009 respectively The Company had net property in the

United Kingdom of $138 million $137 million and $141 million as of December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

24 QUARTERLY DATA UNAUDITED

The following is condensed summary of the Companys unaudited quarterly results of continuing operations for

fiscal 2011 and 2010

Three months ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total__

in millions except per share amounts

2011

Net sales 3997 4213 3931 3900 16041

Cost of sales 3353 3518 3294 3221 13386

Gross profit 644 695 637 679 2655

Operating income 412 428 393 411 1644

Net income 310 316 285 312 1223

Net income attributable to Delphi 291 298 266 290 1145

Basic and diluted net income per share 0.42 0.88 0.79 0.88 2.72

Weighted average shares outstanding 687 338 337 328 421

2010

Net sales 3410 3446 3309 3652 13817

Cost of sales 2848 2903 2807 3210 11768

Gross profit 562 543 502 442 2049

Operating income 324 297 206 113 940

Net income 235 233 144 91 703

Net income attributable to Delphi 215 214 127 75 631

Basic and diluted net income per share 0.31 0.31 0.18 0.11 0.92

Weighted average shares outstanding 685 685 687 687 686

Cost of sales for the quarters ended March 31 2011 and December 31 2010 included $76 million and $75 million respectively of

warranty charges Refer to Note 10 Warranty Obligations for more information

Due to the use of the weighted average shares outstanding for each quarter for computing earnings per share the sum of the quarterly per

share amounts may not equal the per share amount for the year
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer

the CEOand Chief Financial Officer the CFOwe have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and

operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on

that evaluation our CEO and CFO have concluded such controls and procedures were effective as of

December 31 2011

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

the assets of the Company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United

States of America and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the Company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could

have material effect on the financial statements

Management performed its assessment of internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31

2011 the end of our fiscal year based on the criteria set forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation

management concluded that our internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of December 31

2011

control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute

assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Because of the inherent limitations in all control

systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if

any within the Company have been detected

Ernst Young LLP has issued an attestation report which is included herein as the Report of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm under the section headed Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for

the year ended December 31 2011

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended

December 31 2011 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys
internal controls over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Determination of Annual Incentive Plan Awards for 2011

On February 15 2012 the Compensation and Human Resources Committee the Committee in the case

of all named executive officers NEOs other than Mr ONeal and on February 16 2012 the Board of
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Directors the Board in the case of Mr ONeal approved awards under the Companys Annual Incentive Plan

for the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 the 2011 Annual Incentive Plan Other compensation for fiscal

year 2011 was previously reported by the Company in the Summary Compensation Table beginning on page 134

of the Registration Statement on Form S-i filed February 2012 the Registration Statement As of the filing

of the Registration Statement awards under the 2011 Annual Incentive Plan had not been determined and

therefore were omitted from the Summary Compensation Table included in the Registration Statement The

awards under the 2011 Annual Incentive Plan for the NEOs are set forth below and reflect the strong

performance of the Company in 2011

Rodney ONeal

Kevin Clark

James Spencer

Jeffrey Owens

Kevin Butler

Ronald Pirtle

The 2011 Annual Incentive Plan award payments reflect the actual performance of the Company based

upon the annual metrics weighting and targets described in the Registration Statement In 2011 Delphi

experienced 56% increase in EBITDA and modest increase in cash flow before financing which is

defined as cash flows from operating activities and cash flows from investing activities excluding

investments in time deposits and costs associated with the initial public offering from 2010 as well as

$23.5 billion in gross business bookings See Item Selected Financial Data of this Annual Report for

reconciliation of EBITDA to U.S GAAP financial measures

2011 total compensation amounts for the NEOs as reported in the Summary Compensation Table of

the Registration Statement are adjusted to include the amounts shown in this column

Mr Pirtle ceased being an officer of Delphi as of July 2011 and retired from Delphi as of January

2012 Mr Pirtles annual incentive payment has been adjusted to reflect his time as an officer in 2011

plus one month of transition support he provided to his successor in 2011

Approval of 2012 Equity Awards

On February 15 2012 the Committee in the case of all executives including NEOs other than Mr ONeal

and on February 16 2012 the Board in the case of Mr ONeal also approved grant
of equity awards to the

Companys executives in the form of restricted stock unit RSU awards which are intended to align

executives interests with the interests of our shareholders The number of target shares underlying the RSU

award granted to each NEO who is current officer as well as the breakdown between target shares that vest

based on performance and target shares that vest based on time are as follows

Rodney ONeal

Kevin Clark

James Spencer

Jeffrey Owens

Kevin Butler

Total Target Shares

Underlying RSU Award

284360

94787

69905

51327

35545

Performance-Based Time-Based Target

Target Shares 75% Shares 25%

213270 71090

71090 23697

52429 17476

38495 12832

26659 8886

Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Name Compensation 12
$3380300

$1232000

$1049458

768688

808500

626172
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The fonn of award agreement for the RSU grant described above is attached as an exhibit to this Annual

Report For all officers including the NEOs 75% of the target shares underlying the RSU award will vest based

on perfonnance with performance period from January 2012 to December 31 2014 The remaining 25% of

the target shares will be issued in the form of time-based RSU award and will vest ratably over three years

beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant The actual shares that each NEO will receive upon vesting

of the performance-based target shares will range from 0% to 200% of the performance-based target shares based

upon the Companys achievement of the following performance metrics

Performance Metric Weighting

Average RONA 50%

Cumulative Net Income 30%

Relative Total Shareholder Return 20%

Return on Net Assets RONA is defined as tax-affected operating income divided by average net

working capital plus average net property plant and equipment expense and is measured each calendar

year Final performance will be based upon the three-year average of calendar year performance for

2012 2013 and 2014

Cumulative Net Income is based upon the total net income for the three-year period of 2012 2013 and

2014

Relative Total Shareholder Return is comparison of the average closing price per share of the

Companys ordinary shares for all available trading days in the fourth quarter of 2014 against the

average closing price per share of the Companys ordinary shares for all available trading days in

fourth quarter of 2011 including dividends the resulting percentage change is then compared to

comparable measure of the Russell 3000 Auto Parts Index companies Actual payout will be based

upon the Companys position relative to the companies listed in the index as more fully described in

the grant agreement

Organizational Changes

As market leader in technology product development and operational excellence we are committed to

providing our investors and shareholders with strong financial performance To further strengthen our

capabilities on February 15 2012 the Committee and the Board approved certain organizational changes which

also resulted in changes to compensation we provide to Messrs ONeal Owens and Spencer

Jeffrey Owens has assumed the new role of Senior Vice President of Delphi and Chief Technology Officer

Focused on the long-range growth and technology success of Delphi Mr Owens will drive innovation and

technology strategies to promote growth while leading the evaluation of advanced technologies and market

trends He will drive alignment of engineering resources and capabilities including capacity planning for the

global engineering footprint to achieve the companys business goals In recognition of the need for continuity in

this important new role on February 15 2012 in addition to his RSU award described above Mr Owens was

also awarded one-time grant of 47393 RSUs which will cliff vest on February 15 2015 Should Mr Owens

terminate his employment without good reason as defined in his award agreement or be terminated for cause by

Delphi prior to the vesting date he will forfeit this one-time special grant in full form of award agreement for

Mr Owens is attached as an exhibit to this Annual Report

James Spencer has assumed the new role of Senior Vice President of Delphi and Sector President of

Electrical and Electronics and will have responsibility for Delphi Electrical/Electronic Architecture and Delphi

Electronics and Safety Mr Spencers role will provide focus in order to leverage our broad electrical and

electronics capabilities as these technologies are becoming more integral to our larger product portfolio Using

our combined electrical and electronics expertise this strategic alignment will enable us to accelerate our product

offerings and grow our business In recognition of his additional responsibilities Mr Spencers base salary has
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been increased to $590000 In addition to provide operational continuity in this important new role on

February 15 2012 in addition to his RSU award described above Mr Spencer was also awarded one-time

grant of 47393 RSUs which will cliff vest on February 15 2015 Should Mr Spencer terminate his employment

without good reason as defined in his award agreement or be terminated for cause by Delphi prior to the vesting

date he will forfeit this one-time special grant in full form of award agreement for Mr Spencer is attached as

an exhibit to this filing

Also on February 15 2012 the Board approved adjustments to Rodney ONeals compensation to provide

both operational continuity and further align Mr ONeals compensation opportunity with the interests of the

shareholders Beginning in 2012 Mr ONeals annual incentive target was reduced by 18% to $1800000 His

long-term incentive award target was increased by 9% to $6000000 After completion of one year of service

following the grant date Mr ONeal will not forfeit any unvested performance-based or time-based RSUs in the

event he retires or otherwise terminates employment with Delphi other than for cause prior to the normally

scheduled vesting date Mr ONeal will also receive cash continuity payment of $500000 on each of January

15 2013 2014 and 2015 provided that he remains employed by Delphi on December 31st of the year preceding

the payment date compensation agreement more fully describing the terms of above referenced compensation

including the 2012 long-term incentive award is attached as an exhibit to this filing
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information called for by Item 10 as to compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act is

incorporated by reference to the Companys definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to

Regulation 14A in connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading

Other InformationSection 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance The information called for by

Item 10 as to the audit comnüttee and the audit committee financial expert is incorporated by reference to the

Companys definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with

the Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading Meetings of the Board of Directors and

Committees of the BoardAudit Committee The information called for by Item 10 as to executive officers is

set forth under Executive Officers of the Registrant in the Supplementary Item in Part of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K The information called for by Item 10 as to directors is incorporated by reference to the Companys

definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the

Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the headings Election of Directors Item and

Board PracticesOther Matters Relating to Directors

The Company has adopted code of ethics the Code of Ethical Business Conduct which applies to its

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons

performing similar functions and all other employees and non-employee directors of the Company The Code of

Ethical Business Conduct is posted on the Companys website www.delphi.com The Company intends to

satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from

provision of the code of ethics that applies to the Companys principal executive officer principal financial

officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions by posting such

information on the Companys website at the address specified above

The Companys Corporate Governance Guidelines and charters for each Committee of its Board of

Directors are also available on the Companys website The Code of Ethical Business Conduct Corporate

Governance Guidelines and charters are also available in print to any shareholder who submits request to

Corporate Secretary Delphi Automotive PLC do Delphi Automotive Systems LLC 5725 Delphi Drive Troy

Michigan 48098

Information on the Companys website is not deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the Companys definitive Proxy

Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Companys 2012 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders under the headings Director Compensation Compensation Discussion and

Analysis Executive Compensation and Report of the Compensation and Human Resources Committee

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by Item 12 as to security ownership of certain beneficial owners directors and

management is incorporated by reference to the Companys definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC

pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the

headings Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Security Ownership of Management

Information as of December 31 2011 about the Companys ordinary shares that may be issued under all of

its equity compensation plans is set forth in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by Item 13 as to director independence is incorporated by reference to the

Companys definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation l4A in connection with

the Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading Board PracticesDirector

Independence The information called for by Item 13 as to related person transactions is incorporated by

reference to the Companys definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in

connection with the Companys 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading Relationships and

Related Party Transactions

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the Companys definitive Proxy

Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Companys 2012 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders under the heading Independent Registered Public Accountants Fees
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K

Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December31 2011 and 2010

the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October 2009

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31

2011 and 2010 the Periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito

October 2009

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2011 and

2010 the periods from August 19 to December 31 2009 and January ito October

2009

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity Deficit for the Years Ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 the periods from August 19 to December 312009 and

January ito October 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule

SCHEDULE IIVALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Successor

December 31 2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Tax valuation allowance

December 31 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Tax valuation allowance

Period from August 19 to December 31

2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Tax valuation allowance

Predecessor

Period from January to October

2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Tax valuation allowance

64 25 $16 70

551 $6i 17 $472

33 45 $i2 64

552 58 $35 24 $551

$33 $33

490 46 16 $552

134 22 $47 109
$9 144 $237 $84i71 $490

Other
activity represents the loss of Delphis U.S net operating loss carry forwards and other tax attributes in connection with the

October 2009 acquisition of substantially all of the Predecessors businesses resulting in corresponding reduction in the valuation

-allowance

The other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable not required or the information to be

set forth therein is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto

Page No

79

81

82

83

84

85

87

Additions

Balance at Beginning Charged to Costs

of Period and Expenses Deductions

in millions

Balance at

Other Activity End of Period
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Exhibits including those incorporated by reference

Exhibit Number Description

2.1 Master Disposition Agreement among Delphi Corporation GM Components

Holdings LLC General Motors Company Motors Liquidation Company fka

General Motors Corporation DIP Holdco LLC and the other sellers and other

buyers party thereto dated July 26 20091
3.1 Memorandum and Articles of Association4

4.1 Form of Ordinary Share Certificate3

4.2 Senior Notes Indenture dated as of May 17 2011 among Delphi Corporation the

guarantors party thereto Wilmington Trust Company as trustee and Deutsche Bank

Trust Company Americas as registrar paying agent and authenticating agent

including forms of notes

4.3 Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Partnership Agreement of Delphi

Automotive LLP dated as of July 12 20112
10.1 Redemption Agreement between Delphi Automotive LLP and General Motors

Holding LLC dated as of March 31 20111
10.2 Rights Modification Agreement dated as of March 31 2011 by and among Delphi

Automotive LLP and each of the holders of Class membership interests party

thereto1

10.3 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Delphi Automotive LLP as

Parent Delphi Holdings S.A.R.L as Intermediate Holdco Delphi Corporation as

Borrower the Lenders party thereto JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative

Agent Citibank N.A as Syndication Agent Bank of America N.A Barclays Bank

plc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as Co-Documentation Agents

and J.P Morgan Securities LLC as Sole Bookrunner and Sole Lead Arranger dated

as of May 17 20111
10.4 Form of Registration Rights Agreement2

10.5 First Amended and Restated Delphi Automotive LLP Board of Managers 2010 Class

E-1 Interest Incentive Plan3
10.6 Form of Restricted Interest Grant Notice and Agreement3
10.7 First Amended and Restated Delphi Automotive LLP 2010 Management Value

Creation Plan3
10.8 Form of Non-Officer Executive Participation Agreement pursuant to the Delphi

Automotive LLP 2010 Management Value Creation Plan3
10.9 Form of Officer Participation Agreement pursuant to the Delphi Automotive LLP

2010 Management Value Creation Plan3
10.10 Form of Confidentiality and Noninterference Agreement pursuant to the Delphi

Automotive LLP 2010 Management Value Creation Plan3
10.11 Form of Delphi Automotive LLP Letter re Special Bonus for Initial Public Offering

or Sale of the Company3
10.12 Delphi LLC Annual Incentive Plan1
10.13 Delphi Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Program

10.14 Delphi Corporation Salaried Retirement Equalization Savings Program1
10.15 Delphi Automotive PLC Long Term Incentive Plan3
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Exhibit Number Description

10.16 Form of Non-Employee Director RSU Award Agreement pursuant to Delphi

Automotive PLC Long Term Incentive Plan5
10.17 Offer letter for Rodney ONeal dated October 20091
10.18 Offer letter for James Bertrand dated October 2009

10.19 Offer letter for Ronald Pirtle dated October 20091-i-

10.20 Offer letter for James Spencer dated October 20091-i-

10.21 Offer letter for Keith Stipp dated October 20091
10.22 Offer letter for John Sheehan dated October 20091
10.23 Offer letter for Kevin Clark dated June 10 20101
10.24 Executive Release of Claims Separation Non-Solicitation and Non-Compete

Agreement between Delphi Corporation and John Sheehan dated February 22

20101-i-

10.25 Form of Officer RSU Award Agreement pursuant to Delphi Automotive PLC Long

Term Incentive Plan
10.26 CEO RSU Award Agreement pursuant to Delphi Automotive PLC Long Term

Incentive Planl

10.27 Form of Officer RSU Award Agreement including Continuity Incentive RSU

Award pursuant to Delphi Automotive PLC Long Term Incentive Plan
12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP
31.1 Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a Certification of Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a- 14a/15d- 14a Certification of Principal Financial Officer

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-174493 of Delphi Automotive PLC on

June 30 2011

Filed with the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-174493 of Delphi Automotive PLC on

August 12011

Filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-174493 of Delphi Automotive PLC on

October 31 2011

Filed with the Registration Statement on Form 8-A File No 00 1-35346 of Delphi Automotive PLC on

November 10 2011

Filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-174493 of Delphi Automotive PLC on

February 2012
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

Is Kevin Clark

By Kevin Clark

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Dated February 17 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been signed below as of

February 17 2012 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated

Title

Chief Executive Officer President

Is Rodney ONeal Director

Rodney ONeal Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and

Is Kevin Clark Chief Financial Officer

Kevin Clark
Principal Financial Officer

Is Allan Brazier Chief Accounting Officer

Allan Brazier
Principal Accounting Officer

Is John Krol Chairman of the Board of Directors

John Krol

is Gary Cowger Director

Gary Cowger

Is Nicholas Donofrio Director

Nicholas Donofrio

Is Mark Frissora
Director

Mark Frissora

Is Rajiv Gupta
Director

Rajiv Gupta

/s Randall MacDonald Director

Randall MacDonald
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eO
Director

Sean Mahoney

Is/ Michael McNamara Director

Michael McNamara

Is Thomas Sidlik Director

Thomas Sidlik

Is Bernd Wiedemann Director

Bernd Wiedemann

Is Lawrence Zimmerman Director

Lawrence Zimmerman
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DELPHI AUTOMOTIVE PLC

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Exhibit 12.1

Income loss before income taxes

minority interest and equity

income

Cash dividends received from non-

consolidated affiliates and

income

Portion of rentals deemed to be

interest

Interest and related charges on

debt

Earnings available for fixed

charges

Fixed Charges

Portion of rentals deemed to be

interest

Interest and related charges on

debt

Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed

charges

Fixed charges exceeding

earnings

Predecessor

Period from

January to
Year ended December 31

October

2009 2008 2007

dollars in millions

$9116 $3297 $2437

29

25 44 38

489 772

$9144 $3832 $1598

25 44 38

489 772

26 533 810

351.7 7.2 N/A

Successor

Period from

Year ended December 31 August 19 to

December 31
2011 2010 2009

dollars in millions

$1506 944 $35

36

31 32 11

139 38

$1640 $1007 $17

31 32 $11

139

170

38

70 19

9.6 14.4 N/A

N/A N/A 36 N/A N/A 2408



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Rodney ONeal certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Automotive PLC

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as definedin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd- 15f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process
summarize and report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have.a

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 17 2012 Is Rodney ONeal

Rodney ONeal

Chief Executive Officer President

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

Kevin Clark certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Automotive PLC

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for

the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of direºtors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 17 2012 Is Kevin Clark

Kevin Clark

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the filing of this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Automotive PLC the Company for

the period ended December 31 2011 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Rodney ONeal Chief Executive Officer certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to the best of my knowledge that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Date February 17 2012 /5/ Rodney ONeal

Rodney ONeal

Chief Executive Officer President

Principal Executive Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will

be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Conmiission or its staff upon request



Exhibil 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTOF 2002

In connection with the filing of this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Automotive PLC the Company for

the period ended December 31 2011 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Kevin Clark Chief Financial Officer certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to the best of my knowledge that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Date February 17 2012 /s/ Kevin Clark

Kevin Clark

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will

be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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